[4¢ 2} ERAFRII - R2ASLEI PR FHEF2RRIEL -]

B & (H 30,4 5)
20229 30p XA EEY 2 G



B4 & (JPMorgan ASEAN Fund)

£3 2022 % 9% 30p ZBfiking (B RMFZF4L4T)

7 A

BiFI 4

Rl 55 T AR
e S Ve ]
e Ay
T

WA B R RE
BT A

kR
M5k T A
Bow A
Ve

24 i AT

PROAHFIVITE

¥ ALEFTAR)

FivivEedy L2

EFA

2022
ESE

35,841,837
10,894,306
1,013,471
259,220
1,134,208,181
1,267,398

2021

ZE U

33,818,406
5,018,853
2,487,023

310,087
1,336,495,417
1,186,579

1,183,484,413

1,379,316,365

7,689,110 4,031,418
2,955,027 5,634,199
908,516 616,681
1,781,636 2,015,611
13,334,289 12,297,909

1,170,150,124

1,367,018,456




B4 & (JPMorgan ASEAN Fund)

£312022# 97 0P 2FERFFE (B2 M2 5 4

F)

2022 2021
ESE ESE
o »
EPFE AR EI)E (172,541,285) 329,672,356
A 34,715,443 36,062,589
EE i 88,884 30,973
e (1,598,062) (978,511)
Hw e » 185 -
(139,334,835) 364,787,407
F: *
H I 19,529,892 21,114,649
S AR 2,365,761 3,042,049
wEEREY 537,904 531,313
AR 446,149 527,439
HE BT 234,528 253,528
gEm g 67,005 48,205
i EE L LRI 5,354 10,790
B ] & AR B H 5,280 9,949
Hu gy 33,942 5,683
23,225,815 25,543,605
EY L) E (162,560,650) 339,243,802
PiE S &
FIAL 7 (783) -
i (d54 )15 (162,561,433) 339,243,802
i (2,490,731) (2,348,076)
RINAE -3 S -2 | E s
K2 EF AR () (165,052,164) 336,895,726




BRAEAE

2022 # 9% 30 p LA ERY 2 fjF

B aPEL
Y S Ve AR R

iR 4 2 B4

za

A FPEARE AR L (EYRKMEZ 547227 ) ¢ 3

o #3 2022 % 97" 30 p iR IRL

o MERBAZFENHEE

o WERRBAFIVIFHIG AL ETARIFL

o NEREAZMEINE L Z

o MARFL2GEfE F FEXEPHRE B U EP FM o

g, B

AL AR A R YRS B 2 € (CHKICPA”) % 2. 4 & M4 7447 2 £ 8
(‘HKFRSs”) E @22 fopt 2 3E A 202022 & 9 7 30 p ok crpd 745 % ~ 472
PEREGE -

LR AH

AR A B GO € F T 2 A BT R ("HKSAS) L 7 & 4% 0 AN ik gt R
e 2 FEnApgEL? AR FLFERTEE- HEP .

S AR L B PES F A P AR R R
) gy e

Az hh g AR GPE S GFFLE LR AR
By ) 2RETBE 24T i

AT A (TR A S TR GBS TR s AR
3



2B FDOFTA(F FMHABFLE DL FPIRL) o

3

NP TRAIR L g B A 4 H @ pﬁ}‘% AP AFEEeA N2 RE

ﬂh—
5.
o

&

FEAPSMBEL APPSR ER A PP ELRFE B T3
FTHEMBRLAAPLIP2RTETFEAF - R &
Ea S

1%
=
s %
(o
=l
14
.
I8
&l
ud
=

—=\
=
&
(Q,
[N
A~

PP e HiF210F, FAPRIE S T EANRRAY -

TP oo hp o0 ARG FHRLE -

~=i
N
.
N|
g
B
=l

BRI HMEFLF T

REFEDMORT L ARG ARGV gHF TR BEMBFLIERFL 7o
BEERE D LehpIR > Td FREMME 2 &2 pIgrd] > RMAFL 285 4
HERTH A FE S L < 23 U e

prho R E I AR FMIAE L 1R 1983 £ 7 0 T p R R B i
TRFEENDEINAERI I PEIRERLIAEF AL E 2R
wa FEEETR ) )HFE 2 M MERBiES g %

EpevFLTE

AP PR PABRE L FHE T AN FRTRASE ST R E A BE S
WRER T EF - ZAPLLDEPFFL - APETER L ﬁ’é?’zﬂ?% > T
EEWP e NP IFN FHEHEE AL F o FR2 R SRR 0 X7
FENNGAAEPTERNRNFAPR IV FRS 5 1,\5?, PR o 3R BT Ay

RATIFH SR BV AL A FRE R RN LR AFEL R %‘F}{L‘;
B BT AL £ 4 o g AR AR kA2 AR A K 5 LT
CRGHEENIRT ETAFSEZ M MFEREEREE HH -

RipA AP ENEFAY . AP APERY » EFBEEHEIRFEE T 2R
Y

o BB I IFHMAFLZEXFTFTMAEZLL "G 2 HHE AT FFd 35~ & F)
4



&?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéi,i%@iﬁﬁﬁé*ﬁ*ﬁﬁmnﬁkbi *
Ao BEHNEAF LR GTRRA S BRNE BB TET R
ﬁ%iﬁ‘ﬁﬁ‘a%&%‘ﬂéﬁﬁ SR E L IR

o TREBAPARM P G NP LERBDEPRSE > L ARA LD h

. ?%%@?gﬂﬁﬁﬁiéﬁ‘%gﬁﬁigfﬁ%*w%%%mbﬂﬁ°

° 1“—3;}7;3’» z‘,ﬁ'fﬁ;}yg\,;— '%ﬂi‘KF’Bfé?’ri#é?%g‘w g»%@71§$ﬁ,7%
BEX I RITHAMZEEAFR I HAZEY LS %Eb"i@’ri%ﬁ%‘?‘ﬁﬁ"
FAPRGFLEEAFIRAUE AP FLAPEFEL Y ST AAMIBE Y R
NEFL FHEHBIIRF > TREAPTHL L o AP DL LA E P
%Bﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%o%a’%%iﬁ*%ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁéwﬁgw“o

o FFRENAIZ B -MEPF s RBBEEIMFLT IS FEER

ERFFHRDLEETE

.

GO HE TR A PR F NP EAN N EPPREFRE LR DEPER ¢ §
EAPHEAPFRM 2 B0 Lo

BEENZBEETIIESEPMBB FHE RLEFL
ANPRA S EMENAG E AR REERNE FEEE E TGS ELZ R
& I’,—'—'r)\—Eg ‘ﬁ"ﬁl

PricewaterhouseCoopers
LM g R

3k

2023 # 17" 20 p



BRLT##HE A £ (JPMorgan Asia Growth Fund)

£3 2022297 30 p 2 BHakRA (2 RMI2L 5 78 F)

A
LTI 4
Rfc e 7 208

B e HT

Mt ST AR
R A
AR &

T i i
S A e

PR eRFIvETE

3G LLEFTAR)

FIvEvEegEg 4

EFTA

2022 2021

ESE ESE
5,663,888 22,140,125
2,404,374 5,748,663
1,243,968 16,401,320
105,215 198,779
557,164,523 912,371,117
383,031 593,086
566,964,999 957,453,090
88,344 20,386,719
2,139,447 6,941,719
954,222 14,694
220,416 4,230,604
889,133 1,375,424
4,291,562 32,949,160
562,673,437 924,503,930




BRLT##HE & KL 4& (JPMorgan Asia Growth Fund)

£32022295 30 pLFEHER (F mMFLFT8F)

(i

S SR ERE EC T

B}L'flj 1z »
T a1 A
R 4
H W

o
W
4 Tl

A
. W
ry
i
3
R
“3

e

T W o R o R O

> T

AYEHFL)E

ZE TN
IR

R (2 )%
i

TR BB R KM r o
K2 EFTAA ] (B)

2022 2021
ESE ESE
(310,488,759) 56,671,070
12,500,740 12,809,802
29,613 42,318
(676,483) (604,377)
8,957 36,807
(298,625,932) 68,955,620
11,215,464 13,979,017
926,674 1,628,486
338,411 466,550
309,308 428,435
213,628 252,399
54,105 32,505
38,044 47,276
17,220 17,220

5,128 8,270

25,299 19,898
13,144,181 16,880,056
(311,770,113) 52,075,564
(842) (769)
(311,770,955) 52,074,795
1,792,722 (6,077,986)
(309,978,233) 45,996,809




BREMHLASE

2022 %97 30 p SAPIERY <

L ReE Y
RAERGHHERE(TH T AAE )T A

iR 4 2 B4

Tl

A FPE AR EPPABRL(EYKMFZ 578798 F ) ¢ 2

o #3 2022 % 97" 30 p iR IRL

. *ﬁ&%%i%@ﬁﬁ%;

e NERBRAFIVIVERE ) ALETARFL

o & }i\,:‘;é\\m;%/,, ¥4, %

o PAMSFL iR F FEAEVRREZABEP TR o

N g, B

AP A AR A YR A B € 3 E 2 § (‘HKICPAY) S 1 2 4 % M 7347 & 158
(‘HKFRSs”) Ef & 2 fopt 23E AL £ 2022 # 9 7 30 p ok cpd 35K % ~ AFE R
YRR i

A2 AH

APRIEA B EE D §F T L A B AR (HKSAS ) 7 B4 0 Ak gt B
Ef 2 FEWAPRLEY AREFFLFEREE- HRP o

APAR AP AL L EPES £ A AP AR LR § A
)} sl e

A hh g AR GPE S GFFLE LR AR
Bl ) P RETRE Rkt =

e TR
A bz g pam  (THIFENP VHASFTAEF o HET N A RR
SEEPTR( ML L B AR -

8



&

4L >

e >
il

P w

Ex

&
i
5.

)

NPHPARFEL AL LT e RHEB TR AP R EE RN

SENPOMBREREL AP R R AP 2 ARG HE B
FTREMBFLAAPAPZRTLTF L7 - R0 & ad
P

ot e
1%
=

s %
(o
=l
14
.
I8
&l
ud
=

—=\
=
&
(Q,
[N
A~

RypAipEe {721 iF, FRAPRIEL TG £ 23 F ik NP EHRE P
FF oot e 0 ARG RRLEA o

FRINFHMAEFEL §

REREINFORT L AFED BB G EF TN BMIBFLIFEFR LT
BEZFEehpdR > Fd FRIMME2 S8 2 PP RABRL 2 EF L
EREE N AR A E L 2 R T U e

st A& F IV R R IR 195 2007 & 5 0 11 p ReeR g2 Higsr(T
HMGesn AN RES 2 D ERERLA4H 22 T84
SR(TATEE €T ) E 2 P ARG Fa e Rl

AP gLy E
AR R H AR L AT AR A s L E A A it BE
W2 gl > T EF - g‘waimﬁﬁﬁ*oﬂwﬁﬁ-iv-ﬁ\ﬂﬂ
vﬂﬂwﬁhﬂoAW%Twr%ﬂwsétﬂw4éﬁ oﬁﬁizﬂ;ﬁﬁ%\zﬂ:’i
BB BAPRENRFAPLITHFR A2 EXAFFTME - 2 FRET
ORI A FT RGN LR B L EFERPMF LR 2
EARTORTARIES B APTRLRITE AR L HENEE ARG A
TeRREROEIEE §TRHSEE L APHMIEHE AR B -

“d\

AP EREFAY > AP APERY > BFREHETFFEE 2R

;{ )’ T

. ﬂWI?%Hﬁﬂéiﬁkn Fi i %,]%ﬁkﬁqrﬁé%ﬁ &
9



?g:o EZPHNEA2FREZLGT R RAEH HRNEBEE FHT A
EE S AN S A I D E N A LE et TR
e R AP #Eﬁ?mF\ TIEF > MR ERBDAPARS > L3 AL P fpeh
Ff;{']‘i%

2 —l\
(m\ﬂr

o AT gﬂﬁﬁmggﬁ\ggﬁﬁig?ﬁkﬁww%%mAWﬁo

o PP EZAPES HETFRINFPR Y 2 FFEY §VAHZGEE B
SEAFRTBAM TSR LFHAEPFT LY LS AL HFRA -
FAPRZILESN IR AP FAAPFEL Y AMMFEZ MR Y R
mﬁﬁ.%ﬁiﬁaizﬁé’?@&ﬂWﬁ%ioﬂWﬁii{£%§ﬁ$
2P RBELAPEE R ARFEAFRTRERASL EEFRSY o

o FREMWMLZ B -MFPNF o o RBFEEMFLT AETT Z\'kmfiﬁi
TERFEF NI BT S

O HRTA APEFANPEAM AP PREPETEIEDAPER ¢ 7
ﬁ—fl’ﬁﬁpﬁ&?\ YFB);'?IFLF\ 4:3';_!' 2 TP R ’i°

REXHEBE g SRS EAPMILR FHR R FL
ARG S EMIENA] A ¢ REER G AEEE § 7 A EL A
& I’,—'—'r)\—Eg ‘ﬁ"ﬁl

PricewaterhouseCoopers
LM g R

3k

2023 # 17" 20 p

10



B~ 3 & ¥ 4 £ (JPMorgan Asian Smaller Companies Fund)

#3 20229 30p 2

FA

BiFI 4
RS T AR
S8 R
EREITAPER &

U N WSS

PR

ﬁ?@ﬁ%ﬁ

A ﬁ%’?‘ FRIE
(7# ¢ 3z é?—l-

L"L#-**’ﬁ A2 EFAIREF

FivivHEosE) i

EAFAPLLEE

it (B2 mpaE2 % 106 |

)

2022 2021

ESE ESE
5,389,907 13,865,071
142,932 992,827
47,964 1,518,785
193,182,087 276,162,221
220,208 139,588
198,983,098 292,678,492
66,026 1,737,223
370,047 842,140
713,668 2,900,327
337,348 470,802
1,487,089 5,950,492
197,496,009 286,728,000

11



B~ 3 & ¥ 4 £ (JPMorgan Asian Smaller Companies Fund)

£3 2022 9% 30p 2

(i

,;»;}LF.*;& ff?i'ﬁ.'rfé A

B};»flj I »
EE S N
R %

H W

o
w

N

w:ﬁ*wwngW%m
|>‘_

ot}
%
T
i

Tl

iﬂﬁ?‘” *

ik

N 3 FRZZ'

T w wds

e

\_.
Lo oW
u

T TE W R R W

R
© ol

T
iz
&

AYEHFL)E

ZET RN
fa g
ot (3 4 )1 &
F

USRS W 2 TN
R ERFAH A ()

EFE (2 R"Mr2 % 106 7

2022 2021
ESE ESE
(91,603,053) 67,656,333
5,422,829 4,705,408
15,362 3,026
(472,540) (190,855)

- 8,204
(86,637,402) 72,182,116
3,913,922 3,621,312
395,051 556,348
169,356 190,979
146,403 126,805
83,770 78,892
22,466 25,747
17,010 16,870
14,405 27,344
2,659 3,952
18,113 4,774
4,783,155 4,653,023
(91,420,557) 67,529,093
- (2,750)
(91,420,557) 67,526,343
733,761 (3,478,730)
(90,686,796) 64,047,613

12



BREM NG ELS

2022 9% 30 p AP EERY © I

W hpAEL
KBGO LA G ERE(THTARE )T A

iR 4 2 B4

p A

A AP B AR EDOMABEFL(E Y RMFEZF 1063 118 F ) ¢ 3

o #3 2022 % 97" 30 p iR IRL

. *ﬁ&%%i%@ﬁﬁ%;

e WERRBAFIVIVERIGAZEFTARMFA

J *&&gixmgmiﬁ;a

o ML 2iEfEc f FEXEVRREAUA TR -

AP A

ARG AR A YR 4k €3 F 2 § ("HKICPAY) % i 2 4 ik M 337 £ 1R
(‘HKFRSS”) #8272 vy 22 AL £20 2022 9 7 30 p 1k 0P A IR ~ M 7E 2
PEFERELE -

LR AH
AP B T BT 2 A B ERI("HKSAS™ ) 7 & % > 2 i ik gt A
Jef 2 FaEs A pREL Y ARG LFERT SR HEP o

AP AP @ AL 2 APER T IAPAPLLRERE ORAHE -
)} el e

A hh g AR GPE S GFFLE LR AR
Bl ) P RETRE Rkt =

e TR
A bz g pam  (THIFENP VHASFTAEF o HET N A RR
SEEPTR( ML L B AR -

13



AP PAFRIRE 2 &iﬂa#,wA%’ﬂWﬁX%&ﬁFmﬂi%ﬁﬁ%o
SEAPIHABFEL AP S R R APDT EEARFE B T3
THEMBRLAAPLP 20T F €4 W—K’§E§%*a¢Wﬁii*
3 g M

RypApe {721 iF FAPRIEL TG £ F i NPLEHRE P
TP ot g ALy AR EA o

PRI HMEL F T

AREFEINFORTLAFED BB EFIF o EF TN BMIBFLIFEFR LT
BHREFED Lehpf3f > Td FIEIMME 2 B2 pIgrd] 0 RMBFL 2 BG4
WERFHRAAFEE AL X 23 F e

R R f?kéﬁﬁgzﬂ_%fsf’“ﬁ RfiAednryE
[RPES ’é!ﬁ’gi‘”"'ﬂﬁf@éilg dam kb s -
2% %?*#f%ﬁ'(ﬂ;gaﬁg&

Beth o Ak A E TR IR R (R P AR 2 ﬁ%1%1&12“23ﬁ%?ﬁ£ﬁﬂfﬁ
HTREZG VAN AERIZPIEIRERLAEFF2E 0223 814
SR(CHTREE TR S E LA MR RG FA Ly BE -

AP VLT E

A hp P E IR L FRET AN FRTR A FTR 2 E S A F M B FE
W2 fglt s T EF- 3 FAPLLAOERHL  c APERE L % PR
FTREBE P Ao NP APPSR FHEE AL F o B2 L LML T
7 %x,aﬂ%‘gzﬁ o s S EL R A ’;‘If‘w & P\g_a FF ML o 3 UL
O ROTIEACSN AR BV AL A R M B RS B g R TR L R
2 AN E'Jv AREEL ot APTRE LT AR L2 MBI EE L A
AFeRBEZNEIET € TAGSHE L APMMAFEHBEREE HE -

ﬁ%éﬁﬁ#}a@nﬁﬁ’ﬂw%ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬂ’@ﬁg%ﬂ%jﬁﬁgiiim

FIEHABRLZE A FFMEZ R > AhE T FIITS A AR AT
RPTARFAPARAAL TR EALIPE DEAPERTLIRELL LA

HoeoBZEHNESTIMEZRGT i hp vt BARLNEHEF vH7 &
14



R A S S R AT R 13 BT LR

o TIREAPARM P IR A] 0 MR F LBBAOAPASE 0 L HA LD R
7oA R A

. g%%@m%“ﬁﬁ%i%ﬁ‘%ﬁ%ﬁi%?ﬁ%ﬁw%%%mkﬂﬁ°

o PIRBBW2 Bl HETERNF R 2 FEEY EFAHZ LR 2k
BEL DML AR LR HAASELY N AL FFM
FAPRIFALEAFRELE > APLFALPHFL Y SHFLBBE Y
mﬁﬁ.%zi%%izﬁ%’?@ﬁﬂwﬁii°“wﬁii{£*ﬁﬁﬁ
LR EBEL AP A0 0 ARFRAFRTAERASH L BT LF

o TG EREAE ‘F—H]%’;‘ PASER 5 0 #4530 E 2 MERAETE d D) »lz\'kmiifi
TR R b g

T HRER S APEAERPRARAPEREPFETZ AR DEPER ¢ ]

AP RAPFRM M2 ER Lo

—Hr

F_k

REZTNIEE IR GSEEAPNBBFEHRE K2
APRE L EMIIN T EA R REEENE FERE 6 TN HEEZ M A
it el

PricewaterhouseCoopers
LM g R

3k

2023 # 17" 20 p

15



B2~ 4 & (JPMorgan Australia Fund)

£3 2022297 30 p 2 kA (2 KM 5 17T F)

A
LTI 4
e e 7 208

IR N

ER A

ot is e T AT
Bow AR
LRty WS

B fﬁ(n é;}gﬁﬁ;?ﬁwﬁ

3G LLEFTAR)

ﬁﬁivﬁwﬂf:#ﬁ“y A
R

EFTA

2022 2021

ESE ESE
132,976 103,049

- 1,059,352

6,260 4,707

295 2,085
15,808,728 20,696,387
62,186 65,680
16,010,445 21,931,260
- 1,061,402

14,676 16,924
42,285 42,721
56,961 1,121,047
15,953,484 20,810,213

16



B2~ 3 & (JPMorgan Australia Fund)

£312022 8 9% 30 P LIFEHER (B2 ML F 17T F)

2022 2021
P i
o
ERFT R pTA MR SE)E (4,497,273) 4,811,928
A 813,472 796,830
EOhEEEL)FIE (21,479) 37,966
EE S N 88 5
(3,705,192) 5,646,729
F: =
By 149,105 168,976
CREEIE I 36,967 41,004
E3tEr R 26,405 14,305
- A 17,624 13,662
PR 13,500 17,080
WE S 11,932 13,522
2 A AR 11,021 19,332
EER R ERER 5,416 6,857
Erf) 2 AR H 2,217 3,571
His gy 3,766 3,204
277,953 301,513
EFEIRA)E (3,983,145) 5,345,216
3= &
145 (110) (17)
fw(dF L)1 E (3,983,255) 5,345,199
i (31,232) (45,466)
FIR g E 2 W
R2LEFT AR A () (4,014,487) 5,299,733

17



BiRHAE

2022 % 97 30 p AP ERT < fiF

B AL
REFEANAE(THTARE | )EFTF A

AirdE 4 2 4

Tl

A AP B AR EDABREFL(E Y RMFEZF 1773189 F ) ¢ 2

o #3 2022 % 97" 30 p iR IRL

. *ﬁ&%%i%@ﬁﬁ%;

e NERBRAFIVIVERE ) ALETARFL

o & }i\,:‘;é\\m;%/,, ¥4, %

o PAMSFL iR F FEAEVRREZABEP TR o

N g, B

AP A AR A YR A B € 3 E 2 § (‘HKICPAY) S 1 2 4 % M 7347 & 158
(‘HKFRSs”) Ef & 2 fopt 23E AL £ 2022 # 9 7 30 p ok cpd 35K % ~ AFE R
YRR i

A2 AH

APRIEA B EE D §F T L A B AR (HKSAS ) 7 B4 0 Ak gt B
Ef 2 FEWAPRLEY AREFFLFEREE- HRP o

A pgp g AL e B4 i&igf"}ﬁ;}fg » XL AR SRR R o g
b} el e

A hh g AR GPE S GFFLE LR AR
Bl ) P RETRE Rkt =

e TR
A bz g pam  (THIFENP VHASFTAEF o HET N A RR
SEEPTR( ML L B AR -

18



ﬂh—
g

NPEHPARFEL DL A e B T AP A EE R AN 2 RS

SENPOMBREREL AP R R AP 2 ARG HE B

FTREMBFLAAPAPZRTLTF L7 - R0 & ad
F R o

ot e
1%
=
s %
(o
=l
14
.
I8
&l
ud
=

—=\
=
&
(Q,
[N
A~

RfpApe {721 iF FRAPRIEL TG £ F ik NPLEHRE P
FF oSG o AP EREEE o

FRINFHMAEFEL §

REREINFORT L AFED BB G EF TN BMIBFLIFEFR LT
BEZFEehpdR > Fd FRIMME2 S8 2 PP RABRL 2 EF L
EREE N AR A E L 2 R T U e

preb s A E IR R R IR A 1995 1981 £ 6 7 5 p R x g2 Higir(TH
'_f;; H )RR ER é}&ﬁpkiz;r%iﬁg»’}ﬁﬁ7ﬁ,zlpgﬁ TAREST
J('r?fﬁ- FEETR VA E2pMMRBRE iR v F Wl o

LR LR R LRSS

S E S RS L PR RS P S RS

“d\

B2 fEly » T EHF- B Q‘Waimﬁﬁﬂ*oﬂwﬁﬁ-iv'ﬁ\ﬂﬁ
vﬂﬂwﬁhﬂoAW%Twr%ﬂwsétﬂw4éﬁ oﬁﬁizﬂ;ﬁﬁ%\zﬂ:’i
FEIE A BAEPERNHN G AP ITERS AL TS 2 FME - 2 FRMET
RORIEHASE T ARFH LA FRE RS L LB EHARL R F2
ERATORTARLIES > AP ARRRFTE AL ML LS G A
FeRGEEGEIHETE IR ELAPMMEREEAEE % o

RS REPEREFA  APN ALY B AR L L 2
ﬁ’-p

d ﬂWI?%Hﬁﬂéiﬁkn Fi i %,]%ﬁkﬁqrﬁé%ﬁ &

19



?g:o EZPNEA2FRELZLGT R RATH HRNEBEE FHT A
EE S AN S A I D E N A LE et TR
e R AP #Eﬁ?mF\ TIEF > MR ERBDAPARS > L3 AL P fpeh
Ff;{']‘i%

2 —l\
(m\ﬂr

o AT gﬂﬁﬁmggﬁ\ggﬁﬁig?ﬁkﬁww%%mAWﬁo

o PP EZAPES HETFRINFPR Y 2 FFEY §VAHZGEE B
SEAFRTBAM TSR LFHAEPFT LY LS AL HFRA -
FAPRZILESN IR AP FAAPFEL Y AMMFEZ MR Y R
mﬁﬁ.%ﬁiﬁﬁilﬁé’?@ﬁﬂwﬁ%i°“wﬁ%i{£*ﬁﬁ$
2P RBELAPEE R ARFEAFRTRERASL EEFRSY o

o FREMWMLZ B -MFPNF o o RBFEEMFLT AETT Z\'kmfiﬁi
TERFEF NI BT S

O HRTA APEFANPEAM AP PREPETEIEDAPER ¢ 7
ﬁ—fl’ﬁﬁpﬁ&?\ YFB);'?IFLF\ 4:3';_!' 2 TP R ’i°

REXHEBE g SRS EAPMILR FHR R FL
ARG S EMIENA] A ¢ REER G AEEE § 7 A EL A
& I’,—'—'r)\—Eg ‘ﬁ"ﬁl

PricewaterhouseCoopers
LM g R

3k

2023 # 17" 20 p

20



B 4 £ (JPMorgan India Fund)

£33 2022 % 9% 30 p Zpfaa kit (2R % 440 1)

7 A

BiFI 4

Rl 55 T AR
e S Ve ]
e Ay
T

LR BB

A
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F

™

¢

kR

M i e T AR
Bow A
Jis 1 i
R T E e

2022 2021

ESE ESE
61,754,261 38,861,805
4,249,966 2,225,791
414,270 3,394,531

- 366,675
569,837,057 728,511,295
46,680 1,329,388
636,302,234 774,689,485
2,098,682 -
2,471,309 12,300,203
13,415,887 30,347,257
989,558 1,147,072
18,975,436 43,794,532
617,326,798 730,894,953
617,326,798 730,894,953
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B R 4 £ (JPMorgan India Fund)

£312022£97 30 p 2L FEL (W2 KM ¥ 440 F)

2022 2021
ESE ESE

T >
EEFE A RE D) F (91,578,233) 323,899,930
LA~ 8,116,363 10,200,815
%A A 103,135 25,753
e (1,243,093) (528,889)
(84,601,828) 333,597,609

F: #
3 9,953,009 11,249,343
T AR 726,001 890,454
ek y 320,086 380,192
wEZAEY 198,763 220,016
wE T 184,480 206,109
€3 ﬁ*aﬁf * 71,505 56,505
PESREE ?‘éﬂRﬁZ-%’f * 46,012 166,025
o 16,380 16,450
Er fi] & 5:%')2’;5’3 * 3,359 7,111
Hisga@sgr 20,455 10,040
11,540,050 13,202,245
o (EER )1 E (96,141,878) 320,395,364
. 6,502,134 (29,661,153)

USRS 2 TN

R2LEFT AR A () (89,639,744) 290,734,211
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B+2p »(p f)& & (JPMorgan Japan (Yen) Fund)

£32022% 9% 30 p 2 MibkREg (F2 KM 5 500 F)

7 A

LTI &

Rl 55 T AR
Ll &V
AR &
BT

ES AR R e
RTA

PR

EW AR KR
Bt sk BT
R R
A s

L R
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G ALETR)
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¥

FivivEess L
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2022 2021
P [71'000 P [{1'000
2,754,940 563,047
- 135,541

108,646 1,527,942
73,880 233,015
39,095,918 42,869,940
233,012 410,483
42,266,396 45,740,868
- 313,000

- 450,950

61,314 682,539
19,330 36,832
67,189 68,262
147,833 1,551,583
42,118,563 44,189,285
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B+2p »(p f)& & (JPMorgan Japan (Yen) Fund)

£312022 % 9% 30 pLiREHE R (F2mp43R2 % 500 7))

2022 2021
p [F1'000 A [f1'000
o
AT FARE SED)E (11,330,887) 8,345,851
USTFE SN 622,799 359,518
EE S N 81 71
e (40,381) (2,704)
Ao~ - 136
(10,748,388) 8,702,872
F: =
Rk 675,920 553,448
AR 36,011 33,024
WE R TR 14,792 11,641
2 h A A 13,460 13,074
R R 12,618 10,620
Bl 2,007 1,739
gE g 1,531 2,740
2 EE % ERET 716 904
Er ] 2 AU B R ¥ 370 449
HgEe 1,734 633
759,159 628,272
AFEFEL)IE (11,507,547) 8,074,600
A &
FlA 7 (113) (281)
(g4 )4 E (11,507,660) 8,074,319
i (61,930) (35,679)
FI > R E 2 M~
RLEFTAH A () (11,569,590) 8,038,640
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B33 it i £ (JPMorgan Korea Fund)

£32022 9% 30 p 2 MibRkRE: (Fe KL 5 529 F)

FA

BiFI 4
RS T AR
S8 R

BT

FIL 2 86 ficsot
RTA

R

M i e T AR
Bow g

2022 2021

ESE ESE
1,129,364 6,207,930
527,272 1,238,673
435,719 1,733,811
142,701,547 241,205,366
316 219
144,794,218 250,385,999
410,613 484,707
671,743 2,085,036
287,752 430,565
1,370,108 3,000,308
143,424,110 247,385,691
143,424,110 247,385,691
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B3 i & (JPMorgan Korea Fund)

#3 20229 30p 2

EFE (FX R M2 5 5297)

2022 2021
ERES ERES
R
ARTFE A EE &EDE (98,802,341) 75,615,172
A~ 4,883,708 4,503,588
R SR 4,278 2,440
b g A (278,932) (275,335)
H @ 2,959 3,797
(94,190,328) 79,849,662
F: *
Rk 3,232,383 3,823,463
Th A A 481,366 1,124,288
ek y 195,067 261,769
W R AL R 94,832 116,909
R Y 72,405 82,503
€3+ ﬁ%’% * 35,105 24,864
B 16,450 16,660
A % EIRET 6,123 6,857
C RIS 2,586 4,408
i gEp 12,416 6,794
4,148,733 5,468,515
EYFHFL)E (98,339,061) 74,381,147
pAFE A &
R - (79)
B (I )1 F (98,339,061) 74,381,068
i (1,210,912) (991,345)
FIIL 2 OEH T > oF
R2ZEFT AR A (F) (99,549,973) 73,389,723
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B1E %d r £ 4 (JPMorgan Malaysia Fund)

£32022 9% 30 p 2 MibkREg (F2 K2 5 549 T)

7 A

LTI &

Rl 55 T AR
Ll &V
AR &
BT

ISRy RTES

BT A

kR

T i e T AR
Bow A
B A

fR( é;}«;ﬁﬁ;?ﬁﬁ»ﬁ

G ALETR)

2022 2021

ESE ESE
1,642,671 754,027
135,579 285,557
21,139 58,238
17,619 75,752
39,984,982 52,545,074
320,021 300,938
42,122,011 54,019,586
192,724 60,362
88,627 232,159
96,806 122,989
378,157 415,510
41,743,854 53,604,076
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B1E %d r £ 4 (JPMorgan Malaysia Fund)

£3 2022 9% 30p 2

S FE (B Ridr2 5 549
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2022 2021
i = ESE
o »
EALT R BT BT B F (10,538,354) 3,683,473
IS IFFPN 1,809,494 2,227,210
EE SR 436 26
i k(4 4 ) E (100,711) 1,212
Ao~ 6 -
(8,829,129) 5,911,921
F: 3
R 743,202 830,539
R 85,206 95,103
2 h A A 63,262 71,147
24T R 33,036 30,936
R 27,849 30,182
THE 16,380 16,380
gE g 10,805 25,060
ez L EIRG D 5,416 6,857
C TR 2,272 3,705
His Y83 » 5,592 3,401
993,020 1,113,310
EYEEF L) E (9,822,149) 4,798,611
ZETE PN
FILF (27) (16)
i (d54 )15 (9,822,176) 4,798,595
it (7,087) (10,683)
FL O R 2 R~ 9
R2ZEFT AR (F) (9,829,263) 4,787,912
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BRI ¥ %X A4 (JPMorgan Pacific Securities Fund)

£32022 9% 30 p 2 MibRRE (Fe KMEFEL S TT1T)
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M5k T AR
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T 1 fLax
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PG ALEFTR)

FIvEvEegEg 4

EFTA

2022 2021

ESE ESE
1,412,850 11,813,290

- 908,248

524,604 4,183,226
283,468 705,447
530,214,854 957,483,740
1,058,968 1,416,108
533,494,744 976,510,059
- 8,299,348

836,929 1,339,982
2,371,133 43,530

- 817,916

844,566 1,439,915
4,052,628 11,940,691
529,442,116 964,569,368
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BRI ¥ %X A4 (JPMorgan Pacific Securities Fund)

£312022£97 30 p L FEIFEL (F2RMELE TT1F)

2022 2021
ESE ESE
T >
EEFE A RE D) F (313,817,690) 173,307,078
AT~ 11,413,541 12,565,817
EE S N 8,303 19,378
b R & (835,133) (277,557)
Hi gz 14,721 3,432
(303,216,258) 185,618,148
F: #
"F? Eﬁ‘—’_%"’f 11,471,556 13,980,556
T AR 697,869 1,078,617
1,5-’;? s !ﬁﬁ?"f * 307,340 401,341
ek g~ %’!’T 242,442 310,810
1,5-? ﬁ‘—@ﬁ?"f * 209,915 251,394
g 42,505 27,505
FEE L EPRGE P 27,994 47,771
Gt 16,940 16,940
Er fi] 2 5:%’)’1?’3 * 5,146 7,279
Hisga@sgr 19,883 7,988
13,041,590 16,130,201
EYEEF L) E (316,257,848) 169,487,947
PAFE= &
14 gﬁf * (5,950) (6,068)
fw(dF L)1 E (316,263,798) 169,481,879
. (444,423) (2,404,087)
FI >R E 2 R o
K2 EFTAH ) (F) (316,708,221) 167,077,792
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BRxTFEHAHE AL (JPMorgan Pacific Technology Fund)

£32022 9% 30 p 2 MibkREg (Fe K25 798 )

7 A
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FIivivEedFy Lz
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2022 2021
ESE ESE
29,957,974 47,019,127
3,115,644 4,267,815
436,083 12,735,397
492,618 22,024,199
685,167,011 1,379,065,249
697,502 956,337
719,866,832 1,466,068,124
3,474,451 7,147 541
3,731,303 615,080
1,083,039 2,087,340
8,288,793 9,849,961
711,578,039 1,456,218,163
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BRxTFEHAHE AL (JPMorgan Pacific Technology Fund)

£312022 % 9% 30 P LIFEHE R (F2 3R L % 798

F)

2022 2021
E E
o >
AT FARE SED)E (615,194,689) (72,081,717)
A ~ 11,592,157 8,800,389
EE U 96,390 76,362
bR 4 (3,686,141) (494,732)
(607,192,283) (63,699,698)
F: 3
3L g 16,268,717 16,122,239
2 h A A 2,746,776 2,739,062
ER- RN 459,440 455,423
Fiek i %% 389,141 628,364
WE T 302,552 292,837
R L ERD 26,259 33,850
T 17,080 17,080
gy 12,305 39,142
=S AP 5,970 8,928
Hu gy 23,526 16,639
20,251,766 20,353,564
EYEFA (627 ,444,049) (84,053,262)
pAES A
flaLs (1,596) (40,641)
Fh 3 % (627,445,645) (84,093,903)
i (1,860,556) (1,351,118)
FlR > R d 2 W AT
R2ZEFTARS (629,306,201) (85,445,021)

47



R e ¥

20225973 30 p AP EdEd ¢ R

B bR
REFATEPRAL(TH T ARE )T

iR 4 2 B4

14

A FPE AR EPPATARL (B Y KM FZ $ 798578207 ) ¢ 2

o #3 2022 % 97" 30 p iR IRL

. *ﬁ&%%i%@ﬁﬁ%;

o WERRAFIVIVHIFFIAZEFTARIFL

o & }i\,:‘;é\\m;%/,, ¥4, %

o MR E LR ¢ FEL AL E U RP TR e

AP A

AR E AR A kIR A B €3 o € (‘HKICPA”) % i 2 4 ik M43 4R & 1R
(‘HKFRSs”) £ @22 2 ol 23 A4 £302022 2 9% 30 p ok chpd#k 0 ~ P72
YRR i

A2 AH

AR A B g N §F T 2 A B AP R ("HKSAS™)H 17 A 0 A ik gt R
Bp2FaiapRse gREPFLFEREE- HAP

AP AP T s APEE T SAPARLARER Y DAH -

) el e
A hh g AR GPE S GFFLE LR AR
Bl ) P RETRE Rkt =

e TR
A bz g pam  (THIFENP VHASFTAEF o HET N A RR
SEEPTR( ML L B AR -

48



&

4L >

e >
il

P w

Ex

&
i
5.

)

NPHPARFEL AL LT e RHEB TR AP R EE RN

SENPOMBREREL AP R R AP 2 ARG HE B
FTREMBFLAAPAPZRTLTF L7 - R0 & ad
P

ot e
1%
=

s %
(o
=l
14
.
I8
&l
ud
=

—=\
=
&
(Q,
[N
A~

RypAipEe {721 iF, FRAPRIEL TG £ 23 F ik NP EHRE P
FF oot e 0 ARG RRLEA o

FRINFHMAEFEL §

REREINFORT L AFED BB G EF TN BMIBFLIFEFR LT
BEZFEehpdR > Fd FRIMME2 S8 2 PP RABRL 2 EF L
EREE N AR A E L 2 R T U e

g A F RN A A AR A 445 1997 £ 8 7 14 p e g2 B (T
Ty B ANEERS DI EIRERLIA ¢4 2Rz 3844
SR(TATET TR ) E ZAPM MG E Lt % -

AP gLy E
AR R H AR L AT AR A s L E A A it BE
W2 gl > T EF - g‘waimﬁﬁﬁ*oﬂwﬁﬁ-iv-ﬁ\ﬂﬂ
vﬂﬂwﬁhﬂoAW%Twr%ﬂwsétﬂw4éﬁ oﬁﬁizﬂ;ﬁﬁ%\zﬂ:’i
BB BAPRENRFAPLITHFR A2 EXAFFTME - 2 FRET
ORI A FT RGN LR B L EFERPMF LR 2
EARTORTARIES B APTRLRITE AR L HENEE ARG A
TeRREROEIEE §TRHSEE L APHMIEHE AR B -

“d\

RS REPEREFA  APN ALY B AR L L 2
ﬁ’-p

d ﬂWI?%Hﬁﬂéiﬁkn Fi i %,]%ﬁkﬁqrﬁé%ﬁ &

w



?g:o EZPHNEA2FREZLGT R RAEH HRNEBEE FHT A
EE S AN S A I D E N A LE et TR
e R AP #Eﬁ?mF\ TIEF > MR ERBDAPARS > L3 AL P fpeh
Ff;{']‘i%

2 —l\
(m\ﬂr

o AT gﬂﬁﬁmggﬁ\ggﬁﬁig?ﬁkﬁww%%mAWﬁo

o PP EZAPES HETFRINFPR Y 2 FFEY §VAHZGEE B
SEAFRTBAM TSR LFHAEPFT LY LS AL HFRA -
FAPRZILESN IR AP FAAPFEL Y AMMFEZ MR Y R
mﬁﬁ.%ﬁiﬁaizﬁé’?@&ﬂWﬁ%ioﬂWﬁii{£%§ﬁ$
2P RBELAPEE R ARFEAFRTRERASL EEFRSY o

o FREMWMLZ B -MFPNF o o RBFEEMFLT AETT Z\'kmfiﬁi
TERFEF NI BT S

O HRTA APEFANPEAM AP PREPETEIEDAPER ¢ 7
ﬁ—fl’ﬁﬁpﬁ&?\ YFB);'?IFLF\ 4:3';_!' 2 TP R ’i°

REXHEBE g SRS EAPMILR FHR R FL
ARG S EMIENA] A ¢ REER G AEEE § 7 A EL A
& I’,—'—'r)\—Eg ‘ﬁ"ﬁl

PricewaterhouseCoopers
LM g R

3k

2023 # 17" 20 p

50



BiEEF A & (JPMorgan Philippine Fund)

£32022 9% 30 p 2 MibRkRE (Fe KL S 827 F)

7 A

BiFI 4
RS T AR
a8 R AT
R

LR BB A

BT A

kR

T i e T AR
[/ R Evei]
B AR

(3 é:}éﬁfi?‘ﬁ‘?’ﬂ

G ALETR)

2022 2021
ESE ESE
914,212 779,210

- 434,164

10,056 119,139
30,478,086 44,286,799
6,868 15
31,409,222 45,619,327
69,321 92,657
54,241 648,301
76,838 100,306
200,400 841,264
31,208,822 44,778,063
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BiEEF A & (JPMorgan Philippine Fund)

£3 2022 9% 30p 2

EFE (X RMIR2 % 827 F)

2022 2021
ESE ESE
R
ERFT R pTA MR SE)E (10,702,727) 8,304,235
LA~ 829,052 785,015
EE LN 284 268
kR A (77,650) (61,144)
Ao~ 3 -
(9,951,038) 9,028,374
F: =
By 621,034 708,373
TERA 134,812 185,337
CREEIE I 68,271 80,117
IR S Sl - 34,728 32,353
R Y 24,339 26,958
THE 16,520 16,310
i 9,005 20,668
E R EIREY 7,463 12,807
B & e H 2,257 3,623
B gy 4,981 3,027
923,410 1,089,573
EYEQ@FR)HIE (10,874,448) 7,938,801
[ ZEZ 2NN
FIAF (35) (26)
Fn(EFL)HE (10,874,483) 7,938,775
i (194,952) (162,433)
FI >R E 2 R o
R2ZEFTAH ) (B2) (11,069,435) 7,776,342
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BRTEFAEAE (R LARRRS L > LA 4)

JPMorgan Sustainable Infrastructure Fund (Formerly known as

JPMorgan Global Property Income Fund)

£33 2022 % 9% 30 p Zpfaa kit (BRI % 847 |)
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2022 2021
ESE ESE
2,469,086 449,941
208,670 1,821
60,753 94,786
61,461,737 17,337,116
72,765 48,846
64,273,011 17,932,510
399,288 38,344
112,102 135,021
637,703 8,141
80,595 52,483
1,229,688 233,089
63,043,323 17,698,521
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JPMorgan Sustainable Infrastructure Fund (Formerly known as JPMorgan

Global Property Income Fund)

£3 202297 30p 23
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2022 2021
ESE ESE
(12,937,235) 2,936,548
745,317 553,905
95,817 20,560
3,000 5
482 -
(12,092,619) 3,511,018
323,021 224,115
92,989 39,280
92,460 6,857
40,015 34,001
20,234 18,687
14,724 8,970
11,200 9,640
8,338 3,579
5,005 17,778
9,103 2,394
617,089 365,301
(12,709,708) 3,145,717
(799,895) (712,706)
(13,509,603) 2,433,011
(167,739) (108,909)
(13,677,342) 2,324,102
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£32022% 9% 30 p 2 MibkRE (F2 KM 5 873 )

2022 2021
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R R 230,674,358 262,678,188
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These reports do not constitute an offer of units in any funds forming the subject matter of this document.
Subscriptions are only valid if made on the basis of the current explanatory memoranda (or equivalent),
supplemented by the most recent financial reports, if available.

Notice to U.K. residents: This document is only directed to persons believed by JPMorgan Asset
Management (U.K.) Limited to be investment professionals as defined in Article 19 of the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005, high net worth companies, unincorporated
associations and other persons as defined in Article 49 of that Order and to others to whom it can lawfully be
distributed or given, inside the United Kingdom, without approval by an authorised person. Persons who do
not have professional experience in matters relating to investments should not rely on it and any other person
should not act on such information.

This document is issued in the U.K. by JPMorgan Asset Management (U.K.) Limited and has been approved
solely for the purposes of section 21(2)(b) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 by JPMorgan
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JPMorgan ASEAN Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Investment Portfolio
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Fair
value
Holding us$
Listed/Quoted Investments (96.9%)
(1) Equities (97.0%)

Indonesia (24.0%)
Adaro Minerals Indonesia 14,473,700 1,710,895

Astra International 57,479,200 25,007,368
Bank Central Asia 151,469,400 85,047,669
Bank Mandiri Persero 46,997,700 29,089,038

Bank Negara Indonesia 21,383,000 12,603,016
Bank Rakyat Indonesia

Persero 157,482,120 46,435,378
Charoen Pokphand

Indonesia 22,587,500 8,380,849
Kalbe Farma 110,551,800 13,285,818
Merdeka Copper Gold 33,699,000 8,719,360

Mitra Keluarga Karyasehat 32,829,900 6,252,288
Telkom Indonesia Persero 127,182,400 37,250,600
Unilever Indonesia 20,990,400 6,657,930

Malaysia (11.0%)
CIMB Group Holdings Bhd 18,110,025 20,035,460

CTOS Digital Bhd 20,327,300 5,874,182
Dialog Group Bhd 6,707,400 2,878,526
Farm Fresh Bhd 11,974,000 4,157,460
Genting Bhd 2,737,400 2,644,717
Genting Malaysia Bhd 14,338,400 8,627,159
IHH Healthcare 6,796,500 8,647,692
Inari Amertron Bhd 4,110,700 2,233,980
Kuala Lumpur Kepong

(Malaysian) Berhad 894,300 3,992,239
Malayan Banking Bhd 4,791,602 8,866,065

Malaysia Airports Holdings 3,718,900 4,491,231
Malaysian Pacific Industries 585,400 3,628,293
MR DIY Group M Sdn Bhd 23,107,200 9,816,947
Petronas Chemicals Group

Bhd 2,003,700 3,625,414
Press Metal Aluminium

Holdings 4,005,700 3,489,978
Public Bank Bhd 39,484,000 36,018,400

Philippines (6.0%)
Bank of The Philippine

Islands 4,596,930 7,017,914
BDO Unibank Inc 500,180 951,302
Century Pacific Food Inc 9,695,000 3,720,896
Globe Telecom Inc 306,418 10,610,295
International Container

Terminal Services Inc 911,200 2,434,011
SM Investments

Corporation 1,222,890 15,123,160
SM Prime Holdings Inc 33,719,200 17,312,544
Universal Robina 6,899,280 13,416,084

Singapore (32.3%)
Capitaland Integrated

Commercial Trust REIT 3,994,600 5,345,064
Capitaland Investment

Ltd/SI 11,064,520 26,757,185
Capland Ascendas REIT 3,075,872 5,766,322
DBS Group Holdings Ltd 4,353,484 101,305,201
Grab Holdings Ltd 4,355,982 11,456,233
Keppel Corp Ltd 1,491,200 7,222,691

% of
net
assets

0.2

73
25
1.1

4.0

0.7
1.1
0.7
0.5
3.2
0.6

1.7
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0.3
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0.7
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0.3
0.8
0.4
0.3
0.8

0.3

0.3
3.1

0.6
0.1
0.3
0.9

0.2

NN
S ow

0.5

23
0.5
8.7
1.0
0.6

(Continued)

Holding

Oversea-Chinese Banking
Corp Ltd 5,406,440
Sea Ltd ADR 694,794

Sembcorp Industries Limited 1,855,100
Singapore Exchange Limited 3,034,600
Singapore Technologies

Engineering Limited 6,749,900
Singapore

Telecommunications Ltd 10,711,100
United Overseas Bank Ltd 3,390,468
Wilmar International Ltd 5,035,400

Thailand (21.3%)
Airports of Thailand PCL 14,911,900

Airports of Thailand PCL 122,500

NVDR
Asset World Corp PCL 54,416,200
Bangkok Bank PCL 2,637,200
Bangkok Bank PCL NVDR 65,800
Bangkok Dusit Medical

Services PCL 23,449,600
Bangkok Dusit Medical

Services PCL NVDR 447,200
Bangkok Expressway and

Metro PCL 60,552,600
Bangkok Expressway and

Metro PCL NVDR 961,700
Central Pattana Public

Company Ltd 10,221,600
CP All PCL 7,486,800
CP All PCL NVDR 157,600
Delta Electronics (Thailand)

PCL 766,700
Energy Absolute PCL 1,658,100
Gulf Energy Development

PCL 4,531,200
Intouch Holding PCL 7,637,700
JMT Network Services PCL 3,974,832
Kasikornbank PCL 2,565,100
Plan B Media PCL 15,824,179
PTT Exploration and

Production PCL 4,160,800
PTT Global Chemical PCL 2,736,700
PTT PCL 9,751,700
SCB X PCL 3,189,500
SCG Packaging PCL 7,739,300
SCG Packaging PCL NVDR 171,200
Siam Cement PCL 650,200
Star Petroleum Refining PCL 8,168,300
Stark Corp PCL 40,918,000
Thai Beverage PCL 7,329,200
TOA Paint Thailand PCL 4,164,700
Total Access Communication

PCL 3,712,800
WHA Corp PCL 88,755,400
WHA Corp PCL NVDR 2,498,400

Vietnam (2.4%)
Corp for Financing and

Promoting Technology 1,065,040
Hoa Phat Group JSC 2,668,800

Fair % of

value net

US$ assets
44,573,270 3.8
38,943,204 3.3
3,981,956 0.3
20,006,492 1.7
16,840,645 1.4
19,856,106 1.7
61,812,422 53
13,475,459 1.2
28,661,526 2.4
235,452 0.0
8,367,284 0.7
9,543,420 0.8
238,115 0.0
18,339,427 1.6
349,745 0.0
14,768,927 1.3
234,561 0.0
17,681,850 1.5
11,164,700 1.0
235,021 0.0
13,293,261 1.1
3,879,303 0.3
6,306,681 0.5
14,730,718 1.3
7,192,001 0.6
9,792,534 0.8
2,936,619 0.3
17,704,358 1.5
3,010,950 0.3
8,789,973 0.8
8,793,955 0.8
10,669,236 0.9
236,013 0.0
5,619,438 0.5
2,295,440 0.2
4,425913 0.4
3,064,687 0.3
3,643,560 0.3
4,478,590 0.4
8,282,582 0.7
233,149 0.0
3,592,530 0.3
2,370,776 0.2



JPMorgan ASEAN Fund

Annual report for the
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Investment Portfolio (Continued)
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Fair % of
value net
Holding US$ assets
Vietnam (Continued)
JSC Bank for Foreign
Trade of Vietnam 2,743,249 8,414,240 0.7
Military Commercial Joint
Stock Bank 5,680,080 4,760,176 0.4
Petrovietnam Drilling and
Well Services Joint
Stock Co 3,449,700 2,862,102 0.3
PHU Nhuan Jewelry JSC 1,251,900 5,612,960 0.5
1,134,208,181  97.0
(I1) Derivatives (-0.1%)
Forward foreign exchange
contracts (-0.1%) (771,480) (0.1)
Warrants (0.0%)
Plan B Media Wts
13/01/2025 1,707,639 43,008 0.0
JMT Network Services
Wits 27/12/2024 238,921 79,176 0.0
(649,296) (0.1)
Total Listed/Quoted Investments 1,133,558,885 96.9
Unlisted/Unquoted Investments (0.0%)
() Equities (0.0%)
Singapore (0.0%)
Fibrechem Technologies
Ltd 27,671,000 - -
Total Unlisted/Unquoted Investments - -
Total Investments 1,133,558,885 96.9
Other net assets 36,591,239 3.1
Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable units at 30 September
2022 100.0

1,170,150,124

Total investments, at cost 1,197,368,427

Statement of Movements in Portfolio Holdings
For the year ended 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

% holdings

of net assets

2022 2021
Listed/Quoted Investments
Equities
Singapore 323 29.7
Indonesia 24.0 20.6
Thailand 213 23.7
Malaysia 11.0 11.9
Philippines 6.0 8.9
Vietnam 24 2.6
Australia - 0.4
Derivatives
Warrants 0.0 0.0
Forward foreign exchange contracts (0.1) (0.0)
Total Listed/Quoted Investments 96.9 97.8
Unlisted/Unquoted Investments
Equities
Singapore - -
Derivatives
Warrants - -
Total Unlisted/Unquoted Investments - -
Total Investments 96.9 97.8
Other net assets 3.1 22
Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at 30 September 100.0 100.0
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Details of Financial Derivative Instruments
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

(a) Forward foreign exchange contracts
As at 30 September 2022, the Fund held outstanding
forward foreign exchange contracts with details as shown

in Note 10.

(b) Warrants

As at 30 September 2022, the Fund held warrants with
details as shown in Note 10.

Information on Exposure Arising from Financial
Derivative Instruments
For the year ended 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

The lowest, highest and average gross exposure arising from
the use of financial derivative instruments in the Fund for any
purpose as a proportion to the Fund’s total net asset value for
the year ended 30 September 2022.

2022

% of NAV

Lowest gross exposure -
Highest gross exposure 0.4
Average gross exposure 0.1

The lowest, highest and average net exposure arising from the
use of financial derivative instruments in the Fund for non-
hedging purpose as a proportion to the Fund’s total net asset
value for the year ended 30 September 2022.

2022

% of NAV

Lowest net exposure -
Highest net exposure 0.4
Average net exposure 0.1

*# There are some share classes with currency hedging features. For the
avoidance of doubt, their exposures are not included in the calculation
of the gross exposure of the Fund portfolio.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 September 2022

Assets

Current assets

Cash at banks

Amounts due from brokers

Amounts receivable on
allotment

Derivatives [Note 4(I)(a), 10]

Investments

Dividend and other accounts
receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Amounts due to brokers

Amounts payable on
redemption

Derivatives [Note 4(I)(a), 10]

Other accounts payable

Liabilities (excluding net
assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units)

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units [Note 3]

Approved by the Trustee and the Manager on 20 January 2023

Signed By:

2022 2021

uss$ Us$
35,841,837 33,818,406
10,894,306 5,018,853
1,013,471 2,487,023
259,220 310,087

1,134,208,181 1,336,495,417

1,267,398 1,186,579

1,183,484,413 1,379,316,365

7,689,110 4,031,418
2,955,027 5,634,199
908,516 616,681
1,781,636 2,015,611
13,334,289 12,297,909

1,170,150,124 1,367,018,456

Bank of East Asia (Trustees) Limited, Trustee

JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited, Manager

The notes on pages 6 to 22 form part of these financial statements.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 September 2022

Income

Net (losses)/gains on
investments and derivatives
[Note 5]

Dividend income

Interest on deposits
[Note 7(h)]

Net foreign currency
exchange losses

Other income [Note 7(h)]

Expenses

Management fee [Note 7(d)]

Transaction costs [Note 7(h)]

Safe custody and bank
charges [Note 7(h)]

Registrar’s fee [Note 7(g)]

Trustee’s fee [Note 7(f)]

Auditor’s fee

Legal and professional
expenses

Printing and publication
expenses

Other operating expenses

Net operating (loss)/profit

Finance costs
Interest expense

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Taxation [Note 6]

(Decrease)/increase in net
assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units and total
comprehensive income

_4-

2022 2021
us$ Us$
(172,541,285) 329,672,356
34,715,443 36,062,589
88,884 30,973
(1,598,062) (978,511)
185 -
(139,334,835) 364,787,407
19,529,892 21,114,649
2,365,761 3,042,049
537,904 531,313
446,149 527,439
234,528 253,528
67,005 48,205

5,354 10,790

5,280 9,949

33,942 5,683
23,225,815 25,543,605
(162,560,650) 339,243,802
(783) -
(162,561,433) 339,243,802
(2,490,731)  (2,348,076)
(165,052,164) 336,895,726
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Units
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
uss$ us$
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units at the beginning of
the year 1,367,018,456 1,202,045,524
Allotment of redeemable
units [Note 3] 379,497,327 417,302,963
Redemption of redeemable
units [Note 3] (411,313,495) (589,225,757)
Net redemption (31,816,168) (171,922,794)

1,335,202,288 1,030,122,730

(Decrease)/increase in net
assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units and total
comprehensive income (165,052,164) 336,895,726

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units at the end of the
year 1,170,150,124 1,367,018,456

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022
uss$

Operating activities
Purchase of investments and

derivatives (890,512,979)
Proceeds from disposal of

investments and derivatives 918,359,985

2021
uss

(889,833,055)

1,050,178,619

Dividend received 34,645,186 37,516,734
Interest received 88,884 31,004
Trustee’s fee paid (236,921) (251,416)
Registrar’s fee paid (464,636) (541,573)
Transaction costs paid (2,341,155) (3,033,986)
Tax paid (2,490,731) (2,348,076)
Management fee paid (19,730,204)  (20,939,348)
Others (2,106,064) (1,641,296)
Net cash inflow from

operating activities 35,211,365 169,137,607
Financing activities
Interest paid (783) -
Receipts on allotment of

redeemable units 380,970,879 416,801,345
Payments on redemption of

redeemable units (413,992,667) (586,278,841)
Net cash outflow from

financing activities (33,022,571) (169,477,496)
Increase/(decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents 2,188,794 (339,889)
Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of the year 33,818,406 34,098,513
Exchange (losses)/gains on

cash and cash equivalents (165,363) 59,782
Cash and cash equivalents

at the end of the year 35,841,837 33,818,406

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash at banks 35,841,837

33,818,406

The notes on pages 6 to 22 form part of these financial statements.

_5.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1

The Fund

JPMorgan ASEAN Fund (the “Fund”) was established under a Trust Deed dated 7 July 1983, as amended (the “Trust Deed”)
and is governed by the laws of Hong Kong. The Fund is authorized by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
(“SFC”).

The investment objective of the Fund is to enable investors to participate in a managed portfolio consisting primarily (i.e. at
least 70% of its total net asset value) of equity securities with significant assets in, or significant earnings derived from one or
more of the countries comprising the Association of South East Asian Nations.

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Manager may decide to issue separate classes (each a “Class”) whose assets will be
commonly invested but where a specific fee structure, currency or distribution policy may be applied. Each Class may have a
different charging structure with the result that the net asset value attributable to each Class may differ.

All unitholders’ rights with regard to the convening, voting or otherwise acting at any meeting of unitholders are the same.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) held at fair value through
profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires the Manager and the Trustee (the “Management”) to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the
Fund’s accounting policies.

Standards and amendments to existing standards effective from 1 October 2021

There are no standards or amendments to existing standards that are effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 October 2021 that have had a material impact on the Fund.

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 October 2021 and have not been early adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 October 2021, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to

have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.

(b) Investments and derivatives

Classification

The Fund classifies its investments and derivatives based on both the Fund’s business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed
and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that
information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions.

Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Fund makes short sales in which a borrowed security is sold in anticipation of a decline in the market value of that
security, or it may use short sales for various arbitrage transactions. Short sales are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

As such, the Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of investments and derivatives are accounted for on the trade date basis. Investments and
derivatives are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Realized and unrealized
gains and losses on investments and derivatives are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments
and derivatives are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments and derivatives have expired
or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are
based on last traded prices. When trading in the securities of an investee company is suspended, the investment is valued
at the Manager's estimate of its fair value. When trading of financial instruments in markets that are not considered to be
active, the financial instruments are valued based on quoted market prices, dealer/broker quotations or alternative pricing
sources supported by observable inputs.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are valued at the forward rates ruling at the valuation date. The differences between
the forward rates and the contract rates are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting period.
Securities borrowing

The Fund may enter into securities borrowing arrangements for short sale purposes. Short positions represent obligations
to deliver securities sold but not yet purchased, and are accounted for as investments and valued at their fair value.
Securities borrowed during the year are off-balance sheet transactions and are therefore not included in the investment
portfolio of the Fund. Collateral placed for the purpose of securities borrowed generally consist of cash collateral and are
included in the Statement of Financial Position separately.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expense

Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date with the corresponding foreign withholding tax recorded as an
expense and is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income on investments is accounted for as part of net gains/losses on investments and derivatives in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income on cash at banks and short-term deposits is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on
an effective interest basis.

Expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are costs incurred to acquire/dispose financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
They include fees and commissions paid to agents, brokers and dealers. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The Fund has adopted United States dollar as its functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.
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Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and cash equivalents are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within “Net foreign currency exchange gains/losses”. Foreign exchange gains and losses relating
to the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within “Net gains/losses on investments and derivatives”.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and bank deposits
with maturity of three months or less from the date of placing the deposits, net of certain short-term bank loans which the
Fund usually undertakes as overnight bank borrowings.

Amounts due from/to brokers

Amounts due from/to brokers represent receivables for investments and derivatives sold and payables for investments and
derivatives purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled by the end of the year.

These amounts are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date,
the Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization and default in payments are all considered
indicators that a loss allowance may be required.

Proceeds and payments on allotment and redemption of units

The net asset value per unit is computed for each dealing day. The price at which units are allotted or redeemed is
calculated by reference to the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the relevant dealing day in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed which may be different from the accounting policies stated in the
financial statements.

Units of the Fund are redeemable at the option of the holders of redeemable units and are classified as a financial liability
in the Statement of Financial Position which represents the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (or “net
asset value” or “net assets” or “NAV”) and is carried at the redemption amount that would be payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date if the holders of redeemable units exercised the right to redeem units of the Fund.

3 Number of units in issue and net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (per unit)

2022
AUD Hedged RMB Hedged

Class (acc) HKD Class (acc) Class (acc) USD Class (acc) USD Class C (acc)
Units Units Units Units Units

Number of units in issue:
At the beginning of the year 2,116,649.175 8,981,321.912 1,748,464.895  8,907,815.103 100.000
Total allotments 1,939,585.313 13,231,125.324 4,235940.112  2,252,824.162 -
Total redemptions (2,066,101.213)  (9,582,284.729)  (2,973,563.958) (2,503,923.611) -
At the end of the year 1,990,133.275 12,630,162.507 3,010,841.049  8,656,715.654 100.000
A$ HK$ CNY Us$ us$

Net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable
units 21,986,005 140,078,832 36,597,537  1,133,035,173 878

Net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 11.05 11.09 12.16 130.89 8.78
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AUD Hedged RMB Hedged
Class (acc) HKD Class (acc) Class (acc) USD Class (acc) USD Class C (acc)
Units Units Units Units Units

Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the year 2,491,5626.249 9,697,766.057 2,030,449.412 10,042,180.952 -

Total allotments 2,129,067.978 8,488,847.893 5,200,546.651 2,602,617.380 100.000
Total redemptions (2,503,945.052)  (9,205,292.038)  (5,482,531.168) (3,736,983.229) -
At the end of the year 2,116,649.175 8,981,321.912 1,748,464.895  8,907,815.103 100.000

A$ HK$ CNY uss$ uss$

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 27,041,779 112,621,720 23,955,247  1,329,304,992 992

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 12.78 12.54 13.70 149.23 9.92

4 Financial risk management
() Financial risk factors

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including market price risk, interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk

(i) Market price risk

The Fund'’s investments and derivatives are subject to the market price risk inherent in all investments and derivatives i.e.
the value of holdings may fall as well as rise. The Fund’s market risk is managed through (i) deliberate stocks selection,
and (ii) diversification of the investment portfolio in accordance with specific investment restrictions and guidelines.

The Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s market price sensitivity primarily through the Beta of the Fund on a regular
basis. Beta measures the statistical relationship between the return of the Fund and the relevant benchmark index chosen
by the Investment Manager.
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As at 30 September, the fair value of investments and derivatives and its estimated market sensitivity were as follows:

2022 2021
Fair value of % of Fair value of % of
investments net investments net
Listed/Quoted Investments us$ assets uss$ assets
Assets
Equities
- Singapore 377,342,250 32.3 405,887,799 29.7
- Indonesia 280,440,209 24.0 281,426,075 20.6
- Thailand 249,198,989 213 324,320,075 237
- Malaysia 129,027,743 11.0 161,878,445 11.9
- Philippines 70,586,206 6.0 121,829,742 8.9
- Others 27,612,784 2.4 41,153,281 3.0
1,134,208,181 97.0 1,336,495,417 97.8
Derivatives
- Forward foreign exchange contracts 137,036 0.0 74,769 0.0
- Warrants 122,184 0.0 235,318 0.0
259,220 0.0 310,087 0.0
1,134,467,401 97.0 1,336,805,504 97.8
Liabilities
Derivatives
- Forward foreign exchange contracts (908,516) (0.1) (616,681) (0.0)
Total Listed/Quoted Investments 1,133,558,885 96.9 1,336,188,823 97.8
Unlisted/Unquoted Investments
Assets
Equities
- Singapore - - - -
Derivatives
- Warrants - - - -
Total Unlisted/Unquoted Investments - - - -
Total Investments 1,133,558,885 96.9 1,336,188,823 97.8
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Also, refer to Note 10 for the exposures on derivatives.

% of reasonable Estimated
Relevant possible change impact on net
benchmark index of the relevant asset value
Net asset value for the Fund Beta benchmark index (Note****)
Us$ (Note*) (Note**) (Note***) us$
MSCI AC ASEAN 10/40 Net
[Before 1 December 2021,
As at 30 September 2022 1,170,150,124 MSCI AC ASEAN Net] 1.03 -11.8 (142,220,046)

As at 30 September 2021 1,367,018,456 MSCI AC ASEAN Net 1.04 +19.3 274,387,944

If the relevant benchmark index return was to move in the opposite direction, this would result in an opposite movement in
the net asset value of the Fund by the same amount, assuming all other variables that may impact the net asset value of
the Fund are held constant.

Note:

*  Relevant benchmark index for the Fund represents the relevant market index used by the Investment Manager in
monitoring the market price risk of the Fund.

** Beta measures the statistical relationship between the return of the Fund and the respective benchmark index over
the maximum of past 36 months, or the number of months since portfolio inception. For funds launched within a
period of less than 12 months, weekly returns of the Fund are used for calculating the Beta.

*** % of reasonable possible change is based on the actual historical change in the benchmark index in the past 12
months and does not include remote or “worst case” scenarios or “stress tests” nor represent the Investment
Manager’s forecast of the Fund’s future returns. For funds launched within a period of less than 12 months, actual
historical change in the benchmark index since the commencement of operations will be used to calculate the % of
reasonable possible change.

**** Estimated impact on net asset value of the Fund is calculated by applying the relevant Beta against the net asset
value of the Fund multiplied by the % of reasonable possible change of the relevant benchmark index, assuming all
other variables that may impact the net asset value of the Fund are held constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument or future cash flow will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates.

The table below summarizes the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities as at 30 September which expose it to the risk
associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates, categorized by remaining
maturity dates.

2022 2021

Less than 1 month Less than 1 month

uUs$ Us$

Cash at banks 35,841,837 33,818,406
Total interest sensitivity gap 35,841,837 33,818,406

Any cash and cash equivalents are placed/borrowed at short-term market interest rates and the Investment Manager
considers that the Fund is not subject to significant amount of risk due to the stable and low fluctuation in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates.

(iii) Currency risk

The Fund holds assets and liabilities denominated in a number of currencies HKFRS 7 considers the foreign exchange
exposure relating to non-monetary assets and liabilities to be a component of market price risk not currency risk. However,
the Investment Manager monitors the exposure to currency risk on all foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities
including both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities.

-11 -
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The Fund enters in some forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge some of its foreign currency exposures to maintain
limited exposure to non-US$ currencies. Refer to Note 10(a) for the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at
year end.

The table below summarizes the Fund’s exposure to currency risk as at 30 September together with the percentage of
reasonable possible change in foreign currencies and the estimated impact on net asset value of the Fund.

% of
reasonable Estimated
possible impact on
change net asset
us$ against US$ value
Net currency exposures (Note*) equivalent (Note*) us$
2022
Australian Dollar 14,173,771 -11.0 (1,559,115)
Chinese Yuan (Offshore) 5,102,258 -9.5 (484,715)
Hong Kong Dollar 632,713 -0.8 (5,062)
Indonesian Rupiah 280,440,209 -6.0 (16,826,413)
Malaysian Ringgit 130,177,794 -9.7 (12,627,246)
Philippine Peso 72,756,049 -13.0 (9,458,286)
Singapore Dollar 329,087,435 -5.4 (17,770,721)
Thai Baht 246,558,965 -10.3 (25,395,573)
Vietnamese Dong 30,388,060 -4.6 (1,397,851)
1,109,317,254 (85,524,982)
2021
Australian Dollar 24,889,297 +0.8 199,114
Chinese Yuan (Offshore) 3,685,013 +5.1 187,936
Hong Kong Dollar 1,666,394 -0.4 (6,666)
Indonesian Rupiah 282,095,223 +4.0 11,283,809
Malaysian Ringgit 162,535,979 -0.7 (1,137,752)
Philippine Peso 122,147,202 -5.0 (6,107,360)
Singapore Dollar 315,250,549 +0.6 1,891,503
Thai Baht 324,939,993 -6.3 (20,471,220)
Vietnamese Dong 39,296,007 +1.9 746,624
1,276,505,657 (13,414,012)

If the foreign currency fluctuations were to move in the opposite direction, this would result in an opposite movement in the
net asset value of the Fund by the same amount, assuming all other variables that may impact the net asset value of the
Fund are held constant.

Note:
*  Net currency exposures on assets and liabilities include both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities.

** % of reasonable possible change is based on the actual historical change in the respective currencies against the
functional currency of the Fund in the past 12 months and does not include remote or “worst case” scenarios or
“stress tests” nor represent the Investment Manager’s forecast of the Fund’s future returns.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not be able to pay amounts in full when due.

The Manager monitors credit risk with reference to a number of factors including history of default and the credit rating of
counterparties. The Manager considers the credit risk of other receivables such as amounts receivable on allotment,
amounts due from brokers or dividend and other accounts receivable, to be insignificant as the Fund has no default history
on such receivables in the past 5 years. Overall, the Manager considers the probability of default to be close to zero as
these instruments have a low risk of default and the Fund’s counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their contractual
obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognized based on 12-month expected credit
losses.

-12-
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The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 September 2022 and 2021 is the carrying amount of the financial assets as
shown in the Statement of Financial Position.

All transactions in investments and derivatives are settled on a delivery versus payment basis using approved brokers.
The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of investments and derivatives sold is only made when the Fund’s
custodian bank has received payment. For a purchase, payment is made once the investments and derivatives have been
received by the Fund’s custodian bank. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet the obligation.

The table below summarizes the credit rating of the banks/brokers/custodian which the Fund has placed the financial
assets as at 30 September.

2022 2021
Exposure to Exposure to
counterparties counterparties
us$ uss$
Bank balances
S&P(AA)/Moody’s(Aa)/FITCH(AA) 4,369,227 6,419,961
S&P(A)/Moody’s(A)/FITCH(A) 31,472,610 27,398,445
Derivatives issued by brokers
S&P(AA)/Moody’s(Aa)/FITCH(AA) 104,332 47,026
S&P(A)/Moody’s(A)/FITCH(A) 32,704 27,743
Investment and derivative balances with custodian
S&P(AA)/Moody’s(Aa)/FITCH(AA) 1,134,330,365 1,336,730,735

Liquidity risk

The Fund is exposed to daily redemption of units, the majority of its assets in investments are traded in an active market
which can be readily disposed of. The Manager may also limit the total number of units redeemed for the Fund on any
dealing day to 10% or more of the units in issue on any dealing day.

The Fund has the ability to enter into borrowing arrangements subject to the investment restrictions and guidelines.

The table below summarizes the Fund'’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
as at 30 September to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2022 2021

Less than 1 month 1 to 12 months Less than 1 month 1 to 12 months
Us$ us$ Us$ Us$
Amounts due to brokers 7,689,110 - 4,031,418 -
Amounts payable on redemption 2,955,027 - 5,634,199 -
Derivatives 908,516 - 616,678 3

Other accounts payable 1,781,636 - 2,015,611

Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units 1,170,150,124 - 1,367,018,456 -
Total financial liabilities 1,183,484,413 - 1,379,316,362 3

The Investment Manager manages the Fund’s liquidity risk by investing in investments that the Investment Manager
expects to liquidate normally within 1 month and making short-term bank borrowing to meet the total financial liabilities.

Offsetting and amounts subject to master netting arrangements and similar agreements

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Fund was subject to master netting arrangements with certain derivative
counterparties.

In the event of default, the Fund and its counterparties have the option to settle transactions on net basis. An event of
default may include failure to pay or deliver, breach of agreement or bankruptcy.

-13-
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The following tables summarize the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting, master netting
arrangements and similar agreements as at 30 September by types of financial instruments.

Gross amounts of Related amounts subject to

recognized master netting arrangements and

financial assets similar agreements net off against
presented in the

Statement of Financial Collateral and
Financial Position Instruments  margin deposits Net amount
uss$ Us$ us$ us$
2022
Assets
Derivatives 137,036 (47,422) - 89,614
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 137,036 (47,422) - 89,614
Gross amounts of Related amounts subject to
recognized master netting arrangements and
financial liabilities similar agreements net off against
presented in the
Statement of Financial Collateral and
Financial Position Instruments margin deposits Net amount
us$ us$ Us$ us$
Liabilities
Derivatives 908,516 (47,422) - 861,094
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 908,516 (47,422) - 861,094
Gross amounts of Related amounts subject to
recognized master netting arrangements and
financial assets similar agreements net off against
presented in the
Statement of Financial Collateral and
Financial Position Instruments margin deposits Net amount
uss$ uss$ us$ uss$
2021
Assets
Derivatives 72,202 (11,540) - 60,662
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 72,202 (11,540) - 60,662
Gross amounts of Related amounts subject to
recognized master netting arrangements and
financial liabilities similar agreements net off against
presented in the
Statement of Financial Collateral and
Financial Position Instruments margin deposits Net amount
uss$ uss$ uss$ uss
2021
Liabilities
Derivatives 605,396 (11,540) - 593,856
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 605,396 (11,540) - 593,856
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Capital risk management

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units which is subject to
allotments and redemptions of redeemable units. The Fund’s objective for capital management is to provide returns and
long-term capital growth for unitholders.

In order to maintain the capital structure, the Management performs the following:

- Monitor allotment and redemption activities relative to the liquid assets.

- To protect the interest of unitholders and in exceptional circumstances, the Manager may also limit the total number of
units redeemed for the Fund on any dealing day to 10% or more of the units in issue on any dealing day.

- Monitor fund investment guidelines and restrictions, in accordance with the constitutional documents, to maintain
sufficient liquidity through diversification.

Fair value estimation

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Management considers that the carrying values of assets and liabilities were
reasonable approximations of their fair value.

HKFRS 13 requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The table below summarizes the Fund’s investments and derivatives (by class) within the fair value hierarchy measured at
fair value as at 30 September:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Listed/Quoted Investments uss$ us$ Uss$ us$
2022
Assets
Equities 1,134,208,181 - - 1,134,208,181
Derivatives - 259,220 - 259,220
Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss  1,134,208,181 259,220 - 1,134,467,401
Liabilities
Derivatives - 908,516 - 908,516

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss - 908,516 - 908,516

Unlisted/Unquoted Investments
2022

Assets
Equities - - - -

Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - - - -
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Listed/Quoted Investments uss$ Us$ Uss$ us$
2021
Assets
Equities 1,336,495,417 - - 1,336,495,417
Derivatives - 310,087 - 310,087
Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss  1,336,495,417 310,087 - 1,336,805,504
Liabilities
Derivatives - 616,681 - 616,681

5

6

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss - 616,681 - 616,681

Unlisted/Unquoted Investments
2021
Assets

Equities - - - -
Derivatives - - - -

Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - - - -

Investments, whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within level 1,
include active listed equities and exchange traded derivatives. The Fund does not adjust the quoted price for these
instruments.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer/broker quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2.

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently.
There were no transfers between levels for the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021.

For assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost, their carrying values are a reasonable approximation of fair value as at
30 September 2022 and 2021.

Net (losses)/gains on investments and derivatives

2022 2021
uss uss
Change in unrealized gains/losses in value of investments and derivatives (219,647,737) 205,000,284
Realized gains on sale of investments and derivatives 47,106,452 124,672,072

(172,541,285) 329,672,356

Taxation

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Fund was authorized as a collective investment scheme under
Section 104 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and is therefore exempt from profits tax under Section 26A(1A) of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Overseas tax was withheld or paid on certain dividend income received during the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021.

-16 -



Annual report for the

JPMorgan ASEAN Fund year ended 30 September 2022

7 Transactions with the Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions entered into during the year between the Fund and the
Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons. Connected Persons of the Trustee and the Manager are those as defined
in the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds established by the SFC. All such transactions were entered into in the ordinary
course of business and were on normal commercial terms.

@)

Investment transactions with Connected Persons of the Manager are set out below:

Aggregate
value of % of the % of the
purchases Fund’s total Fund’s total Average
and sales of aggregate Commission ~ commission commission
investments value of paid paid in the rate
Name of company uss$ transactions uss$ year %
2022
J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited 136,144,102 7.49 90,573 7.15 0.07
2021
J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited 140,793,387 7.32 183,343 8.44 0.13

Balances with the Manager and its Connected Persons as at year end:

2022 2021

us$ us$
Cash at banks 4,369,227 6,419,961
Amounts receivable 1,964,505 186,717
Amounts payable (1,698,422) (1,938,037)

As at 30 September 2022, the Fund's investment and derivative balance of US$1,134,330,365 (2021: US$1,336,730,735)
represents the investments and derivatives held by the custodian, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., a Connected Person of
the Manager.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the income accruing to the Manager relating to allotments and redemptions in
the Fund, net of commission paid to agents, amounted to US$7,290 (2021: US$13,521).

Management fee for USD Class C (acc) of 0.75% per annum and all other share classes of 1.5% per annum of the net
asset value of each Class is paid to JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited. Management fee is accrued on each dealing day and
is payable monthly in arrears.

The Fund allows the Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons to subscribe for, and redeem, units of the Fund.

The Manager and certain of its Directors and members of its group of companies held units of the Fund during the year
and were entitled to profits from transaction in units of the Fund as follows:

Increase Decrease
resulting resulting
from director from director
At the appointments resignations Profits from
beginning of during the Total Total during the At the end of transaction
the year year allotments redemptions year the year Us$
2022
Directors of the Manager
- HKD Class (acc) 10,718.328 - 11,138.648 - - 21,856.976 -
JPMorgan Asset
Management (Asia
Pacific) Limited
- USD Class (acc) 754.576 N/A 406.018 (262.499) N/A 898.095 3,364
- USD Class C (acc) 100.000 N/A - - N/A 100.000 -
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At the
beginning of
the year
2022
JPMorgan Asset
Management (S)
Limited
- USD Class (acc)

281.639

JPMorgan Funds
Asia) Limited
- USD Class (acc) -

2021

Directors of the Manager
- HKD Class (acc) -

JPMorgan Asset

Management (Asia

Pacific) Limited
- USD Class (acc) 507.234
- USD Class C (acc) -

JPMorgan Asset
Management (S)
Limited

- USD Class (acc) 93.318

JPMorgan Funds
(Asia) Limited

- USD Class (acc) 15.479

Increase
resulting
from director
appointments
during the
year

N/A

N/A

10,718.328

N/A
N/A

N/A

N/A

Decrease
resulting
from director
resignations

Total Total during the
allotments redemptions year
38.760 (46.659) N/A

- - N/A

294.314 (46.972) N/A
100.000 - N/A
234.980 (46.659) N/A

- (15.479) N/A

At the end of
the year

273.740

10,718.328

754.576
100.000

281.639

Profits from
transaction
USs$

370

186

185

Trustee’s fee of 0.018% per annum of the net asset value of the Fund is paid to the Trustee. Trustee’s fee is accrued on
each dealing day and is payable monthly in arrears.

JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited, the registrar agent and Manager, receives a registrar’s fee which varies depending on the
number of unitholders in the Fund and the number of transactions which occur. The range agreed with the Trustee is
between 0.015% and 0.5% per annum of the Fund’s net asset value. The registrar’s fee is payable quarterly in arrears.

During the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, in addition to the management fee and registrar’s fee as disclosed
in Note 7(d) and 7(g), respective amounts received from/(paid to) the Manager, JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited, and its

Connected Persons were as follows:

Interest on deposits

Other income

Transaction costs

Safe custody and bank charges

8 Borrowings

2022
uss$

1,594
185

(153,372)
(514,610)

2021
uss$

1,473

(241,267)
(510,530)

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Fund has unsecured short-term bank borrowings with a duration of less than 7
days. The Fund has no bank borrowing during the year ended 30 September 2021. All such transactions are entered into in the
ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms.

9 Soft dollar arrangements/Commission sharing arrangements

The Investment Manager has entered into soft dollar arrangements/commission sharing arrangements with brokers under
which certain goods and services used to support investment decision making are received by the Investment Manager. A
portion of the transaction commission paid by the Fund is retained by the brokers as compensation for the goods and services.

The goods and services must be of demonstrable benefit to the Fund and would be limited to research and advisory services.
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During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Investment Manager obtained the services through soft dollar
arrangements/commission sharing arrangements on transactions amounting to US$1,561,152,343 (2021: US$1,356,325,125).

Commission which amounted to US$156,702 (2021: US$373,120) is paid from the Fund on these transactions.

10 Derivatives

(a) Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at 30 September were as follows:

Contract to
deliver

2022

Open contracts:

A$21,127
A$18,052
A$20,764
A$11,429
A$2,195,348
A$261,416
A$200,853
A$251,953
A$177,559
A$399,146
A$75,159
A$33,799
A$248,655
A$257,032
A$16,848
A$72,708
A$1,983
A$12,841
A$1,622
A$2,165
A$2,124
A$1,624
A$1,629
A$1,641
A$1,637
A$1,641
A$1,642
A$3,543
CNH507,734
CNH431,874
CNH255,262
CNH417,941
CNH282,259
CNH429,354
CNH22,316
CNH16,483
CNH7,620
CNH?7,605
CNH7,663
CNH7,675
CNH7,664
CNH7,713
CNH?7,665
CNH7,732
US$1,782

US$47,088
A$3,589
A$188,127
CNH8,808
CNH408,771

In exchange
for

Us$13,717
US$11,665
US$13,448

US$7,401

US$1,506,072

US$176,521
US$136,777
US$168,721
US$118,214
US$259,466
US$50,072
Us$23,187
US$161,141
US$166,502
US$11,333
US$47,094
US$1,359
US$8,339
Us$1,112
US$1,455
US$1,424
US$1,097
US$1,095
Us$1,102
US$1,098
US$1,100
US$1,094
US$2,290
US$72,921
US$61,806
US$36,913
US$59,498
US$39,978
US$60,501
US$3,204
Us$2,375
US$1,106
US$1,102
US$1,105
US$1,102
US$1,099
Us$1,101
US$1,093
US$1,095
CNH12,728

A$72,708
US$2,308
US$119,791
US$1,222
US$57,019

Settlement
date

5 October 2022

5 October 2022

6 October 2022

7 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022

5 October 2022
11 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
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Counterparty

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

HSBC Bank Plc London

Goldman Sachs International, London
Citibank N.A., London

Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
Royal Bank of Canada
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Total unrealized gains

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris
HSBC Bank Plc London

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
us$

133
57

97

53
94,262
8,406
7,610
6,693
4,027
2,779
1,737
1,451
1,234
1,207
498
337
84

81
68
63
57

53
47
46
45
44
38

11
1,682
1,211
1,098
857
375
259
73
62
37
35
30
25
24
18

18

10

4

137,036
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Contract to
deliver

CNH667,411
CNH312,579
US$1,334
US$1,551
US$1,281
US$2,923
US$7,402
US$11,667
US$2,205
US$1,279
US$13,451
US$13,720
US$2,624
US$4,863
US$4,793
US$5,380
US$3,741
US$4,289
US$4,896
US$7,302
US$13,403
US$6,993
US$9,130
US$20,183
US$11,329
US$11,246
US$28,616
US$13,881
US$21,512
US$36,090
US$60,863
US$69,657
US$75,769
US$91,064
US$86,067
US$108,712
US$241,394
US$324,724
US$262,368
US$4,790,772
US$17,033,599
US$2,309

2021

Open contracts:

A$27,131
A$10,674
A$44,028
US$23,662
US$1,099
A$566,530
A$729,117
A$288,619
A$321,866
A$557,651
A$154,659
A$157,825
A$88,005
A$62,245

In exchange
for

US$93,269
US$43,022
CNH9,370
A$2,372
A$1,931
CNH20,491
A$11,429
A$18,052
A$3,324
A$1,885
A$20,764
A$21,127
A$3,829
A$7,298
A$7,130
A$8,017
A$5,467
A$6,307
A$7,215
A$10,896
CNH93,362
A$10,356
A$13,607
CNH140,567
A$16,803
A$16,647
CNH199,400
A$20,473
A$31,979
CNH248,798
CNH424,529
CNH485,000
CNH523,586
CNH631,342
A$127,797
A$158,368
CNH1,665,683
CNH2,253,888
A$379,739
CNH33,445,145
A$25,326,824
A$3,589

US$19,756
Us$7,736
US$31,872
A$32,761
CNH7,106
US$417,731
US$534,654
US$213,855
US$237,527
US$406,099
US$113,823
US$115,643
US$65,010
US$46,339

Settlement
date

21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 November 2022

5 October 2021
5 October 2021
6 October 2021
6 October 2021
8 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
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Counterparty

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Citibank N.A., London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

HSBC Bank Plc London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Citibank N.A., London

HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Total unrealized losses

Net unrealized losses

State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Toronto Dominion Bank

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Toronto Dominion Bank

HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
Us$

(374
(835

=
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(771,480)

158

68

8,464
7,933
5,354
5,008
3,246
2,096
1,628
1,434
1,372
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Contract to
deliver

A$155,270
A$53,144
A$161,735
A$49,503
A$45,210
A$41,423
A$345,214
A$44,321
A$148,963
A$140,694
A$45,969
A$24,898
A$26,513
A$31,973
A$1,485
A$1,478
A$1,478
A$1,495
A$1,480
A$1,480
A$1,491
A$1,491
A$1,491
A$1,489
A$1,702
A$1,492
A$1,501
A$1,507
A$1,512
A$1,501
A$1,505

CNH26,729,194

CNH151,821
CNH7,093
CNH7,080

US$8,908,570

US$161,046
US$19,806
US$35,622
US$2,712
US$4,558
US$1,221
US$1,176
US$333,298

A$3,773
US$249,900
A$27,549
A$461,405
CNH7,903
A$284,059
CNH7,108
CNH7,069
CNH7,106
CNH24,189
CNH158,217
CNH138,045
CNH171,553
CNH173,983
CNH263,597
CNH397,746
CNH763,955
CNH636,003
CNH315,676

In exchange
for

US$113,491
US$39,494
US$117,743
US$36,499
US$33,373
US$30,543
US$249,918
US$32,527
US$108,069
US$102,064
US$33,601
Us$18,373
US$19,288
US$23,175
US$1,106
US$1,098
US$1,098
US$1,103
US$1,093
US$1,093
US$1,100
US$1,099
US$1,099
US$1,096
US$1,247
US$1,094
US$1,100
US$1,102
US$1,100
US$1,093
US$1,091

US$4,143,360

US$23,511
US$1,100
US$1,095

CNH57,716,846
CNH1,043,356

A$27,549
CNH230,682
A$3,773
CNH29,528
CNH7,903
CNH7,609
A$461,405

Us$2,712
A$345,214
US$19,805

US$333,239

US$1,222

US$204,753

US$1,099

US$1,093

US$1,098

US$3,733
US$24,454
Us$21,327
US$26,500
US$26,864
US$40,722
US$61,362

US$118,011
US$98,193
Us$48,537

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
19 November 2021

5 October 2021

5 October 2021

7 October 2021

8 October 2021

8 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021

-21-

Counterparty

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Barclays Bank Plc, London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Standard Chartered Bank London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Toronto Dominion Bank

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Toronto Dominion Bank

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
HSBC Bank Plc London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Standard Chartered Bank London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
HSBC Bank Plc London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Total unrealized gains

HSBC Bank Plc London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Standard Chartered Bank London
Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

HSBC Bank Plc London

HSBC Bank Plc London

Toronto Dominion Bank

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Citibank N.A., London

Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Toronto Dominion Bank

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
Us$

1,322
1,102
904
737
712
619
532
509
457
425
393
386
135
77
33
31
31
24
24
24
23
22
22
20
18
16
15
13
8

8

4
8,262
24
2

0
20,423
365
96
66
13
10
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Contract to In exchange
deliver for
CNH1,305,234 US$201,623
CNH2,170,742 US$335,167
CNH1,907,300 US$294,185
US$1,496 A$2,071
US$1,257 A$1,736
US$1,215 CNH7,830
US$2,483 A$3,423
US$15,485 CNH100,000
US$1,144 A$1,550
US$7,736 A$10,674
US$2,229 A$3,050
US$237,542 A$328,752
US$31,874 A$44,028
US$4,390 A$5,947
US$5,621 A$7,609
US$5,139 A$6,936
US$7,333 A$9,937
US$10,581 A$14,429
US$19,758 A$27,131
US$12,003 A$16,381
US$16,069 A$21,795
US$40,777 A$55,789
US$30,400 A$41,423
US$67,007 A$92,042
US$31,330 A$42,570
US$32,763 A$44,433
US$27,533 A$36,985
US$32,177 A$43,300
US$116,980 A$157,281
US$783,731 A$1,077,239
US$377,153 A$511,694
US$21,037,627 A$28,304,340
A$32,761

Settlement

date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
US$23,666 19 November 2021

Details of warrants as at 30 September were as follows:

N

02

Plan B Media Wts 13/01/2025
JMT Network Services Wts 27/12/2024

N

2021

BTS Group Holdings (W7)

BTS Group Holdings (W8)

BTS Group Hldgs (F) Wts 05/09/22
Minor Intl Wts 05/05/23

Minor Intl Wts 15/02/24

11 Distribution

No distribution was made during the year (2021:

nil).

Underlying assets

Plan B Media PCL
JMT Network Services PCL

BTS Group Holdings
BTS Group Holdings
BTS Group Holdings
Minor International
Minor International

-22-

Counterparty

Citibank N.A., London

Goldman Sachs International, London
Royal Bank of Canada

HSBC Bank Plc London

HSBC Bank Plc London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
HSBC Bank Plc London

Citibank N.A., London

Royal Bank of Canada

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Royal Bank of Canada

HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Royal Bank of Canada

Toronto Dominion Bank

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Standard Chartered Bank London
Standard Chartered Bank London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Standard Chartered Bank London
Royal Bank of Canada

Barclays Bank Plc, London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Toronto Dominion Bank

Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company

Total unrealized losses

Net unrealized losses

Issuer

Plan B Media PCL
JMT Network Services PCL

BTS Group Holdings
BTS Group Holdings
BTS Group Holdings
Minor International
Minor International

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
Us$

(541,912)

Fair value
Us$

43,008
79,176

122,184

96,457
79,114
59,747

235,318
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Unitholders of JPMorgan ASEAN Fund (the “Fund”)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of JPMorgan ASEAN Fund, which are
set out on pages 4 to 22, comprise:

« the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 September
2022;

« the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then
ended;

« the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Units for the year then ended;

« the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended; and

« the notes to the financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Fund as at 30 September 2022,
and of its financial transactions and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The Trustee and the Manager (the “Management”) of the Fund
are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial
Statements

The Management of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and
for such internal control as the Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management of the
Fund is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate
the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

In addition, the Management of the Fund is required to ensure
that the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust
Deed dated 7 July 1983, as amended (the “Trust Deed”) and
Appendix E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds
issued by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC Code”).

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are
required to assess whether the financial statements of the
Fund have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust
Deed and Appendix E of the SFC Code.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve  collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
To the Unitholders of JPMorgan ASEAN Fund (the “Fund”)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements (Continued)

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease
to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Management regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Matters under the Relevant Disclosure
Provisions of the Trust Deed and Appendix E of the
SFC Code

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and Appendix
E of the SFC Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 January 2023
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Manager and
the Trustee

Manager’s Responsibilities

The Manager of the Fund is required by the Code on Unit
Trusts and Mutual Funds established by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Trust Deed to
prepare financial statements for each annual accounting period
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Fund at the end of that period and of the transactions for the
period then ended. In preparing these financial statements, the
Manager is required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

- make judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

- prepare the financial statements on the basis that the
Fund will continue in operation unless it is inappropriate to
presume this.

The Manager is also required to manage the Fund in
accordance with the Trust Deed and take reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Trustee’s Responsibilities

The Trustee of the Fund is required to:

- ensure that the Fund is managed by the Manager in
accordance with the Trust Deed and that the investment

and borrowing powers are complied with;

- satisfy itself that sufficient accounting and other records
have been maintained;

- safeguard the property of the Fund and rights attaching
thereto; and

- report to the unitholders for each annual accounting period
on the conduct of the Manager in the management of the
Fund.

Report of the Trustee to the Unitholders

We hereby confirm that, in our opinion, the Manager of the
Fund has, in all material respects, managed the Fund in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed dated 7 July
1983, as amended, for the year ended 30 September 2022.

Bank of East Asia (Trustees) Limited, Trustee

20 January 2023

Performance Record (Unaudited)

Net Asset Values

At financial Net asset value | Net asset value

period ended of the Fund per unit
30/9/22
- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$21,986,005 A$11.05
- HKD Class (acc) HK$140,078,832 HK$11.09
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY36,597,537 CNY12.16
- USD Class (acc) US$1,133,035,173 US$130.89
- USD Class C (acc) Us$s78 US$8.78
30/9/21
- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$27,041,779 A$12.78
- HKD Class (acc) HK$112,621,720 HK$12.54
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY23,955,247 CNY13.70
- USD Class (acc) US$1,329,304,992 US$149.23
- USD Class C (acc) US$992 US$9.92
30/9/20
- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$25,034,842 A$10.05
- HKD Class (acc) HK$94,434,998 HK$9.74
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY21,216,553 CNY10.45
- USD Class (acc) US$1,168,790,260 US$116.39
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Performance Record (Unaudited) (Continued)

Highest Offer/Lowest Bid Prices

Management and Administration

Manager and Service Provider Directors of the Manager
JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited  as at 20 January 2023

Financial period ended Highest offer Lowest bid
30/9/22

- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$13.59 A$10.88
- HKD Class (acc) HK$13.36 HK$10.88
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY14.62 CNY11.95
- USD Class (acc) US$158.85 US$128.45
- USD Class C (acc) US$10.57 US$8.60
30/9/21

- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$13.11 A$10.16
- HKD Class (acc) HK$12.80 HK$9.86
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY13.92 CNY10.59
- USD Class (acc) US$152.81 US$117.81
- USD Class C (acc) US$10.01 US$9.84
30/9/20

- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$12.98 A$7.45

- HKD Class (acc) HK$12.13 HK$7.32
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY12.82 CNY7.74
- USD Class (acc) US$144.42 US$87.45
30/9/19

- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$13.28 A$11.36
- HKD Class (acc) HK$12.37 HK$10.54
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY12.98 CNY11.01
- USD Class (acc) US$146.41 US$124.43
30/9/18

- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$14.02 A$11.81

- HKD Class (acc) HK$12.89 HK$10.93
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY13.41 CNY11.38
- USD Class (acc) US$152.69 US$129.02
30/9/17

- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$12.09 A$9.67

- HKD Class (acc) HK$11.11 HK$8.86
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY11.46 CNY8.98
- USD Class (acc) US$131.70 US$105.82
30/9/16

- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$11.33 A$8.42

- HKD Class (acc) HK$10.39 HK$7.80
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY10.46 CNY7.67
- USD Class (acc) US$124.00 US$92.31
30/9/15

- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$11.82 A$8.53

- HKD Class (acc) HK$10.86 HK$7.81
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY10.61 CNY7.67
- USD Class (acc) US$129.73 US$93.33
30/9/14

- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$11.97 A$9.51

- HKD Class (acc) HK$11.11 HK$8.94
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY10.63 CNY9.79
- USD Class (acc) US$132.78 US$106.66
30/9/13

- AUD Hedged Class (acc) A$12.47 A$9.51

- HKD Class (acc) HK$11.78 HK$8.93
- USD Class (acc) US$140.42 US$106.70

19/F, Chater House
8 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Investment Manager

JPMorgan Asset Management
(Asia Pacific) Limited

19/F, Chater House

8 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Sub-Managers

JPMorgan Asset Management
(Singapore) Limited

88 Market Street

29/F, CapitaSpring

Singapore 048948

JPMorgan Asset Management
(UK) Limited

60 Victoria Embankment

London

ECAY 0JP

United Kingdom

Ayaz Hatim EBRAHIM
Daniel James WATKINS
Ka Li NG

Kit Yee Elka LEUNG
Stiofan Seamus DEBURCA
Tsun Kay Edwin CHAN

Trustee

Bank of East Asia (Trustees)
Limited

32/F, BEA Tower

Millennium City 5

418 Kwun Tong Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Registrar

East Asia International
Trustees Limited

East Asia Chambers

P.O. Box 901

Road Town, Tortola

British Virgin Islands

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22/F, Prince’s Building

1 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

UK Tax Information

The Fund is transparent for UK income tax purposes
and information has been provided to UK investors of
the amount of their share of the underlying income,
expenses and overseas tax suffered for all financial
years from 1 October 2010. Although the Fund is an
“offshore fund” for UK tax purposes, there is no need
to formally apply for “reporting fund status” as the
Fund is considered transparent by HMRC and does
not invest more than 5% of its assets in other
offshore funds which are not themselves reporting
funds. Therefore it is known as a “special category
transparent offshore fund” and considered out of
scope of the requirements of the offshore fund
regime. The principal effect of this is that for
unitholders resident in the UK for taxation purposes,
any gains accruing on the sale, redemption or other
disposal of units during the period will be taxed in the
UK as a capital gain and not as income. The Fund
has previously been certified by HMRC in the UK as
a “distributing fund” in respect of the period from 1
January 1984 to 30 September 2010.
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Investment Portfolio

As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Holding
Listed/Quoted Investments (99.0%)
() Equities (100.3%)

Australia (22.1%)

ANZ Banking Group Ltd 547,515
Australian Stock Exchange

Ltd 407,376
BHP Group Ltd 671,963
Brambles Ltd 3,320,561
Coles Group 1,083,531
Goodman Group Stapled

Sec 1,080,229
Insurance Australia Group

Limited 3,459,315
Macquarie Group Ltd 53,146
Medibank Private Ltd 17,178,647
Q B E Insurance Group

Limited 3,292,215
Rio Tinto Limited 449,183
Santos Ltd 6,359,747
Telstra Corporation Limited 1,085,042
Transurban Group 597,813
Westpac Banking

Corporation 667,565
Woodside Energy Group

Ltd 162,101
Woolworths Group Ltd 894,402
China (18.2%)
China Construction Bank

‘H 38,276,000
China Merchants Bank Co

Ltd ‘H’ 3,670,000
China Overseas Land &

Investment Limited 2,815,500
China Resources Land

Limited 3,510,000
China Yangtze Power Co

Ltd ‘A’ (C1) 5,760,150
Fuyao Glass Industry

Group ‘H’ 3,583,600
Haier Smart Home Co Ltd

‘H 3,050,801
Inner Mongolia Yili

Industrial Group Co Ltd

‘A (CT) 4,691,264
Jason Furniture Hangzhou

Co Lt ‘A’ (C1) 802,780
Jiangsu Expressway

Company Limited ‘H’ 8,028,000
Midea Group Co Ltd ‘A’

(C2) 2,557,164
PICC Property and

Casualty Company

Limited 'H' 10,416,000
Ping An Insurance Group

Co of China Ltd ‘A’ (C1) 784,273
Postal Savings Bank of

China ‘H’ 11,911,000
Tingyi (Cayman Islands)

Holding Corp 8,102,000
Wanhua Chemical Group

Co Ltd ‘A’ (C1) 502,500

Fair
value
us$

8,026,165
18,795,551
16,642,127
24,359,833
11,446,062
10,959,735
10,231,166

5,219,160
38,326,189
24,405,893
26,971,238
28,991,005

2,685,867

4,743,050

8,858,913

3,299,695
19,523,143

22,136,975
17,064,549

7,334,740
13,816,609
18,373,272
14,471,537

9,346,841

21,702,151
4,497,455
6,023,633

17,687,067

10,800,932
4,574,188
7,025,303

13,974,838

6,491,693

% of
net
assets

0.7

AN
ocohr~O

0.9

0.4

0.6

0.5

(Continued)

Holding
Wauliangye Yibin Co Ltd ‘A’

(C2) 566,247
Zijin Mining Group

Company Limited ‘H’ 8,116,000
Hong Kong (15.7%)

AlIA Group Ltd 2,998,400
BOC Hong Kong Holdings

Ltd 6,534,500
China Lesso Group

Holdings Ltd 4,248,000
CK infrastructure Holdings

Ltd 1,264,000
CLP Holdings Limited 1,207,000
CSPC Pharmaceutical

Group Ltd 404,000
HKBN Ltd 3,157,000
HKT Trust & HKT Ltd 8,600,000
Hong Kong Exchanges &

Clearing Ltd 555,435
Kunlun Energy Co Ltd 15,942,000
Link REIT 2,670,540
Man Wah Holdings Ltd 5,574,400
NetEase Inc 2,041,800
Sun Hung Kai Properties

Ltd 1,466,000
Xinyi Glass Holding

Company Limited 5,513,000
India (3.1%)

Infosys Technologies Ltd

Sponsored ADR 1,778,621
Power Grid Corp of India

Ltd 2,385,535
Indonesia (5.9%)

Bank Central Asia 46,455,000
Bank Rakyat Indonesia

Persero 95,314,200

Telkom Indonesia Persero 56,842,100
Korea (10.3%)
BGF Retail Co Ltd 61,106
Hana Financial Holdings 281,414
Hyundai Motor Co Ltd Pref 31,419
KB Financial Group 237,746
Kiwoom Securities Co Ltd 92,427
LG Chem Limited

Preference Shares 35,922
LG Chemical 8,014
Samsung Electronics Co

Ltd 1,866,961
Samsung Fire and Marine

Insurance Company

Limited 73,703
SK Telecom Company

Limited 191,332

Malaysia (0.5%)
CIMB Group Holdings BHD 5,779,300

Singapore (9.4%)
AIMS APAC REIT

Management Ltd REIT 5,247,119

-27 -

Fair

value

uss$
13,441,431

7,909,324

24,999,717
21,768,070
3,955,831

6,448,898
9,125,651

400,403
2,449,220
10,079,109
19,076,074
11,514,942
18,677,008
3,550,619
30,822,469
16,219,582

8,020,288

30,183,199

6,222,529

26,083,747
28,104,466
16,648,548

7,068,598
6,972,899
1,838,101
7,261,830
4,890,420

6,327,213
3,002,379
69,291,696

9,478,823

6,793,643

6,393,748

4,680,683

% of
net
assets

1.1

0.7

21

1.8

0.3

2.6

0.5

22

1.4

0.6
0.6
0.2
0.6
0.4

0.5
0.2
5.8

0.8

0.6

0.5

04
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Investment Portfolio (Continued)
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Statement of Movements in Portfolio Holdings
For the year ended 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Fair % of % holdings
value net of net assets
Holding US$ assets
2022 2021
Singapore (Continued)
DBS Group Holdings Ltd 1,728,921 40,231,843 3.4 Listed/Quoted Investments
Mapletree Logistics Trust
REIT 13,350,127 14,514,042 1.2 Equities
Singapore Exchange
Limited 2,918,500 19,241,069 1.6 Australia 221 15.2
United Overseas Bank Ltd 1,803,300 32,876,387 2.8 China 18.2 15.3
Hong Kong 15.7 18.1
Taiwan 12.3 171
Taiwan (12.3%) Korea 103 1.5
Accton Technology Corp 781,000 6,703,282 0.6  Singapore 9.4 7.6
Advantech Company Indonesia 5.9 5.0
Limited 746,383 6899852 0.6 [ndia 31 44
ASE Technology Holding Thailand 2.0 3.6
Co Ltd 1,522,000 3,839,875 03  United Kingdom 08 1.8
Catcher Technology Malaysia 0.5 -
Company Limited 127,000 690,022 0.1 L
Eclat Textile Co Ltd 835000 10,309,616 09 Derivatives
Nien Made Enterprise Co
ILtd P 755.000 5980.740 05 Forward foreign exchange contracts (1.3) (0.5)
President Chain Store
Cc;rporationl 1.666.000 14.823.931 12 Total Listed/Quoted Investments 99.0 99.1
Taiwan Semiconductor
Mfg Co. Ltd 6,341,000 84,283,033 7.0  Othernetassets 1.0 0.9
Wiwynn Corp 530,000 13,488,299 1.1
Thailand (2.0%) Net assets attributable to holders
Advanced Information of redeemable units at
Service PCL 1,806,700 9,340,045 038 30 September 100.0 100.0
SCB X PCL 2,091,200 5,765,769 0.5 I -
SCB X PCL NVDR 899,500 2,480,064 0.2
Tisco Financial Group
PCL 2,309,500 5,678,847 0.5
United Kingdom (0.8%)
RIO Tinto PLC 183,477 10,027,761 0.8
1,195,682,210 100.3
(I1) Derivatives (-1.3%)
Forward foreign exchange
contracts (-1.3%) (15,383,026)  (1.3)
Total Listed/Quoted Investments 1,180,299,184 99.0
Other net assets 12,242,274 1.0
Net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable units at
30 September 2022 100.0

Total investments, at cost

1,192,541,458

1,367,160,588

-28-



JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Details of Financial Derivative Instruments
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

As at 30 September 2022, the Fund held outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts with details as shown in Note 11.

Information on Exposure Arising from Financial
Derivative Instruments

For the year ended 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)
The lowest, highest and average gross exposure arising from
the use of financial derivative instruments in the Fund for any
purpose as a proportion to the Fund’s total net asset value for
the year ended 30 September 2022.

2022
% of NAV

Lowest gross exposure -
Highest gross exposure -

Average gross exposure -
The lowest, highest and average net exposure arising from the
use of financial derivative instruments in the Fund for non-

hedging purpose as a proportion to the Fund’s total net asset
value for the year ended 30 September 2022.

2022
% of NAV

Lowest net exposure -
Highest net exposure -

Average net exposure -

# There are some share classes with currency hedging features. For the
avoidance of doubt, their exposures are not included in the calculation
of the gross exposure of the Fund portfolio.
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2022

2022 2021
uUss$ us$

Assets
Current assets
Cash at banks 25,815,350 15,996,141
Amounts due from brokers 2,786,163 7,220,184
Amounts receivable on allotment 1,897,843 9,810,492
Derivatives [Note 4(I)(a), 11] 1,604,195 1,108,362
Investments [Note 4(1)(a)] 1,195,682,210 1,292,211,675
Dividend and other accounts

receivable 1,302,757 4,174,450
Total assets 1,229,088,518 1,330,521,304
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term bank loans —

unsecured [Note 9] - 2,000,000
Amounts due to brokers 3,631,468 8,443,967
Amounts payable on redemption 8,622,901 8,051,088
Distribution payable [Note 6] 5,610,708 4,997,620
Derivatives [Note 4(l)(a), 11] 16,987,221 7,161,756
Tax payable [Note 7] - 432,561
Other accounts payable 1,694,762 1,768,064
Liabilities (excluding net

assets attributable to

holders of redeemable

units) 36,547,060 32,855,056
Net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable units

[Note 3] 1,192,541,458 1,297,666,248

Approved by the Trustee and the Manager on 20 January 2023
Signed By:

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, Trustee

JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited, Manager

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
uss Us$
Income
Net (losses)/gains on
investments and derivatives
[Note 5] (389,415,644) 296,321,658
Dividend income 52,027,054 52,184,353
Interest on deposits
[Note 8(i), 8(j)] 33,737 72,300
Net foreign currency exchange
losses (2,130,937) (1,200,454)
Other income 354 1,488,906
(339,485,436) 348,866,763
Expenses
Management fee [Note 8(e)] 19,970,142 19,025,377
Transaction costs [Note 8(i), 8(j)] 2,197,260 2,777,672
Safe custody and bank charges
[Note 8(i), 8(j)] 525,339 630,581
Trustee's fee [Note 8(g)] 368,804 352,145
Registrar's fee [Note 8(h)] 247,594 284,187
Legal and professional
expenses 26,507 35,084
Valuation fee [Note 8(e)] 17,150 17,220
Auditor's fee 16,205 41,432
Printing and publication
expenses 6,220 11,139
Other operating expenses
[Note 8(j)] 17,691 16,432
23,392,912 23,191,269
Net operating (loss)/profit (362,878,348) 325,675,494

Finance costs
Distribution [Note 6] (61,929,863)
Interest expense [Note 8(j)] (25,024)

(52,861,098)
(12,427)

(61,954,887)

(52,873,525)

(Loss)/profit before taxation  (424,833,235)

Taxation [Note 7] (3,153,086)

272,801,969

(4,763,771)

(Decrease)/increase in net
assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units
and total comprehensive
income (427,986,321)

268,038,198

The notes on pages 32 to 68 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Units
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022
uss$

2021
uss

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units
at the beginning of the year 1,297,666,248 1,102,603,422

Allotment of redeemable units

[Note 3] 982,395,736 766,957,167

Redemption of redeemable units

[Note 3] (659,534,205) (839,932,539)

Net allotment/(redemption) 322,861,531 (72,975,372)

1,620,527,779 1,029,628,050

(Decrease)/increase in net
assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units
and total comprehensive
income

(427,986,321) 268,038,198

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units

at the end of the year 1,192,541,458 1,297,666,248

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022
us$

2021
uss

Operating activities

Purchase of investments and
derivatives

Proceeds from disposal of

(973,096,517) (813,554,398)

investments and derivatives 689,162,998 913,480,444
Dividend received 52,905,608 53,158,140
Interest received 33,825 75,925
Registrar's fee paid (256,385) (281,376)
Trustee's fee paid (368,960) (347,856)
Transaction costs paid (2,198,420) (2,773,421)
Tax paid (3,585,647) (4,331,210)
Management fee paid (19,986,341)  (18,811,207)
Others 196,576 (2,654,403)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow

from operating activities (257,193,263) 123,960,638
Financing activities
Interest paid (25,024) (12,427)
Receipts on allotment of

redeemable units 990,308,385 767,231,908

Payments on redemption of
redeemable units
Distribution paid

(658,962,392)
(61,316,775)

(834,923,277)
(51,919,656)

Net cash inflow/(outflow)

from financing activities 270,004,194

(119,623 ,452)

Increase in cash and cash

equivalents 12,810,931 4,337,186
Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of the year 13,996,141 9,423,325
Exchange (losses)/gains on

cash and cash equivalents (991,722) 235,630
Cash and cash equivalents

at the end of the year 25,815,350 13,996,141

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash at banks 25,815,350 15,996,141
Short-term bank loans -
unsecured - (2,000,000)
25,815,350 13,996,141

The notes on pages 32 to 68 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1

The Fund

JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund (the “Fund”) was established under a Trust Deed dated 6 May 2011, as amended (the
“Trust Deed”) and is governed by the laws of Hong Kong. The Fund is authorized by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong ("SFC”).

The investment objective of the Fund is to aim to provide income and long-term capital growth by investing primarily (i.e. at
least 70% of its total net asset value) in equity securities of companies in the Asia Pacific region (excluding Japan) that the
Investment Manager expects to pay dividends. The Fund’'s holding of these equity securities will be selected based on
historical records and company announcements on dividends, in addition to their potential for long-term capital appreciation.

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Manager may decide to issue separate classes (each a “Class”) whose assets will be
commonly invested but where a specific fee structure, currency or distribution policy may be applied. Each Class may have a
different charging structure with the result that the net asset value attributable to each Class may differ.

All unitholders' rights with regard to the convening, voting or otherwise acting at any meeting of unitholders are the same.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) held at fair value through
profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires the Manager and the Trustee (the “Management”) to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the
Fund's accounting policies.

Standards and amendments to existing standards effective from 1 October 2021

There are no standards or amendments to existing standards that are effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 October 2021 that have had a material impact on the Fund.

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 October 2021 and have not been early adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 October 2021, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to

have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.

(b) Investments and derivatives

Classification
The Fund classifies its investments and derivatives based on both the Fund's business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed

and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that
information to assess the assets' performance and to make decisions.

Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Fund makes short sales in which a borrowed security is sold in anticipation of a decline in the market value of that
security, or it may use short sales for various arbitrage transactions. Short sales are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

As such, the Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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(c)

(d

(e)

®

Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of investments and derivatives are accounted for on the trade date basis. Investments and
derivatives are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Realized and unrealized
gains and losses on investments and derivatives are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments
and derivatives are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments and derivatives have expired
or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are
based on last traded prices. When trading in the securities of an investee company is suspended, the investment is valued
at the Manager's estimate of its fair value. When trading of financial instruments in markets that are not considered to be
active, the financial instruments are valued based on quoted market prices, dealer/broker quotations or alternative pricing
sources supported by observable inputs.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are valued at the forward rates ruling at the valuation date. The differences between
the forward rates and the contract rates are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting period.
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expense

Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date with the corresponding foreign withholding tax recorded as an
expense and is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income on investments is accounted for as part of net gains/losses on investments and derivatives in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income on cash at banks and short-term deposits is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on
an effective interest basis.

Expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.
Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The Fund has adopted United States dollar as its functional and presentation currency.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of assets
and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and cash equivalents are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within “Net foreign currency exchange gains/losses”. Foreign exchange gains and losses relating
to the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within “Net gains/losses on investments and derivatives”.

Transaction costs
Transaction costs are costs incurred to acquire/dispose financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

They include fees and commissions paid to agents, brokers and dealers. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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(h

U]

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and bank deposits
with maturity of three months or less from the date of placing the deposits, net of certain short-term bank loans which the
Fund usually undertakes as overnight bank borrowings.

Amounts due from/to brokers

Amounts due from/to brokers represent receivables for investments and derivatives sold and payables for investments and
derivatives purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled by the end of the year.

These amounts are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date,
the Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization and default in payments are all considered
indicators that a loss allowance may be required.

Proceeds and payments on allotment and redemption of units

The net asset value per unit is computed for each dealing day. The price at which units are allotted or redeemed is
calculated by reference to the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the relevant dealing day in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed which may be different from the accounting policies stated in the
financial statements.

Units of the Fund are redeemable at the option of the holders of redeemable units and are classified as a financial liability
in the Statement of Financial Position which represents the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (or “net
asset value” or “net assets” or “NAV”) and is carried at the redemption amount that would be payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date if the holders of redeemable units exercised the right to redeem units of the Fund.

Distribution payable to holders of redeemable units
Proposed distributions to holders of redeemable units are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when

they are appropriately authorized. The distribution on the redeemable units is recognized as a finance cost in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3 Number of units in issue and net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (per unit)
022
AUD Hedged CAD Hedged EUR Hedged GBP Hedged
Class (mth) Class (mth) Class (mth) Class (mth)  HKD Class (acc)
Units Units Units Units Units
Number of units in issue:
At the beginning of the
year 15,818,277.479 7,456,412.191 1,919,678.947 4,439,007.661 1,196,639.730
Total allotments 9,808,710.204 2,914,273.637 943,488.446 4,725,723.527 1,811,029.726
Total redemptions (6,826,633.243)  (2,233,451.843) (789,621.513)  (2,626,359.591)  (1,181,506.059)
At the end of the year 18,800,354.440 8,137,233.985 2,073,545.880 6,538,371.597 1,826,163.397
A$ C$ EUR GBP HK$
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 136,342,047 61,318,511 16,395,953 50,842,961 22,555,210
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 7.25 7.54 7.91 7.78 12.35

_34-



JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the

year ended 30 September 2022

2022

Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the
year

Total allotments
Total redemptions

At the end of the year

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit)

Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the
year

Total allotments
Total redemptions

At the end of the year

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit)

HKD Class (mth)
Units

161,313,873.521

184,403,557.316
(93,500,232.860)

NZD Hedged
Class (mth)
Units

4,705,292.384

2,869,581.893
(1,572,783.367)

PRC RMB

PRC RMB Class Hedged Class
(mth) (acc)

Units Units

1,891,564.740 7,641,018.160

262,168.680  1,519,402.130
(534,481.920)  (4,366,369.620)

252,217,197.977 6,002,090.910 1,619,251.500 4,794,050.670
HK$ NZ$ CNY CNY
2,032,712,595 44,500,103 13,778,756 46,975,544
8.06 741 8.51 9.80
PRC RMB

Hedged Class PRC USD Class RMB Hedged RMB Hedged
(mth) (acc) Class (acc) Class (mth)

Units Units Units Units

10,422,468.550

1,884,652.570
(2,925,695.420)

2,137,889.830

240,242.810
(765,779.730)

1,342,654.039  149,221,298.724

528,998.453  71,351,769.244
(395,040.657) (45,642,880.831)

9,381,425.700

1,612,352.910

1,476,611.835 174,930,187.137

CNY Uss$ CNY CNY
74,167,080 15,063,976 21,813,168 1,431,961,989
7.91 9.34 14.77 8.19
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2022

Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the
year

Total allotments
Total redemptions

At the end of the year

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit)

021

Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the
year

Total allotments
Total redemptions

At the end of the year

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit)

SGD Hedged USD Class C USD Class C
Class (mth) USD Class (acc) USD Class (mth) (mth) (div)
Units Units Units Units Units
1,056,230.405 452,651.110  30,511,465.339 11,819,722.942 1,026,607.148
224,863.903 328,417.745  29,587,741.366 1,416,970.279 9,467,061.281
(500,701.051) (85,959.615) (17,961,819.946) (10,922,754.816)  (1,795,428.782)
780,393.257 695,109.240  42,137,386.759 2,313,938.405 8,698,239.647
S$ Us$ Us$ Us$ Us$
5,996,821 8,520,838 335,998,871 19,480,421 80,422,237
7.68 12.26 7.97 8.42 9.25

AUD Hedged CAD Hedged EUR Hedged GBP Hedged
Class (mth) Class (mth) Class (mth) Class (mth) HKD Class (acc)
Units Units Units Units Units
18,288,390.411 8,291,310.412 1,353,952.956 3,644,545.871 1,315,720.065

7,837,392.547
(10,307,505.479)

4,405,435.941
(5,240,334.162)

1,603,664.434
(1,037,938.443)

2,805,232.357
(2,010,770.567)

2,200,925.928
(2,320,006.263)

15,818,277.479

7,456,412.191

1,919,678.947

4,439,007.661

1,196,639.730

A$ C$ EUR GBP HK$
149,977,939 73,226,870 19,759,475 44,864,442 18,177,591
9.48 9.82 10.29 10.11 15.19
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PRC RMB
NZD Hedged PRC RMB Class PRC RMB Class Hedged Class
HKD Class (mth) Class (mth) (acc) (mth) (acc)
Units Units Units Units Units

Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the

year 160,240,761.757 4,742,186.011 3,171,514.040 3,359,026.210 18,955,920.350
Total allotments 112,926,912.871 2,598,022.076 2,363,748.190 202,623.690 5,907,567.450
Total redemptions (111,853,801.107)  (2,634,915.703)  (3,623,966.700)  (1,670,085.160) (17,222,469.640)
At the end of the year 161,313,873.521 4,705,292.384 1,911,295.530 1,891,564.740 7,641,018.160
HK$ NZ$ CNY CNY CNY

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 1,669,881,158 45,460,057 21,317,997 18,880,389 91,573,350

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable

units (per unit) 10.35 9.66 11.15 9.98 11.98
PRC RMB

Hedged Class PRC USD Class PRC USD Class RMB Hedged RMB Hedged

(mth) (acc) (mth) Class (acc) Class (mth)

Units Units Units Units Units

Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the

year 22,429,544.450  3,652,162.510  3,347,321.140 972,733.833  141,673,624.018
Total allotments 4,967,077.560  1,125551.220  1,026,605.780 804,732.636  69,435,740.170
Total redemptions (16,974,153.460)  (2,639,823.900)  (2,551,106.890) (434,812.430)  (61,888,065.464)
Atthe end of the year 10,422,468.550  2,137,889.830  1,822,820.030  1,342,654.039 149,221,298.724

CNY us$ us$ CNY CNY

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 107,106,589 24,790,120 18,911,109 24,230,222 1,586,493,943

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 10.28 11.60 10.37 18.05 10.63
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SGD Hedged USD Class C USD Class C
Class (mth) USD Class (acc) USD Class (mth) (mth) (div)
Units Units Units Units Units

Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the

year 666,937.330 293253.873  34,126,677.797  10,021,705.390 914,860.915
Total allotments 675,782.023 469,730.561  20,835,764.033  3,488,167.882 204,085.930
Total redemptions (286,488.948)  (310,333.324) (24,450,976.491)  (1,690,150.330) (92,339.697)
Atthe end of the year 1,056,230.405 452,651.110  30,511,465.339  11,819,722.942 1,026,607.148

S$ us$ us$ us$ us$

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 10,554,577 6,882,906 315,082,437 127,689,157 12,216,484

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 9.99 15.21 10.33 10.80 11.90

4 Financial risk management
(I) Financial risk factors

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including market price risk, interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk

(i) Market price risk
The Fund’s investments and derivatives are subject to the market price risk inherent in all investments and derivatives i.e.
the value of holdings may fall as well as rise. The Fund’s market risk is managed through (i) deliberate stocks selection,
and (ii) diversification of the investment portfolio in accordance with specific investment restrictions and guidelines.
The Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s market price sensitivity primarily through the Beta of the Fund on a regular

basis. Beta measures the statistical relationship between the return of the Fund and the relevant benchmark index chosen
by the Investment Manager.
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As at 30 September, the fair value of investments and derivatives and its estimated market sensitivity were as follows:

2022 2021
Fair value of % of Fair value of % of
investments net investments net
Listed/Quoted Investments uss$ assets uss$ assets
Assets
Equities
- Australia 263,484,792 221 197,009,437 15.2
- China 216,672,538 18.2 198,028,811 15.3
- Hong Kong 187,107,881 15.7 235,209,886 18.1
- Taiwan 147,018,650 12.3 222,419,335 171
- Korea 122,925,602 10.3 148,989,358 11.5
- Singapore 111,544,024 9.4 98,387,607 7.6
- Indonesia 70,836,761 5.9 64,468,483 5.0
- Others 76,091,962 6.4 127,698,758 9.8
1,195,682,210 100.3 1,292,211,675 99.6
Derivatives
- Forward foreign exchange contracts 1,604,195 0.1 1,108,362 0.1
1,197,286,405 100.4 1,293,320,037 99.7
Liabilities
Derivatives
- Forward foreign exchange contracts (16,987,221) (1.4) (7,161,756) (0.6)
Total Listed/Quoted Investments 1,180,299,184 99.0 1,286,158,281 99.1
Also, refer to Note 11 for the exposures on derivatives.
% of reasonable Estimated
Relevant possible change  impact on net
benchmark index of the relevant asset value
Net asset value for the Fund Beta benchmark index (Note****)
us$ (Note*)  (Note**) (Note***) Us$
MSCI AC Asia Pacific ex
As at 30 September 2022 1,192,541,458 Japan Net 0.91 -27.0  (293,007,436)
MSCI AC Asia Pacific ex
As at 30 September 2021 Japan Net 0.94 +16.6

1,297,666,248

202,487,841

If the relevant benchmark index return was to move in the opposite direction, this would result in an opposite movement in
the net asset value of the Fund by the same amount, assuming all other variables that may impact the net asset value of

the Fund are held constant.

Note:

*  Relevant benchmark index for the Fund represents the relevant market index used by the Investment Manager in

monitoring the market price risk of the Fund.

ok

Beta measures the statistical relationship between the return of the Fund and the respective benchmark index over

the maximum of past 36 months, or the number of months since portfolio inception. For funds launched within a
period of less than 12 months, weekly returns of the Fund are used for calculating the Beta.

% of reasonable possible change is based on the actual historical change in the benchmark index in the past 12

months and does not include remote or “worst case” scenarios or “stress tests” nor represent the Investment
Manager's forecast of the Fund's future returns. For funds launched within a period of less than 12 months, actual
historical change in the benchmark index since the commencement of operations will be used to calculate the % of

reasonable possible change.
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(iii)

**** Estimated impact on net asset value of the Fund is calculated by applying the relevant Beta against the net asset
value of the Fund multiplied by the % of reasonable possible change of the relevant benchmark index, assuming all
other variables that may impact the net asset value of the Fund are held constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument or future cash flow will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates.

The table below summarizes the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities as at 30 September which expose it to the risk
associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates, categorized by remaining
maturity dates.

2022 2021
Less than 1 month Less than 1 month
us$ us$
Cash at banks 25,815,350 15,996,141
Short-term bank loans - unsecured - (2,000,000)
Total interest sensitivity gap 25,815,350 13,996,141

Any cash and cash equivalents are placed/borrowed at short-term market interest rates and the Investment Manager
considers that the Fund is not subject to significant amount of risk due to the stable and low fluctuation in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates.

Currency risk

The Fund holds assets and liabilities denominated in a number of currencies. HKFRS 7 considers the foreign exchange
exposure relating to non-monetary assets and liabilities to be a component of market price risk not currency risk. However,
the Investment Manager monitors the exposure to currency risk on all foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities
including both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities.

The Fund enters in some forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge some of its foreign currency exposures to maintain
limited exposure to non-US$ currencies. Refer to Note 11 for the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at
year end.

The table below summarizes the Fund’s exposure to currency risk as at 30 September together with the percentage of
reasonable possible change in foreign currencies and the estimated impact on net asset value of the Fund.

% of

reasonable Estimated

possible impact on

change net asset

us$ against US$ value

Net currency exposures (Note*) equivalent (Note*) Us$
2022

Australian Dollar 351,935,772 -11.0 (38,712,935)

Canadian Dollar 44,783,459 -7.8 (3,493,110)

Chinese Yuan (Offshore) 312,800,096 -9.5 (29,716,009)

Euro 16,131,664 -15.5 (2,500,408)

Hong Kong Dollar 317,520,115 -0.8 (2,540,161)

Indian Rupee 6,222,529 -8.8 (547,583)

Indonesian Rupiah 70,836,761 -6.0 (4,250,206)

Korean Won 119,781,846 -17.2 (20,602,478)

Malaysian Ringgit 6,555,773 9.7 (635,910)

New Zealand Dollar 25,494,563 -18.0 (4,589,021)

Singapore Dollar 115,994,971 -5.4 (6,263,728)

Sterling 66,828,349 -17.2 (11,494,476)

Taiwan Dollar 147,517,467 -12.2 (17,997,131)

Thai Baht 23,264,725 -10.3 (2,396,267)

1,625,668,090 (145,739,423)
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% of
reasonable Estimated
possible impact on
change net asset
us$ against US$ value
Net currency exposures (Note*) equivalent (Note*) USs$
2021
Australian Dollar 306,164,535 +0.8 2,449,316
Canadian Dollar 57,629,324 +5.4 3,111,983
Chinese Yuan (Offshore) 346,913,126 +5.1 17,692,569
Euro 22,829,217 -1.2 (273,951)
Hong Kong Dollar 365,174,528 -0.4 (1,460,698)
Indian Rupee 18,492,616 -0.6 (110,956)
Indonesian Rupiah 64,468,483 +4.0 2,578,739
Korean Won 151,287,796 -1.2 (1,815,454)
New Zealand Dollar 31,455,861 +4.4 1,384,058
Singapore Dollar 106,883,774 +0.6 641,303
Sterling 84,058,982 +4.3 3,614,536
Taiwan Dollar 228,210,050 +4.0 9,128,402
Thai Baht 44,331,751 -6.3 (2,792,900)
1,827,900,043 34,146,947

If the foreign currency fluctuations were to move in the opposite direction, this would result in an opposite movement in the
net asset value of the Fund by the same amount, assuming all other variables that may impact the net asset value of the
Fund are held constant.

Note:

*

Net currency exposures on assets and liabilities include both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities.

% of reasonable possible change is based on the actual historical change in the respective currencies against the
functional currency of the Fund in the past 12 months and does not include remote or “worst case” scenarios or
"stress tests” nor represent the Investment Manager's forecast of the Fund's future returns.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not be able to pay amounts in full when due.

The Manager monitors credit risk with reference to a number of factors including history of default and the credit rating of
counterparties. The Manager considers the credit risk of other receivables such as amounts receivable on allotment,
amounts due from brokers or dividend and other accounts receivable, to be insignificant as the Fund has no default history
on such receivables in the past 5 years. Overall, the Manager considers the probability of default to be close to zero as
these instruments have a low risk of default and the Fund's counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their contractual
obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognized based on 12-month expected credit
losses.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 September 2022 and 2021 is the carrying amount of the financial assets as
shown in the Statement of Financial Position.

All transactions in investments are settled on a delivery versus payment basis using approved brokers. The risk of default
is considered minimal, as delivery of investments sold is only made when the Fund’s custodian bank has received
payment. For a purchase, payment is made once the investments have been received by the Fund’s custodian bank. The
trade will fail if either party fails to meet the obligation.
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(c]

The table below summarizes the credit rating of the banks/brokers/custodian which the Fund has placed the financial
assets as at 30 September.

2022 2021
Exposure to Exposure to
counterparties counterparties
Us$ Us$
Bank balances
S&P(AA)/Moody’s(Aa)/FITCH(AA) 2,607,831 7,097,700
S&P(A)/Moody’s(A)/FITCH(A) 23,207,519 8,898,441
Derivatives issued by brokers
S&P(AA)/Moody’s(Aa)/FITCH(AA) 936,404 244,900
S&P(A)/Moody’s(A)/FITCH(A) 667,791 863,462
Investment balances with custodian
S&P(A)/Moody’s(A)/FITCH(A) 1,195,682,210 1,292,211,675

Liquidity risk

The Fund is exposed to daily redemption of units, the majority of its assets in investments are traded in an active market
which can be readily disposed of. The Manager may also limit the total number of units redeemed for the Fund on any
dealing day to 10% or more of the units in issue on any dealing day.

The Fund has the ability to enter into borrowing arrangements subject to the investment restrictions and guidelines.

The table below summarizes the Fund'’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
as at 30 September to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2022 2021

Less than 1 month 1to 12 months Less than 1 month 1 to 12 months

Us$ USs$ Us$ Us$

Short-term bank loans - unsecured - - 2,000,000 -

Amounts due to brokers 3,631,468 - 8,443,967 -

Amounts payable on redemption 8,622,901 - 8,051,088 -

Distribution payable 5,610,708 - 4,997,620 -

Derivatives 16,987,162 59 7,152,957 8,799

Other accounts payable 1,694,762 - 1,768,064 -
Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units 1,192,541,458 - 1,297,666,248 -

Total financial liabilities 1,229,088,459 59 1,330,079,944 8,799

The Investment Manager manages the Fund’s liquidity risk by investing in investments that the Investment Manager
expects to liquidate normally within 1 month and making short-term bank borrowing to meet the total financial liabilities.

(d) Offsetting and amounts subject to master netting arrangements and similar agreements

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Fund was subject to master netting arrangements with certain derivative
counterparties.

In the event of default, the Fund and its counterparties have the option to settle transactions on net basis. An event of
default may include failure to pay or deliver, breach of agreement or bankruptcy.
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The following tables summarize the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting, master netting
arrangements and similar agreements as at 30 September by types of financial instruments.

2022

Assets
Derivatives

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Liabilities
Derivatives

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss

N

021

Assets
Derivatives

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Liabilities
Derivatives

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and

loss

Gross amounts Related amounts subject to master
of recognized  netting arrangements and similar
financial assets agreements net off against
presented in the
Statement of

Financial Financial Collateral and
Position Instruments  margin deposits Net amount
Us$ Us$ Us$ USs$
1,604,195 (1,206,777) - 397,418
1,604,195 (1,206,777) - 397,418
Gross amounts Related amounts subject to master
of recognized  netting arrangements and similar
financial agreements net off against
liabilities
presented in the
Statement of
Financial Financial Collateral and
Position Instruments  margin deposits Net amount
Us$ us$ USs$ Us$
16,987,221 (1,206,777) - 15,780,444
16,987,221 (1,206,777) - 15,780,444
Gross amounts Related amounts subject to master
of recognized  netting arrangements and similar
financial assets agreements net off against
presented in the
Statement of
Financial Financial Collateral and
Position Instruments  margin deposits Net amount
uUss$ us$ Us$ uss
990,585 (226,556) - 764,029
990,585 (226,556) - 764,029
Gross amounts Related amounts subject to master
of recognized  netting arrangements and similar
financial agreements net off against
liabilities
presented in the
Statement of
Financial Financial Collateral and
Position Instruments  margin deposits Net amount
uUss$ us$ uss$ uss
6,001,191 (226,556) - 5,774,635
6,001,191 (226,556) - 5,774,635
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Capital risk management

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units which is subject to
allotments and redemptions of redeemable units. The Fund’s objective for capital management is to provide returns and
long-term capital growth for unitholders.

In order to maintain the capital structure, the Management performs the following:

- Monitor allotment and redemption activities relative to the liquid assets.

- To protect the interest of unitholders and in exceptional circumstances, the Manager may also limit the total number of
units redeemed for the Fund on any dealing day to 10% or more of the units in issue on any dealing day.

- Monitor fund investment guidelines and restrictions, in accordance with the constitutional documents, to maintain
sufficient liquidity through diversification.

Fair value estimation

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Management considers that the carrying values of assets and liabilities were
reasonable approximations of their fair value.

HKFRS 13 requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The table below summarizes the Fund’s investments and derivatives (by class) within the fair value hierarchy measured at
fair value as at 30 September:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Listed/Quoted Investments Uss$ USs$ uss$ Us$
2022
Assets
Equities 1,195,682,210 - - 1,195,682,210
Derivatives - 1,604,195 - 1,604,195
Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 1,195,682,210 1,604,195 - 1,197,286,405
Liabilities
Derivatives - 16,987,221 - 16,987,221
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit and

loss - 16,987,221 - 16,987,221
2021
Assets
Equities 1,292,211,675 - - 1,292,211,675
Derivatives - 1,108,362 - 1,108,362
Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 1,292,211,675 1,108,362 - 1,293,320,037
Liabilities
Derivatives - 7,161,756 - 7,161,756

Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit and
loss - 7,161,756 - 7,161,756
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Investments, whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within level 1,
include active listed equities and exchange traded derivatives. The Fund does not adjust the quoted price for these
instruments.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer/broker quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2.

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently.
There were no transfers between levels for the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021.

For assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost, their carrying values are a reasonable approximation of fair value as at
30 September 2022 and 2021.

5 Net (losses)/gains on investments and derivatives

2022 2021

uss$ uss$

Change in unrealized gains/losses in value of investments and derivatives (344,940,585) 121,863,151
Realized (losses)/gains on sale of investments and derivatives (44,475,059) 174,458,507
(389,415,644) 296,321,658

6 Distribution

In the event that the amount available for distribution is insufficient to pay distributions as the Fund declares, the Manager may
in its discretion determine that such distributions be paid from capital.

No undistributed income was carried forward at the end of the year (2021: nil).

2022 2021
Distribution Class Ex date Pay date Rate Units uss$ uss$
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 A$0.0309 15,798,906.499 (368,556)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 C$0.0337  7,453,695.731 (203,648)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 EURO0.0287  1,907,573.206 (63,926)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 GBP0.0339  4,437,121.286 (207,562)
HKD Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 HK$0.0350 162,705,608.385 (732,220)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021  NZ$0.0351 4,572,868.313 (115,766)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 CNY0.0335  1,858,625.180 (9,746)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 CNY0.0625 10,229,138.600 (100,067)
PRC USD Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 US$0.0352  1,808,866.930 (63,672)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 CNY0.0646 149,162,983.922 (1,508,218)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 S$0.0348  1,042,064.115 (26,977)
USD Class (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 US$0.0350 30,357,742.018 (1,062,521)
USD Class C (mth) 29.10.2021 8.11.2021 US$0.0366 11,962,302.095 (437,820)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 A$0.0310 15,535,818.497 (342,714)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 C$0.0336  7,566,053.334 (198,725)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 [EURO0.0288  1,922,166.764 (62,381)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 GBP0.0339  5,182,332.610 (233,586)
HKD Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 HK$0.0351 161,286,375.091 (725,826)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 NZ$0.0368  4,508,711.948 (112,718)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 CNY0.0335  1,828,453.790 (9,583)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 CNY0.0580 10,127,002.910 (91,897)
PRC USD Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021  US$0.0351 1,779,314.100 (62,454)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 CNY0.0600 147,383,622.819 (1,383,537)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 S$$0.0352 988,788.466 (25,397)
USD Class (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 US$0.0350 30,347,912.578 (1,062,177)
USD Class C (mth) 30.11.2021 8.12.2021 US$0.0366 11,591,153.345 (424,236)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 A$0.0289 15,439,413.106 (323,651)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 C$0.0309  7,499,750.852 (181,226)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 EURO0.0241 1,928,066.905 (52,651)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 GBP0.0299  5,118,707.487 (206,563)
HKD Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 HK$0.0352 158,660,355.660 (715,969)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 NZ$0.0365  4,484,140.659 (111,910)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 CNY0.0334  1,660,992.020 (8,701)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 CNY0.0584  9,774,689.520 (89,535)
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2022 2021

Distribution Class Ex date Pay date Rate Units uss$ uss$
PRC USD Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 US$0.0352  1,677,425.250 (59,045)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 31122021 10.1.2022 CNY0.0604 143,600,341.247 (1,360,404)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 S$$0.0356 817,879.670 (21,533)
USD Class (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 US$0.0350 30,704,122.424 (1,074,644)
USD Class C (div) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 US$0.1220 1,036,816.691 (126,492)
USD Class C (mth) 31.12.2021 10.1.2022 US$0.0367 11,758,882.180 (431,551)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 31.1.2022 11.2.2022 A$0.0312  16,403,034.997 (357,961)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 31.1.2022 11.2.2022 C$0.0334 7,345,515.442 (192,085)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 31.1.2022 11.2.2022 EURO0.0275 1,771,264.990 (54,387)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 31.1.2022 11.2.2022 GBP0.0346 4,5681,222.799 (212,626)
HKD Class (mth) 31.1.2022 11.2.2022 HK$0.0351 187,328,523.797 (843,665)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 31.1.2022 11.2.2022 NZ$0.0369 4,851,026.702 (117,372)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 28.1.2022 11.2.2022 CNY0.0333  1,674,464.160 (8,754)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  28.1.2022 11.2.2022 CNY0.0547 9,356,237.910 (80,346)
PRC USD Class (mth) 28.1.2022 11.2.2022 US$0.0352 1,626,483.210 (57,252)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 31.1.2022 11.2.2022 CNY0.0566 148,981,499.568 (1,324,644)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 31.1.2022 11.2.2022 S$%$0.0355 851,113.446 (22,285)
USD Class (mth) 31.1.2022 11.2.2022 US$0.0350 35,744,141.658 (1,251,045)
USD Class C (mth) 31.1.2022 11.2.2022 US$0.0368 1,604,735.010 (59,054)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 28.2.2022  8.3.2022 A$0.0310 16,946,854.617 (379,646)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 28.2.2022  8.3.2022 C$0.0338 6,957,953.515 (184,606)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 28.2.2022 8.3.2022 EURO0.0284 1,711,901.488 (54,673)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 28.2.2022 8.3.2022 GBP0.0363 4,503,171.270 (219,329)
HKD Class (mth) 28.2.2022 8.3.2022 HK$0.0351 199,777,385.278 (897,968)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 28.2.2022  8.3.2022 NZ$0.0375 5,176,586.920 (130,809)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 28.2.2022 8.3.2022 CNYO0.0332 1,653,700.390 (8,701)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  28.2.2022 8.3.2022 CNY0.0573 9,725,827.860 (88,319)
PRC USD Class (mth) 28.2.2022 8.3.2022 US$0.0352 1,615,115.730 (56,852)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 28.2.2022 8.3.2022 CNY0.0593 152,298,923.969 (1,430,229)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 28.2.2022  8.3.2022 S$$0.0352 804,466.281 (20,925)
USD Class (mth) 28.2.2022 8.3.2022 US$0.0350 39,566,506.879 (1,384,828)
USD Class C (mth) 28.2.2022 8.3.2022 US$0.0368 1,644,973.315 (60,535)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 A$0.0285 17,181,177.650 (367,713)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 C$0.0329 6,913,334.379 (182,097)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 EURO0.0247 1,691,630.294 (46,490)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 GBPO0.0351 4,562,806.621 (210,867)
HKD Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 HK$0.0352 213,456,752.438 (959,430)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 NZ$0.0369 5,159,539.075 (132,424)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 CNY0.0334 1,676,555.190 (8,821)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  31.3.2022 11.4.2022 CNY0.0592 9,792,978.500 (91,326)
PRC USD Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 US$0.0351 1,603,181.650 (56,272)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 CNY0.0612 154,417,281.152 (1,488,688)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 S$$0.0346 814,104.778 (20,813)
USD Class (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 US$0.0350 40,968,152.226 (1,433,885)
USD Class C (div) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 US$0.1222 9,515,622.001 (1,162,809)
USD Class C (mth) 31.3.2022 11.4.2022 US$0.0368 1,747,637.786 (64,313)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 A$0.0285 18,076,561.926 (366,114)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 C$0.0348 7,022,342.786 (191,211)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 EURO0.0248 1,645,532.186 (43,051)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 GBP0.0358 5,333,293.788 (239,715)
HKD Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 HK$0.0353 236,497,541.330 (1,064,007)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 NZ$0.0369 5,473,484.296 (131,089)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 CNY0.0338 1,684,618.190 (8,573)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  29.4.2022 11.5.2022 CNY0.0560 9,942,344.240 (83,830)
PRC USD Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 US$0.0351 1,676,157.730 (55,323)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 CNY0.0580 161,050,808.164 (1,406,409)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 S$$0.0351 719,357.406 (18,285)
USD Class (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 US$0.0350 42,573,839.023 (1,490,083)
USD Class C (mth) 29.4.2022 11.5.2022 US$0.0368 1,756,733.409 (64,648)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2022  9.6.2022 A$0.0276  18,410,099.521 (364,499)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2022 9.6.2022 C$0.0343 7,389,925.942 (200,399)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2022 9.6.2022 EURO0.0223 1,692,301.447 (40,427)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2022 9.6.2022 GBP0.0345 5,606,007.776 (243,751)
HKD Class (mth) 31.5.2022 9.6.2022 HK$0.0354 242,703,005.003 (1,095,103)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2022 9.6.2022 NZ$0.0359 5,618,039.935 (131,288)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 31.5.2022 9.6.2022 CNY0.0351 1,791,321.800 (9,413)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  31.5.2022 9.6.2022 CNY0.0528 9,852,729.120 (77,885)
PRC USD Class (mth) 3152022 9.6.2022 US$0.0351  1,537,123.360 (53,953)
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RMB Hedged Class (mth) 3152022 962022 CNY0.0546 165,334,439.855 (1,351,508)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 3152022 9.6.2022  S$0.0350  739,170.379 (18,871)
USD Class (mth) 31.5.2022 9.6.2022 US$0.0350 42,339,760.367 (1,481,890)
USD Class C (mth) 3152022 9.6.2022 US$0.0369  2,103,036.589 (77,602)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 A$0.0287 18,737,388.159 (369,792)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 3062022 11.7.2022  C$0.0338  8,101,885.406 (212,290)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 EURO0.0193 1,859,831.102 (37,526)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 GBP0.0322 5,864,002.779 (229,313)
HKD Class (mth) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 HK$0.0354 262,000,559.649 (1,181,965)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 NZ$0.0365 6,247,705.421 (141,785)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 CNY0.0350  1,793,737.200 (9,364)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  30.6.2022 11.7.2022 CNY0.0434 9,682,950.620 (62,683)
PRC USD Class (mth) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 US$0.0352  1,550,925.410 (54,593)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 CNYO0.0449 170,270,705.404 (1,140,353)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2022 12.7.2022 S$$0.0343 841,412.694 (20,737)
USD Class (mth) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 US$0.0350  44,448,080.366 (1,555,682)
USD Class C (div) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 US$0.1226 9,362,815.428 (1,147,881)
USD Class C (mth) 30.6.2022 11.7.2022 US$0.0369 2,176,046.528 (80,296)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 29.7.2022  8.8.2022 A$0.0293 19,279,019.391 (394,170)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 29.7.2022  8.8.2022 C$0.0336 8,342,211.586 (218,752)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 29.7.2022 8.8.2022 EURO0.0158 2,090,464.294 (33,678)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 29.7.2022 8.8.2022 GBP0.0290 6,090,757.550 (214,943)
HKD Class (mth) 29.7.2022  8.8.2022 HK$0.0354 265,366,854.788 (1,196,701)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 29.7.2022 8.8.2022 NZ$0.0346 6,595,193.832 (143,089)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 29.7.2022 8.8.2022 CNY0.0354 1,737,000.660 (9,106)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  29.7.2022  8.8.2022 CNY0.0357 9,651,494.220 (51,025)
PRC USD Class (mth) 29.7.2022  8.8.2022 US$0.0352 1,5616,237.460 (53,372)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 29.7.2022  8.8.2022 CNY0.0371 180,003,324.326 (988,941)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 29.7.2022  8.8.2022 S$$0.0339 849,916.266 (20,835)
USD Class (mth) 29.7.2022  8.8.2022 US$0.0350 44,411,156.248 (1,554,389)
USD Class C (mth) 29.7.2022 8.8.2022 US$0.0369 2,228,273.039 (82,223)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2022 8.9.2022  A$0.0280 18,898,308.920 (362,760)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2022  8.9.2022 C$0.0340 8,189,367.786 (212,613)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2022 8.9.2022 EUR0.0153 2,140,469.713 (32,931)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2022 8.9.2022 GBP0.0283 6,466,149.431 (212,929)
HKD Class (mth) 31.8.2022 8.9.2022 HK$0.0354 265,284,076.361 (1,196,488)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2022 8.9.2022 NZ$0.0342 6,250,013.611 (131,050)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 31.8.2022 8.9.2022 CNYO0.0360 1,729,793.220 (9,034)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  31.8.2022  8.9.2022 CNY0.0301 9,607,747.020 (41,515)
PRC USD Class (mth) 31.8.2022 8.9.2022 US$0.0352 1,493,334.820 (52,566)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2022 8.9.2022 CNY0.0312 177,269,593.214 (802,317)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2022  8.9.2022 S$0.0326 850,198.674 (19,867)
USD Class (mth) 31.8.2022 8.9.2022 US$0.0350 43,521,703.591 (1,523,258)
USD Class C (mth) 31.8.2022 8.9.2022 US$0.0369 2,243,012.581 (82,767)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2022 11.10.2022 A$0.0282 18,802,855.481 (340,918)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2022 12.10.2022 C$0.0350 8,137,233.985 (207,273)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2022 11.10.2022 EURO0.0172 2,073,545.880 (34,939)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2022 11.10.2022 GBP0.0291 6,536,876.022 (212,346)
HKD Class (mth) 30.9.2022 11.10.2022 HK$0.0354 253,090,273.759 (1,141,339)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2022 11.10.2022 NZ$0.0328 6,002,090.910 (111,359)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 30.9.2022 12.10.2022 CNYO0.0370 1,619,171.660 (8,403)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  30.9.2022 12.10.2022 CNY0.0320 9,382,900.800 (42,116)
PRC USD Class (mth) 30.9.2022 12.10.2022 US$0.0352 1,455,296.520 (51,226)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2022 12.10.2022 CNY0.0330 175,077,078.406 (810,411)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2022 11.10.2022 S$$0.0325 780,393.257 (17,676)
USD Class (mth) 30.9.2022 12.10.2022 US$0.0350 42,238,223.578 (1,478,338)
USD Class C (div) 30.9.2022 12.10.2022 US$0.1229 8,696,075.145 (1,068,748)
USD Class C (mth) 30.9.2022 12.10.2022 US$0.0370 2,313,938.405 (85,616)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 A$0.0271  18,130,864.663 (344,188)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 C$0.0280 8,217,444.236 (172,145)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 EURO0.0242 1,448,171.156 (40,855)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 GBP0.0281 3,668,935.473 (132,892)
HKD Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 HK$0.0299 157,012,691.849 (605,499)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 NZ$0.0282 4,712,611.666 (87,711)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 CNY0.0300 3,248,728.270 (14,502)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 CNY0.0507 21,940,601.490 (165,517)
PRC USD Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 US$0.0302 3,303,691.880 (99,771)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 CNY0.0524 138,442,834.269 (1,079,412)
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SGD Hedged Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020  S$0.0289  667,206.200 (14,003)
USD Class (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 US$0.0300 33,114,715.026 (993,441)
USD Class C (mth) 30.10.2020 9.11.2020 US$0.0312 10,142,601.086 (316,449)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020  A$0.0262 18,178,187.874 (352,343)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 C$0.0277 8,143,545.335 (173,848)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 EUR0.0236  1,431,590.794 (40,369)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 GBP0.0278 3,606,368.780 (133,793)
HKD Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 HK$0.0300 153,550,044.827 (594,330)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 NZ$0.0280 4,5623,399.746 (89,115)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 CNY0.0296 3,119,868.550 (14,059)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 CNY0.0502 19,254,783.000 (147,154)
PRC USD Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 US$0.0302 2,957,904.430 (89,329)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 CNY0.0519 135,785,584.270 (1,072,881)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 S$$0.0288 662,939.258 (14,271)
USD Class (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 US$0.0300 32,804,916.454 (984,147)
USD Class C (mth) 30.11.2020 8.12.2020 US$0.0312 10,772,583.813 (336,105)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 A$0.0238 17,648,021.240 (322,788)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 C$0.0259 7,833,493.004 (159,028)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 EURO0.0196 1,330,799.135 (32,084)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 GBP0.0244 3,588,262.790 (119,156)
HKD Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 HK$0.0300 149,885,150.500 (580,025)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021  NZ$0.0269 4,327,775.733 (83,861)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 CNY0.0294 3,061,758.030 (13,840)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 CNY0.0510 17,167,688.390 (134,615)
PRC USD Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 US$0.0302 2,423,718.730 (73,196)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 CNY0.0527 134,317,479.700 (1,088,318)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 S$$0.0289 670,744.269 (14,655)
USD Class (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 US$0.0300 31,002,691.630 (930,081)
USD Class C (div) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 US$0.1038 972,273.489 (100,922)
USD Class C (mth) 31.12.2020 11.1.2021 US$0.0312 11,217,718.590 (349,993)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 29.1.2021  8.2.2021 A$0.0254 17,654,301.191 (343,915)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 29.1.2021 8.22021  C$0.0274  8,027,996.922 (171,782)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 29.1.2021 8.2.2021 EURO0.0218 1,604,385.409 (42,399)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 29.1.2021 8.2.2021 GBP0.0268 3,899,423.311 (143,380)
HKD Class (mth) 29.1.2021 8.2.2021 HK$0.0309 158,086,930.089 (630,052)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 29.1.2021 9.2.2021 NZ$0.0275 4,479,419.801 (88,212)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 29.1.2021  8.2.2021 CNY0.0300 2,495,597.930 (11,563)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  29.1.2021  8.2.2021 CNY0.0513 12,528,610.260 (99,263)
PRC USD Class (mth) 29.1.2021 8.2.2021 US$0.0312 1,935,597.120 (60,391)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 29.1.2021  8.2.2021 CNY0.0529 140,928,247.916 (1,151,385)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 29.1.2021  8.2.2021 S$0.0300 885,825.193 (19,993)
USD Class (mth) 29.1.2021 8.2.2021 US$0.0310 31,953,681.669 (990,564)
USD Class C (mth) 29.1.2021 8.2.2021 US$0.0323 11,430,041.680 (369,190)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 26.2.2021  8.3.2021 A$0.0271 16,777,212.437 (361,798)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 26.2.2021  8.3.2021 C$0.0289 8,092,320.726 (186,848)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 26.2.2021  8.3.2021 EURO0.0244 1,645,791.402 (49,088)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 26.2.2021  8.3.2021 GBP0.0292 4,082,717.117 (168,481)
HKD Class (mth) 26.2.2021 8.3.2021 HK$0.0309 163,576,622.364 (651,851)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 26.2.2021 8.3.2021 NZ$0.0292 4,263,504.170 (92,605)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 26.2.2021  8.3.2021 CNY0.0300 2,252,172.940 (10,456)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  26.2.2021  8.3.2021 CNY0.0536 12,209,374.600 (101,274)
PRC USD Class (mth) 26.2.2021  8.3.2021 US$0.0312 1,781,672.260 (55,588)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 26.2.2021 8.3.2021 CNY0.0554 140,825,770.339 (1,207,346)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 26.2.2021  8.3.2021 S$0.0302 963,996.629 (22,043)
USD Class (mth) 26.2.2021 8.3.2021 US$0.0310 33,301,097.103 (1,032,334)
USD Class C (mth) 26.2.2021 8.3.2021 US$0.0323 11,611,261.651 (375,044)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2021 13.4.2021 A$0.0272 16,677,125.909 (345,498)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2021 13.4.2021 C$0.0287 8,159,278.541 (186,316)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2021 13.4.2021 EURO0.0234 1,917,454.900 (52,734)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2021 13.4.2021 GBP0.0288 4,216,663.798 (167,551)
HKD Class (mth) 31.3.2021 13.4.2021 HK$0.0310 168,406,366.110 (671,507)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2021 13.4.2021 NZ$0.0295 4,577,870.688 (94,580)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 31.3.2021 13.4.2021 CNYO0.0302 2,187,354.360 (10,068)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  31.3.2021 13.4.2021 CNY0.0552 11,250,640.290 (94,653)
PRC USD Class (mth) 31.3.2021 13.4.2021 US$0.0312 1,747,983.370 (54,537)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2021 13.4.2021 CNY0.0570 146,428,971.124 (1,272,092)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 31.3.2021 13.4.2021 S$$0.0312 1,035,498.012 (24,045)
USD Class (mth) 31.32021 13.4.2021 US$0.0310 34,219,177.614 (1,060,794)

_48 -



Annual report for the

JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund year ended 30 September 2022
2022 2021
Distribution Class Ex date Pay date Rate Units uss$ uss$
USD Class C (div) 31.32021 13.4.2021 US$0.1074  1,012,678.898 (108,762)
USD Class C (mth) 31.32021 13.4.2021 US$0.0323 11,965,379.936 (386,482)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 30.4.2021 10.5.2021 A$0.0271  16,440,852.304 (346,034)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 3042021 10.5.2021  C$0.0289  7,821,025.772 (183,852)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 30.4.2021 10.5.2021 EURO0.0240 1,919,711.163 (55,804)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 30.4.2021 10.5.2021 GBP0.0293  4,138,135.104 (169,092)
HKD Class (mth) 30.4.2021 10.5.2021 HK$0.0310 169,800,649.663 (678,039)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 30.4.2021 10.5.2021  NZ$0.0300 4,603,419.743 (99,945)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 30.4.2021 10.5.2021 CNYO0.0302 2,012,417.610 (9,399)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  30.4.2021 10.5.2021 CNY0.0568 11,111,440.390 (97,604)
PRC USD Class (mth) 3042021 10.5.2021 US$0.0312  1,826,523.850 (56,988)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.4.2021 10.5.2021 CNYO0.0586 145,554,240.280 (1,319,087)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 3042021 10.5.2021  S$0.0314  1,016,199.217 (24,055)
USD Class (mth) 30.4.2021 10.5.2021 US$0.0310 33,668,510.027 (1,043,724)
USD Class C (mth) 30.4.2021 10.5.2021 US$0.0323 11,799,825.035 (381,134)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 3152021 8.6.2021  A$0.0272 16,206,429.981 (339,846)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2021  8.6.2021 C$0.0293 7,681,696.031 (186,319)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2021 8.6.2021 EUR0.0245 2,007,692.256 (59,919)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2021 8.6.2021 GBP0.0297 4,122,907.549 (173,616)
HKD Class (mth) 31.5.2021 8.6.2021 HK$0.0310 169,691,790.606 (677,761)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2021 8.6.2021 NZ$0.0302 4,511,587.005 (98,781)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 31.5.2021 8.6.2021 CNY0.0299 2,020,667.450 (9,487)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  31.5.2021  8.6.2021 CNY0.0531 11,688,073.660 (97,454)
PRC USD Class (mth) 31.5.2021 8.6.2021 US$0.0312 1,888,954.030 (58,935)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2021 8.6.2021 CNY0.0548 143,913,251.172 (1,238,352)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 31.5.2021  8.6.2021 S$$0.0312 1,058,373.455 (24,956)
USD Class (mth) 31.5.2021 8.6.2021 US$0.0310 32,777,644.415 (1,016,107)
USD Class C (mth) 31.5.2021 8.6.2021 US$0.0324 11,689,965.381 (378,755)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2021  9.7.2021 A$0.0271 15,438,800.918 (314,400)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2021  9.7.2021 C$0.0297 7,562,183.260 (181,273)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2021  9.7.2021 EURO0.0245 1,928,903.414 (56,261)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2021 9.7.2021 GBP0.0298 4,130,231.436 (170,264)
HKD Class (mth) 30.6.2021 9.7.2021 HK$0.0310 161,257,344.021 (643,879)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2021 9.7.2021  NZ$0.0300 4,498,993.245 (94,384)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 30.6.2021  9.7.2021 CNYO0.0301 2,067,004.990 (9,623)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  30.6.2021  9.7.2021 CNYO0.0513 11,275,765.240 (89,469)
PRC USD Class (mth) 30.6.2021 9.7.2021 US$0.0311 1,909,235.330 (59,377)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2021  9.7.2021 CNYO0.0531 143,337,501.578 (1,177,242)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 30.6.2021  9.7.2021 S$$0.0309 1,053,461.381 (24,203)
USD Class (mth) 30.6.2021 9.7.2021 US$0.0310 31,839,921.634 (987,038)
USD Class C (div) 30.6.2021 9.7.2021 US$0.1075 1,039,005.356 (111,693)
USD Class C (mth) 30.6.2021 9.7.2021 US$0.0324  11,477,229.999 (371,862)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 30.7.2021  9.8.2021 A$0.0307 16,207,420.692 (368,225)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 30.7.2021  9.8.2021 C$0.0334 8,175,062.393 (219,368)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 30.7.2021  9.8.2021 EURO0.0283 1,945,742.727 (65,441)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 30.7.2021 9.8.2021 GBP0.0334 4,217,799.308 (196,879)
HKD Class (mth) 30.7.2021  9.8.2021 HK$0.0350 165,515,393.719 (745,397)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 30.7.2021 9.8.2021 NZ$0.0335 4,712,469.031 (110,681)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 30.7.2021 9.8.2021 CNY0.0339 1,997,650.930 (10,488)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  30.7.2021  9.8.2021 CNY0.0597 10,950,621.300 (101,249)
PRC USD Class (mth) 30.7.2021 9.8.2021 US$0.0352 1,905,849.100 (67,086)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.7.2021 9.8.2021 CNY0.0618 146,369,354.001 (1,400,935)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 30.7.2021 10.8.2021 S$$0.0346 1,046,404.570 (26,763)
USD Class (mth) 30.7.2021  9.8.2021 US$0.0350 31,630,346.556 (1,107,062)
USD Class C (mth) 30.7.2021 9.8.2021 US$0.0366 11,380,156.708 (416,514)
AUD Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2021  8.9.2021 A$0.0307 15,885,297.832 (355,932)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2021  8.9.2021 C$0.0337 7,719,867.272 (206,664)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2021 8.9.2021 EURO0.0287 1,987,620.941 (67,307)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2021 8.9.2021 GBP0.0336 4,196,930.648 (194,004)
HKD Class (mth) 31.8.2021 8.9.2021 HK$0.0351 163,162,588.941 (735,538)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2021 8.9.2021 NZ$0.0339 4,736,948.216 (112,536)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 31.8.2021 8.9.2021 CNYO0.0341 1,918,676.030 (10,124)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  31.8.2021 8.9.2021 CNY0.0608 11,071,929.540 (104,165)
PRC USD Class (mth) 31.82021 89.2021 US$0.0352  1,869,130.300 (65,793)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2021 8.9.2021 CNY0.0629 146,792,974.706 (1,428,725)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 31.8.2021  8.9.2021 S$$0.0344 1,054,768.190 (26,993)
USD Class (mth) 31.8.2021 8.9.2021 US$0.0350 31,188,200.287 (1,091,587)
USD Class C (mth) 31.8.2021 8.9.2021 US$0.0366 11,878,797.201 (434,764)
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AUD Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2021 11.10.2021 A$0.0306 15,760,602.185 (348,371)
CAD Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2021 12.10.2021 C$0.0338  7,525,573.519 (200,785)
EUR Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2021 11.10.2021 EURO0.0287 1,914,891.670 (63,693)
GBP Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2021 11.10.2021 GBP0.0336  4,438,028.335 (201,063)
HKD Class (mth) 30.9.2021 11.10.2021  HK$0.0351 161,229,788.200 (726,965)
NZD Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2021 11.10.2021 NZ$0.0330  4,705,292.384 (107,116)
PRC RMB Class (mth) 30.9.2021 11.10.2021 CNYO0.0340 1,891,564.740 (9,965)
PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)  30.9.2021 11.10.2021 CNYO0.0636 10,346,118.220 (101,954)
PRC USD Class (mth) 30.9.2021 12.10.2021 US$0.0352 1,822,820.030 (64,163)
RMB Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2021 11.10.2021 CNYO0.0658 149,231,046.578 (1,521,445)
SGD Hedged Class (mth) 30.9.2021 11.10.2021 S$0.0346  1,056,230.405 (26,919)
USD Class (mth) 30.9.2021 12.10.2021  US$0.0350 30,499,840.291 (1,067,494)
USD Class C (div) 30.9.2021 12.10.2021 US$0.1218  1,026,607.148 (125,041)
USD Class C (mth) 30.9.2021 12.10.2021  US$0.0366 11,820,926.646 (432,646)
Total distribution to holders of redeemable units (61,929,863) (52,861,098)

7 Taxation

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Fund was authorized as a collective investment scheme under
Section 104 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and is therefore exempt from profits tax under Section 26A(1A) of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Overseas tax was withheld or paid on certain dividend income received and capital gains derived during the years ended 30
September 2022 and 2021.

8 Transactions with the Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions entered into during the year between the Fund and the
Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons. Connected Persons of the Trustee and the Manager are those as defined
in the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds established by the SFC. All such transactions were entered into in the ordinary
course of business and were on normal commercial terms.

(a) Investment transactions with Connected Persons of the Trustee and the Manager are set out below:

Aggregate
value of % of the % of the
purchases Fund's total Fund's total Average
and sales of aggregate  Commission commission  commission
investments value of paid paid in the rate
Name of company US$  transactions us$ year %
2022
J.P. Morgan India Private Limited 1,525,826 0.09 610 0.07 0.04
J.P. Morgan Securities Australia Limited 37,013,888 217 16,975 1.88 0.05
J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific)

Limited 88,069,315 5.17 56,971 6.29 0.06
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited 26,807,210 1.57 18,969 2.10 0.07
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited, Seoul 165,102 0.01 165 0.02 0.10
2021
HSBC Securities & Capital Markets (India)

Private Limited 3,738,067 0.22 4,112 0.32 0.11
J.P. Morgan India Private Limited 1,203,898 0.07 1,084 0.09 0.09
J.P. Morgan Securities Australia Limited 7,325,182 0.43 5,529 0.43 0.08
J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific)

Limited 71,709,776 4.21 55,659 4.37 0.08
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited 51,331,005 3.02 60,003 4.71 0.12
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited, Seoul 657,590 0.04 263 0.02 0.04
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(b) Balances with the Manager and its Connected Persons as at year end:

2022 2021

Uss$ uss$
Cash at banks 2,607,831 7,097,700
Amounts receivable 793,411 2,447,825
Amounts payable (1,590,113) (1,652,488)

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Fund entered into forward foreign exchange contracts with Connected
Persons of the Trustee, with realized losses amounting to US$5,224,086 (2021: realized gains amounting to
US$3,634,401).

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the income accruing to the Manager relating to allotments and redemptions in
the Fund, net of commission paid to agents, amounted to US$2,908 (2021: US$3,843).

Management fee for USD Class C (div) and USD Class C (mth) of 0.75% per annum and all other share classes of 1.5%
per annum of the net asset value of each Class is paid to JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited. Management fee is accrued on
each dealing day and is payable monthly in arrears.

The Manager also receives a valuation fee of US$40 per valuation if the Fund's net asset value is larger than US$5 million
but smaller than US$20 million, or US$70 per valuation if the Fund's net asset value is larger than US$20 million.

The Fund allows the Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons to subscribe for, and redeem, units of the Fund.

Certain members of the Manager’s group of companies held units of the Fund during the year and were entitled to profits
from transaction in units of the Fund as follows:

At the Profits from
beginning of Total Total At the end of transaction
the year allotments  redemptions the year Us$

2022

JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia

Pacific) Limited
- USD Class (acc) 40,744.830 25,649.426  (24,294.307) 42,099.949 72,249
- USD Class C (div) - - - -

JPMorgan Asset Management (S)
Limited
- USD Class (acc) 22,995.142 - (9,309.046) 13,686.096 21,361

2021

JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia

Pacific) Limited

- USD Class (acc) 63,615.058 13,300.878 (36,171.106) 40,744.830 60,538
- USD Class C (div) 100.000 1.029 (101.029) - 18
JPMorgan Asset Management (S)

Limited
- USD Class (acc) 18,618.090 7,540.986 (3,163.934) 22,995.142 6,707

Trustee's fee of 0.06% per annum of the net asset value of the Fund for the first US$40 million, 0.04% per annum for the
balance from US$40 million to US$70 million, and 0.025% per annum for the balance in excess of US$70 million is paid to
the Trustee. Trustee's fee is accrued on each dealing day and is payable monthly in arrears.

JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited, the registrar agent and Manager, receives a registrar's fee which varies depending on the
number of unitholders in the Fund and the number of transactions which occur. The range agreed with the Trustee is
between 0.015% and 0.5% per annum of the Fund's net asset value. The registrar's fee is payable quarterly in arrears.
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(i) During the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, in addition to the management fee, valuation fee and registrar's fee
as disclosed in Note 8(e) and 8(h), respective amounts received from/(paid to) the Manager, JPMorgan Funds (Asia)
Limited, and its Connected Persons were as follows:

2022 2021

Us$ us$
Interest on deposits 23,386 67,290
Safe custody and bank charges (34,471) (23,524)

Transaction costs (74,556) (62,272)

(j) During the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, in addition to the trustee’s fee as disclosed in Note 8(g), respective
amounts received from/(paid to) the Trustee, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, and its Connected Persons
were as follows:

2022 2021

uUss$ uss$
Interest on deposits 2,101 4,159
Other operating expenses - (148)
Interest expense (25,024) (12,427)
Transaction costs (78,539) (139,750)

Safe custody and bank charges (415,751) (458,122)

Borrowings
During the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Fund has unsecured short-term bank borrowings with The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, a Connected Person of the Trustee. All bank borrowings have a

duration of less than 7 days. All such transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms.

Soft dollar arrangements/Commission sharing arrangements

The Investment Manager has entered into soft dollar arrangements/commission sharing arrangements with brokers under
which certain goods and services used to support investment decision making are received by the Investment Manager. A
portion of the transaction commission paid by the Fund is retained by the brokers as compensation for the goods and services.

The goods and services must be of demonstrable benefit to the Fund and would be limited to research and advisory services.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Investment Manager obtained the services through soft dollar
arrangements/commission sharing arrangements on transactions amounting to US$1,411,296,461 (2021: US$1,259,721,702).
Commission which amounted to US$159,412 (2021: US$345,098) is paid from the Fund on these transactions.

Derivatives

Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at 30 September were as follows:

Unrealized
Contract to In exchange Settlement gains/(losses)
deliver for date Counterparty Us$
2022
Open contracts:
NZ$13,526 US$7,795 3 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 144
NZ$3,962 US$2,261 3 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 20
US$190,471 GBP177,234 3 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 7,380
US$464,915 S$669,188 3 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 1,455
US$1,099 GBP1,019 3 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 39
A$10,654 US$6,899 5 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 49
C$148,999 US$108,549 5 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 112
C$12,941 US$9,457 5 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 39
US$82,944 GBP75,164 5 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 968
US$65,736 EURG67,298 5 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 206
US$1,097 GBP1,021 5 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 43
US$1,113 GBP997 5 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 0
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Contract to
deliver

US$1,103
A$44,536
US$14,074
US$1,607
A$1,964,586
A$1,978,127
A$1,832,327
A$1,902,852
A$1,289,562
A$1,728,173
A$1,209,118
A$1,223,632
A$1,729,858
A$777,401
A$2,298,368
A$2,262,106
A$2,318,009
A$237,888
A$135,900
A$657,872
A$64,400
A$62,485
A$64,703
A$42,087
A$31,443
A$99,481
A$26,968
A$21,398
A$130,892
A$23,187
A$11,518
A$8,670
A$73,389
A$4,865
A$3,231
A$1,649
A$1,605
A$1,597
A$1,636
A$1,629
A$1,637
A$1,642
A$3,410
A$1,652
A$3,950
A$1,699
C$1,009,358
C$836,023
C$804,014
C$960,183
C$530,396
C$667,737
C$780,030
C$129,169
C$1,022,417
C$94,908
C$118,514
C$1,009,551
C$1,042,318
C$19,820
C$107,971
C$16,749
C$119,520
C$1,446
C$12,985
C$1,552
C$16,063

In exchange
for

EUR1,126
US$28,843
A$21,889
GBP1,439
US$1,337,848
US$1,334,124
US$1,234,013
US$1,274,254
US$870,735
US$1,150,569
US$815,171
US$820,933
US$1,139,099
US$522,927
US$1,494,064
US$1,465,965
US$1,501,578
US$159,401
US$91,203
US$426,118
US$44,180
US$42,821
US$43,494
US$28,803
US$21,571
US$65,058
US$18,300
US$14,664
US$84,999
US$15,380
US$7,809
US$5,895
US$47,427
US$3,260
US$2,183
US$1,119
US$1,089
US$1,083
US$1,103
US$1,095
US$1,098
US$1,094
US$2,230
US$1,096
US$2,565
US$1,100
US$767,959
US$637,184
US$610,645
US$719,645
US$402,852
US$497,069
US$576,569
US$98,289
US$748,248
US$72,526
US$88,477
US$736,194
US$760,024
US$15,036
US$78,897
US$12,413
US$87,144
US$1,095
US$9,488
US$1,142
US$11,702

Settlement
date

5 October 2022

6 October 2022

6 October 2022

6 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
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Counterparty

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Citibank N.A., London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
Citibank N.A., London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Royal Bank of Canada

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Royal Bank of Canada

Citibank N.A., London

Royal Bank of Canada

Goldman Sachs International, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Royal Bank of Canada

Standard Chartered Bank London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
Royal Bank of Canada

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
us$

0

208

0

0
74,438
62,007
55,658
50,545
41,428
39,195
37,597
34,024
26,642
22,987
16,001
11,222
10,885
6,417
3,807
3,046
2,765
2,637
1,884
1,737
1,350
1,082
957
903
823
468
402
320
232
131
105

59

57

56

51

47

46

38

37

33

25

8
33,414
28,781
25,536
20,886
16,865
11,133
8,915
4,288
4,199
3,459
2,230
1,509
1,493
612
323
224
165

42

38

13

12
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Contract to
deliver

CNH22,426,359
CNH20,328,402
CNH18,628,286
CNH23,090,042
CNH12,459,298
CNH14,884,949
CNH4,956,432
CNH24,400,717
CNH2,997,316
CNH2,175,924
CNH2,346,063
CNH1,526,742
CNH1,460,774
CNH1,181,360
CNH1,239,144
CNH892,370
CNH1,741,514
CNH1,063,451
CNH2,440,678
CNH3,489,172
CNH966,794
CNH644,931
CNH669,589
CNH1,100,115
CNH916,794
CNH956,435
CNH614,306
CNH398,277
CNH726,356
CNH18,162,753
CNH404,956
CNH426,250
CNH263,767
CNH251,739
CNH299,923
CNH1,001,549
CNH286,066
CNH274,311
CNH240,213
CNH336,780
CNH191,218
CNH127,963
CNH118,640
CNH516,321
CNH114,375
CNH103,032
CNH108,967
CNH95,754
CNH151,556
CNH223,793
CNH940,092
CNH116,852
CNH363,819
CNH596,044
CNH1,443,790
CNH28,596
CNH34,183
CNH30,891
CNH21,053
CNH20,008
CNH29,344
CNH7,620
CNH7,620
CNH7,620
CNH7,583
CNH9,397
CNH8,336

In exchange
for

US$3,243,038
US$2,920,770
US$2,673,359
US$3,287,073
US$1,785,648
US$2,108,250
US$714,072
US$3,438,347
US$433,714
US$313,880
US$336,854
US$221,578
US$212,004
US$171,035
US$177,967
US$129,195
US$248,188
US$152,774
US$345,651
US$492,753
US$138,822
US$92,786
US$96,193
US$156,567
US$130,767
US$136,311
US$88,208
US$57,594
US$103,520

US$2,549,931

US$58,261
US$61,108
US$38,222
US$36,479
US$43,093
US$141,476
US$41,036
US$39,367
US$34,437
US$47,944
US$27,405
US$18,516
US$17,167
US$72,934
US$16,478
US$14,844
US$15,650
US$13,752
US$21,569
US$31,697
US$132,197
US$16,674
US$51,266
US$83,816
US$202,725
Us$4,125
US$4,901
US$4,437
US$3,022
US$2,854
US$4,156
UsS$1,106
US$1,106
Us$1,106
US$1,097
US$1,349
US$1,201

Settlement
date

21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
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Unrealized

gains/(losses)

Counterparty us$

Goldman Sachs International, London 96,430
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 68,524
HSBC Bank Plc London 59,653

Goldman Sachs International, London 47,345
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 37,503
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 19,766
BNP Paribas SA Paris 18,643

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 14,720
BNP Paribas SA Paris 13,165

BNP Paribas SA Paris 8,580

BNP Paribas SA Paris 7,682

BNP Paribas SA Paris 7,364

BNP Paribas SA Paris 7,045

BNP Paribas SA Paris 5,280

BNP Paribas SA Paris 4,105

BNP Paribas SA Paris 3,988

Goldman Sachs International, London 3,839
Citibank N.A., London 3,563

BNP Paribas SA Paris 3,204

BNP Paribas SA Paris 3,193

Standard Chartered Bank London 3,172
Standard Chartered Bank London 2,296
Citibank N.A., London 2,244

BNP Paribas SA Paris 2,212

BNP Paribas SA Paris 2,133

Goldman Sachs International, London 2,115
Standard Chartered Bank London 2,016
Goldman Sachs International, London 1,713
Goldman Sachs International, London 1,606
BNP Paribas SA Paris 1,543

Standard Chartered Bank London 1,442

BNP Paribas SA Paris 1,301

BNP Paribas SA Paris 1,213

BNP Paribas SA Paris 1,158

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 1,011
BNP Paribas SA Paris 950

BNP Paribas SA Paris 899

HSBC Bank Plc London 878

BNP Paribas SA Paris 733

Goldman Sachs International, London 691
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 576
BNP Paribas SA Paris 562

BNP Paribas SA Paris 521

BNP Paribas SA Paris 490

BNP Paribas SA Paris 430

BNP Paribas SA Paris 388

BNP Paribas SA Paris 361

BNP Paribas SA Paris 317

BNP Paribas SA Paris 305

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 297
Standard Chartered Bank London 294

BNP Paribas SA Paris 278

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 219
Standard Chartered Bank London 186

BNP Paribas SA Paris 150

BNP Paribas SA Paris 113

BNP Paribas SA Paris 104

BNP Paribas SA Paris 102

BNP Paribas SA Paris 68

BNP Paribas SA Paris 47

BNP Paribas SA Paris 39

BNP Paribas SA Paris 37

BNP Paribas SA Paris 37

BNP Paribas SA Paris 37

BNP Paribas SA Paris 33

BNP Paribas SA Paris 31

BNP Paribas SA Paris 31
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Contract to
deliver

CNH7,663
CNH7,663
CNH7,663
CNH7,663
CNH7,594
CNH13,271
CNH10,310
CNH7,672
CNH7,664
CNH7,664
CNH268,449
CNH7,602
CNH7,602
CNH11,134
CNH7,713
CNH7,713
CNH7,708
CNH7,708
CNH7,708
CNH7,708
CNH7,911
CNH7,732
CNH7,732
CNH7,732
CNH7,771
CNH7,771
CNH7,932
CNH7,932
EUR387,723
EUR269,452
EUR219,288
EUR222,759
EUR240,064
EUR79,481
EUR208,793
EUR72,306
EUR146,086
EUR28,700
EUR32,134
EUR43,312
EUR1,101
EUR1,086
EUR1,100
EUR1,100
EUR1,099
EUR1,094
EURT1,101
EUR1,114
GBP791,462
GBP648,590
GBP570,272
GBP712,800
GBP434,849
GBP829,872
GBP519,600
GBP320,553
GBP185,312
GBP119,876
GBP643,441
GBP82,368
GBP46,258
GBP11,279
GBP3,950
GBP5,845
GBP2,690
GBP1,522
GBP1,941

In exchange
for

Us$1,105
US$1,105
Us$1,105
US$1,105
US$1,094
US$1,889
US$1,471
US$1,102
US$1,099
US$1,099
US$37,689
US$1,090
US$1,090
US$1,585
Us$1,101
US$1,101
US$1,099
US$1,099
US$1,099
US$1,099
US$1,126
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,095
Us$1,097
US$1,097
US$1,114
US$1,114
Us$388,417
US$268,989
US$219,663
US$222,915
US$239,791
US$79,938
US$206,572
US$72,419
US$144,589
US$28,895
US$32,207
US$43,093
Us$1,106
US$1,090
US$1,102
Us$1,102
US$1,100
US$1,090
US$1,089
US$1,095
US$912,006
UsS$748,737
US$661,096
US$819,350
US$500,376
US$940,879
US$592,926
US$368,556
US$213,789
US$136,798
US$721,312
US$94,521
US$53,444
US$12,882
Us$4,579
US$6,676
US$3,133
US$1,764
US$2,221

Settlement
date

21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
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Counterparty

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
HSBC Bank Plc London
HSBC Bank Plc London
HSBC Bank Plc London
HSBC Bank Plc London
BNP Paribas SA Paris
HSBC Bank Plc London
BNP Paribas SA Paris
HSBC Bank Plc London
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

Citibank N.A., London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

HSBC Bank Plc London
Citibank N.A., London
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
Royal Bank of Canada

HSBC Bank Plc London
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
us$

30
30
30
30
29
27
25
25
24
24
23
23
23
22
18
18
17
17
17
17
16
10
10
10

28,126
24,412
24,234
23,317
14,750
14,103
12,653
10,572
6,838
2,924
2,737
2,534
1,784
286
167
148
129
64
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Contract to
deliver

GBP1,175
GBP954
GBP1,103
GBP940
GBP945
GBP950
GBP964
NZ$1,087,711
NZ$774,900
NZ$629,241
NZ$590,503
NZ$529,747
NZ$701,699
NZ$384,042
NZ$299,311
NZ$484,261
NZ$250,777
NZ$563,768
NZ$746,942
NZ$757,944
NZ$740,146
NZ$37,370
NZ$154,347
NZ$5,701
NZ$3,510
NZ$2,092
NZ$1,812
NZ$1,795
NZ$1,794
NZ$1,806
NZ$1,828
NZ$1,838
NZ$1,850
NZz$1,872
NZ$1,963
NZ$30,226
Nz$1,927
S$105,404
S$84,809
S$88,446
S$86,387
S$84,191
S$57,762
S$$82,765
S$110,103
S$1,545
S$1,549
S$113,264
S$4,156
US$198,069
US$14,351
US$40,940
US$21,341
US$6,168
Us$12,121
US$3,972
US$1,394
US$1,330
US$4,084
US$3,210
US$3,893
US$6,192
US$1,995
US$5,589
US$5,385
Us$7,718
US$1,212

In exchange
for

US$1,353
US$1,106
US$1,270
US$1,086
US$1,091
US$1,092
US$1,093
US$660,287
US$472,740
US$380,468
US$354,199
US$318,809
US$413,919
US$232,129
US$182,325
US$284,436
US$151,233
US$327,036
US$427,145
US$431,751
US$421,337
US$22,603
Us$88,094
US$3,495
Us$2,077
US$1,274
Us$1,111
US$1,100
UsS$1,089
US$1,092
US$1,094
US$1,099
US$1,095
US$1,092
US$1,131
Us$17,119
US$1,091
US$75,173
US$60,434
US$62,890
US$61,273
US$59,527
US$41,041
US$58,153
Us$76,777
US$1,098
US$1,099
US$78,966
US$2,898

GBP179,392

GBP13,154

CNH294,000
CNH153,834

GBP5,714
EUR12,567
EUR4,122
GBP1,293
GBP1,234
CNH29,442
GBP2,907
CNH27,956
CNH44,296
EUR2,052
CNH39,922
CNH38,467
S$11,082
CNH8,661

Settlement
date

21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
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Counterparty

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

Royal Bank of Canada
BNP Paribas SA Paris
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris
Standard Chartered Bank London
Citibank N.A., London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

Barclays Bank Plc, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Standard Chartered Bank London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

HSBC Bank Plc London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
us$

41
41

38

36

35

31

17
44,984
34,390
24,515
20,160
19,139
16,978
14,882
13,010
10,496
9,372
8,120
4,611
2,992
2,646
1,464
782
270
92

91

86

85

74

71

60

59

48

34

21

20

p
1,703
1,319
1,240
1,058
843
779
462

31

22

19

16

2,270
339
311
243
213
207

71
50
48
46
37
30

18
12
12



JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

US$56,613

GBP5,714
US$1,091
Us$11,702
Us$17,119
EUR4,122
EUR12,567
GBP1,293
US$9,488
Us$87,149
US$426,060
GBP179,392
Us$1,100
GBP11,621
A$5,000
CNH29,442
CNH294,000
CNH153,834
Us$1,114
CNH7,791
CNH7,791
CNH7,860
CNH7,860
CNH44,898
CNH81,871
CNH97,255
CNH174,423
CNH354,943
CNH162,545
CNH348,066
CNH774,639
CNH785,633
CNH1,210,090
CNH460,394
CNH2,731,407
CNH1,822,949
CNH1,240,019
CNH804,829
CNH1,267,137
CNH5,248,476

CNH23,969,233
CNH23,534,591

EUR1,133
EURG67,298
EUR206,893
EUR278,912
EUR274,401
EUR268,385
GBP1,084
GBP1,009
GBP1,019
GBP1,021
GBP75,164
GBP27,627
GBP76,494
GBP177,234
GBP866,355
GBP855,806
GBP825,120
S$13,902
S$108,842
S$669,188
US$1,205

In exchange
for

CNH403,350

US$6,166
NZz$1,927
C$16,063
NZ$30,226
US$3,967
Us$12,107
US$1,393
C$12,985
C$119,520
A$657,872
US$197,962
A$1,699
US$12,973
US$3,215
US$4,083
US$40,929
US$21,337
CNH7,932
Us$1,091
US$1,091
US$1,099
US$1,099
US$6,276
US$11,445
US$13,543
US$24,288
US$49,602
US$22,549
US$48,552
US$108,288
US$109,619
US$169,161
US$63,869
US$382,391
US$254,829
US$173,019
US$111,797
US$176,016
US$728,107

US$3,349,637
US$3,282,829

US$1,095
US$65,807
US$202,443
US$272,902
US$265,578
US$258,348
US$1,183
US$1,089
UsS$1,099
US$1,097
US$82,949
US$29,780
US$82,554
US$190,489
US$958,391
US$930,912
US$890,915
US$9,673
US$75,790
US$464,965
C$1,655

Settlement
date

21 November 2022

3 October 2022

3 October 2022

3 October 2022

3 October 2022

5 October 2022

5 October 2022

5 October 2022

5 October 2022

5 October 2022

5 October 2022

6 October 2022

6 October 2022

7 October 2022
11 October 2022
11 October 2022
11 October 2022
12 October 2022
12 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
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Counterparty
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Total unrealized gains

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

HSBC Bank Plc London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

HSBC Bank Plc London
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

Citibank N.A., London

HSBC Bank Plc London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
us$

15

1,604,195



JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

US$1,363
US$1,365
US$1,259
US$1,333
US$1,294
US$2,626
US$1,155
US$2,262
US$1,305
US$1,311
US$1,245
US$1,221
US$1,163
US$5,057
US$1,086
US$2,148
US$9,457
US$1,624
US$1,599
US$1,182
US$2,147
US$6,901
US$1,784
US$7,011
US$1,191
US$3,153
US$3,151
US$12,281
US$5,011
US$1,688
US$3,658
US$108,548
US$7,795
US$4,831
Us$7,179
US$10,518
US$28,850
US$7,092
US$5,874
US$5,768
US$8,486
US$88,963
US$44,578
US$17,796
US$6,092
US$492,732
US$29,917
US$11,370
US$36,097
US$20,866
US$30,093
US$79,024
US$83,740
US$11,201
US$30,006
US$18,625
US$28,733
US$42,529
US$33,893
US$31,776
US$49,827
US$99,349
US$62,485
US$69,588
US$84,505
US$25,326
US$133,634

In exchange
for

NZ$2,406
A$2,111
EUR1,272
CNH9,413
C$1,759
CNH18,591
CNH8,098
NZ$3,962
CNH9,143
S$1,844
CNH8,687
CNH8,511
CNH8,060
CNH35,811
GBP940
EUR2,151
C$12,941
EUR1,616
CNH11,101
NZz$2,010
S$3,015
A$10,654
CNH12,308
CNH49,506
NZ$1,991
CNH21,962
CNH21,945
CNH86,963
EURS,000
NZz$2,792
GBP3,177
C$148,999
NZ$13,526
CNH33,281
CNH50,000
S$14,818
A$44,536
CNH48,940
A$8,713
NZ$9,539
C$11,145
S$127,089
EUR45,030
GBP15,553
NZz$10,000
CNH3,508,657
CNH209,920
A$16,943
CNH252,960
CNH144,180
EUR30,000
CNH557,986
GBP74,300
NZz$18,259
GBP26,009
A$27,214
A$42,877
EUR42,155
C$44,554
A$47,037
CNH343,843
CNH696,464
CNH432,118
CNH482,453
CNH588,380
Nz$41,313
CNH937,683

Settlement
date

21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
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Counterparty

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
HSBC Bank Plc London
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
Citibank N.A., London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

Royal Bank of Canada
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
us$
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Annual report for the

JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund year ended 30 September 2022
Unrealized

Contract to In exchange Settlement gains/(losses)
deliver for date Counterparty us$
US$49,673 A$73,675 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (2,294)
US$52,273 A$77,708 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (2,300)
US$143,839 A$219,939 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (2,398)
US$58,236 GBP50,000 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (2,398)
US$74,621 GBP64,367 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (2,738)
US$77,368 GBP66,759 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (2,814)
US$110,103 CNH764,220 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (2,877)
US$108,129 GBP9%4,226 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (2,900)
US$104,650 S$145,934 21 October 2022 Goldman Sachs International, London (2,929)
US$55,322 NZ$92,499 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (2,997)
US$38,708 NZ$63,097 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (3,015)
US$107,128 CNH739,210 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (3,410)
US$153,730 CNH1,064,979 21 October 2022 Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (4,304)
US$145,323 A$219,080 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (4,434)
US$137,977 GBP119,423 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (4,609)
US$76,540 A$111,565 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (4,793)
US$227,954 CNH1,590,024 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (4,861)
US$135,438 GBP116,866 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (4,926)
US$220,458 CNH1,535,624 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (4,997)
US$181,628 CNH1,258,249 21 October 2022 Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (5,085)
US$85,973 NZ$141,613 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (5,864)
US$162,735 GBP140,393 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (5,948)
US$139,211 A$205,327 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (7,167)
US$314,938 GBP275,181 21 October 2022 HSBC Bank Plc London (7,624)
US$363,127 CNH2,531,334 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (7,959)
US$244,007 A$363,604 21 October 2022 Citibank N.A., London (10,177)
US$781,459 CNH5,490,800 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (11,053)
US$384,367 EUR377,772 21 October 2022 Barclays Bank Plc, London (13,788)
US$591,759 GBP514,671 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (16,990)
US$642,842 GBP558,995 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (18,574)
US$631,101 A$929,998 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (33,027)
US$715,884 A$1,060,199 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (34,079)
US$586,105 A$855,239 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (36,107)
US$621,579 NZ$1,011,506 21 October 2022 Goldman Sachs International, London (49,385)
US$1,065,131 C$1,382,307 21 October 2022 Standard Chartered Bank London (59,178)
US$1,306,870 GBP1,115,054 21 October 2022 HSBC Bank Plc London (61,612)
US$3,417,256 CNH23,856,413 21 October 2022 HSBC Bank Plc London (70,000)
US$5,213,056 S$7,333,935 21 October 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (101,028)
US$4,704,016 CNH32,612,795 21 October 2022 Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (128,165)
US$2,140,233 A$3,097,676 21 October 2022 Citibank N.A., London (148,142)
US$7,625,586 CNH53,250,715 21 October 2022 Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (154,060)
US$18,815,128 EUR18,956,379 21 October 2022 Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (219,678)
US$12,087,105 CNH84,406,240 21 October 2022  Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (244,196)
US$31,397,043 NZ$52,120,376 21 October 2022 HSBC Bank Plc London (1,913,276)
US$64,940,616 GBP56,383,956 21 October 2022 Royal Bank of Canada (1,972,762)
US$52,587,586 C$69,376,498 21 October 2022 Standard Chartered Bank London (2,099,895)
US$103,466,494 A$153,841,696 21 October 2022  Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (4,532,130)
US$233,228,506 CNH1,628,205,514 21 October 2022 HSBC Bank Plc London (4,777,498)
A$21,889 US$14,081 21 November 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 3)
CNH8,878 US$1,246 21 November 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (0)
CNH8,806 US$1,236 21 November 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (0)
CNH1,246,952 US$175,012 21 November 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (51)
EUR1,126 US$1,107 21 November 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 0)
GBP997 US$1,113 21 November 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (0)
GBP1,439 US$1,608 21 November 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 1)
US$3,217 A$5,000 21 November 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris (0)
US$12,986 GBP11,621 21 November 2022 BNP Paribas SA Paris 4)
Total unrealized losses (16,987,221)

Net unrealized losses (15,383,026)
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JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

2021

Open contracts:

GBP785
GBP25,235
Us$17,410
A$25,790

GBP1,164,911

UsS$190,192
US$74,337
Us$14,815
A$70,000
US$533,341
Us$1,093
Us$1,109
us$1,107
Us$1,098
CNH8,725
CNH804,600
CNH10,000
A$1,485,953
A$911,360
A$1,432,528
A$941,597
A$885,460
A$1,010,870
A$629,908
A$869,761
A$505,262
A$404,904
A$551,880
A$1,093,481
A$1,013,714
A$171,401
A$348,101
A$164,594
A$84,547
A$43,089
A$52,970
A$24,384
A$43,050
A$18,857
A$14,671
A$86,138
A$3,914
A$8,184
A$2,108
A$2,756
A$2,984
A$1,548
A$2,985
A$1,478
A$1,492
A$5,070
A$9,973
A$1,480
A$1,491
A$1,491
A$1,516
A$1,507
A$94,011
A$1,631
A$1,501
A$1,512
A$2,292
C$376,192

In exchange
for

US$1,062
US$34,592
C$22,106
US$18,692
US$1,576,875
C$242,472
A$103,408
GBP11,035
US$50,673
C$675,706
A$1,520
A$1,536
C$1,402
CNH7,106
US$1,352
US$124,681
US$1,550
US$1,096,586
US$673,719
US$1,047,546
US$691,341
US$649,299
US$739,861
US$464,434
US$636,902
US$373,237
US$300,018
US$406,162
US$796,307
US$736,421
US$127,601
US$253,418
US$120,756
US$62,341
US$32,021
US$39,101
US$17,999
US$31,468
US$13,915
US$10,817
US$62,360
US$2,900
US$5,960
US$1,569
US$2,028
US$2,189
US$1,151
US$2,187
US$1,098
US$1,106
US$3,689
US$7,229
US$1,093
US$1,099
US$1,099
US$1,108
US$1,102
US$67,923
US$1,188
US$1,093
US$1,097
US$1,659
US$299,432

Settlement
date

1 October 2021

4 October 2021

4 October 2021

5 October 2021

5 October 2021

5 October 2021

5 October 2021

5 October 2021

6 October 2021

6 October 2021

6 October 2021

7 October 2021

7 October 2021
12 October 2021
13 October 2021
15 October 2021
15 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021

-60 -

Unrealized

gains/(losses)

Counterparty us$

Toronto Dominion Bank 4

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 567
Toronto Dominion Bank 40

BNP Paribas SA Paris 62

Toronto Dominion Bank 6,164

Royal Bank of Canada 1,204

HSBC Bank Plc London 361

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 64
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 108
Royal Bank of Canada 29

BNP Paribas SA Paris 6

State Street Bank and Trust Company 0
BNP Paribas SA Paris 0

State Street Bank and Trust Company 2
Toronto Dominion Bank 2

Toronto Dominion Bank 145

Toronto Dominion Bank 2

HSBC Bank Plc London 23,119

Toronto Dominion Bank 15,343

Toronto Dominion Bank 12,674

Toronto Dominion Bank 11,122

Royal Bank of Canada 9,634

State Street Bank and Trust Company 9,598
Royal Bank of Canada 9,382

HSBC Bank Plc London 8,577

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 8,231
State Street Bank and Trust Company 7,511
Toronto Dominion Bank 7,478

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 6,365
HSBC Bank Plc London 4,104

State Street Bank and Trust Company 3,779
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 1,946
Citibank N.A., London 1,852

State Street Bank and Trust Company 1,263
State Street Bank and Trust Company 894
Royal Bank of Canada 835

Royal Bank of Canada 384

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 368
State Street Bank and Trust Company 293
State Street Bank and Trust Company 219
BNP Paribas SA Paris 133

State Street Bank and Trust Company 73
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 48
State Street Bank and Trust Company 46
Toronto Dominion Bank 37

Citibank N.A., London 34

State Street Bank and Trust Company 32
HSBC Bank Plc London 31

State Street Bank and Trust Company 31
State Street Bank and Trust Company 28
Standard Chartered Bank London 26

State Street Bank and Trust Company 24
State Street Bank and Trust Company 24
Royal Bank of Canada 22

State Street Bank and Trust Company 22
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 13
State Street Bank and Trust Company 13
State Street Bank and Trust Company 9
State Street Bank and Trust Company 9
BNP Paribas SA Paris 8

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 5
HSBC Bank Plc London 3

Citibank N.A., London 2,490



JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

C$459,270
C$502,403
C$146,124
C$367,224
C$426,784
C$468,962
C$193,600
C$373,214
C$705,365
C$508,527
C$11,050
C$11,663
C$26,963
C$17,338
C$18,968
C$1,376
C$3,175
C$1,390
C$1,391
C$1,385
C$1,380
C$1,380
C$1,717
C$1,403
CNH9,101,469
CNH9,618,942
CNH4,397,632
CNH3,278,217
CNH10,697,727
CNH4,092,117
CNH9,800,569
CNH975,301
CNH652,792
CNH672,724
CNH522,299
CNH557,853
CNH472,216
CNH146,094
CNH730,522
CNH682,285
CNH139,901
CNH145,955
CNH624,805
CNH586,175
CNH1,915,520
CNH45,015
CNH163,064
CNH53,207
CNH21,685
CNH150,196
CNH31,718
CNH356,169
CNH7,076
CNH279,352
CNH7,093
CNH7,093
CNH40,963
CNH31,366
CNH7,080
CNH7,080
CNH7,080
EUR1,036,812
EUR199,922
EUR185,327
EUR117,124
EUR120,980
EUR100,648

In exchange
for

US$364,216
US$397,524
US$116,112
US$290,563
US$337,532
US$370,798
US$153,320
US$295,016
US$557,100
US$401,625
US$8,831
US$9,297
US$21,335
US$13,722
US$14,997
US$1,097
Us$2,512
US$1,102
Us$1,102
US$1,096
US$1,092
US$1,092
US$1,357
Us$1,110
US$1,411,537
US$1,491,403
US$681,688
US$507,944
US$1,655,648
US$633,711
US$1,516,553
US$151,184
US$101,164
US$104,218
US$80,941
US$86,422
US$73,168
US$22,664
US$113,069
US$105,606
Us$21,697
US$22,630
US$96,707
US$90,730
US$296,351
US$6,978
US$25,237
US$8,240
US$3,361
US$23,242
US$4,912
US$55,103
US$1,098
UsS$43,219
US$1,100
US$1,100
US$6,337
US$4,853
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,232,877
US$236,672
Us$218,417
US$138,674
Us$143,112
US$119,451

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
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Unrealized

gains/(losses)

Counterparty us$

State Street Bank and Trust Company 1,698
State Street Bank and Trust Company 959
HSBC Bank Plc London 771

State Street Bank and Trust Company 700
Toronto Dominion Bank 656

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 630
State Street Bank and Trust Company 505
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 425
Royal Bank of Canada 330

Toronto Dominion Bank 227

Royal Bank of Canada 109

Royal Bank of Canada 91

Royal Bank of Canada 52

Barclays Bank Plc, London 37

Royal Bank of Canada 25

Royal Bank of Canada 11

Royal Bank of Canada 6

Barclays Bank Plc, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company 4
State Street Bank and Trust Company 3
Barclays Bank Plc, London 3
Barclays Bank Plc, London 3
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 2
State Street Bank and Trust Company 2

Toronto Dominion Bank 3,509

State Street Bank and Trust Company 3,320
State Street Bank and Trust Company 1,359
State Street Bank and Trust Company 793
State Street Bank and Trust Company 673
State Street Bank and Trust Company 647
State Street Bank and Trust Company 371
State Street Bank and Trust Company 301
State Street Bank and Trust Company 175
BNP Paribas SA Paris 145

State Street Bank and Trust Company 140
BNP Paribas SA Paris 121

State Street Bank and Trust Company 114
State Street Bank and Trust Company 63
State Street Bank and Trust Company 55
State Street Bank and Trust Company 54
Toronto Dominion Bank 54

State Street Bank and Trust Company 50
State Street Bank and Trust Company 47
State Street Bank and Trust Company 47
Citibank N.A., London 14

State Street Bank and Trust Company 14
State Street Bank and Trust Company 10
State Street Bank and Trust Company 8
State Street Bank and Trust Company 7
State Street Bank and Trust Company 6
State Street Bank and Trust Company 5
Citibank N.A., London 3

State Street Bank and Trust Company 3
Citibank N.A., London 2

State Street Bank and Trust Company 2
State Street Bank and Trust Company 2
Royal Bank of Canada 0

Goldman Sachs International, London 0
Royal Bank of Canada 0

Goldman Sachs International, London 0
Goldman Sachs International, London 0
State Street Bank and Trust Company 30,816
Barclays Bank Plc, London 4,886

Royal Bank of Canada 3,552

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 2,883
State Street Bank and Trust Company 2,850
Royal Bank of Canada 2,762



JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

EUR110,781
EUR131,059
EUR153,030
EUR136,793
EUR9,5589
EUR125,013
EUR12,104
EUR13,485
EURS,802
EUR11,941
EUR14,542
EUR4,086
EUR1,395
EUR928
EUR927
EUR931
EUR937
EURS5,890
EUR940
GBP494,345
GBP412,976
GBP402,592
GBP261,990
GBP287,015
GBP375,134
GBP246,818
GBP241,394
GBP288,183
GBP105,434
GBP100,525
GBP169,632
GBP65,009
GBP37,698
GBP35,828
GBP25,382
GBP84,885
GBP18,245
GBP19,173
GBP7,987
GBP7,720
GBP4,112
GBP2,854
GBP3,594
GBP4,931
GBP1,315
GBP,798
GBP793
GBP800
GBP796
GBP800
GBP806
GBP806
GBP799
GBP803
NZ$433,271
NZ$373,243
NZ$432,316
NZ$307,399
NZ$270,632
NZ$266,495
NZ$278,241
NZ$260,611
NZ$168,677
NZ$307,446
NZ$203,033
NZ$279,717
NZ$49,086

In exchange
for

US$130,956
US$154,397
US$179,513
US$160,394
US$112,133
US$145,661
US$14,362
US$15,873
US$6,886
US$13,977
US$16,983
US$4,799
US$1,650
US$1,102
Us$1,100
US$1,101
Us$1,102
US$6,843
US$1,098
US$684,038
US$570,832
US$555,604
US$363,358
US$396,733
US$515,364
US$342,033
US$333,961
US$394,430
US$146,234
US$138,969
US$231,824
US$89,653
US$52,199
US$49,403
US$34,995
US$114,905
US$25,011
US$26,222
US$11,065
Us$10,676
US$5,698
US$3,958
US$4,937
US$6,729
Us$1,821
US$1,104
US$1,096
Us$1,102
Us$1,097
Us$1,100
US$1,108
US$1,108
US$1,098
UsS$1,087
US$308,081
US$265,790
US$305,723
US$218,671
US$193,230
US$189,992
US$198,066
US$185,014
US$120,446
US$215,867
US$143,566
US$195,684
US$34,790

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
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Unrealized

gains/(losses)

Counterparty us$

HSBC Bank Plc London 2,518

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 2,450
BNP Paribas SA Paris 2,093

BNP Paribas SA Paris 1,799

Citibank N.A., London 1,309

HSBC Bank Plc London 723

State Street Bank and Trust Company 329
State Street Bank and Trust Company 239
Royal Bank of Canada 159

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 133
Royal Bank of Canada 123

Toronto Dominion Bank 62

Standard Chartered Bank London 32
State Street Bank and Trust Company 26
Citibank N.A., London 24

Royal Bank of Canada 22

Royal Bank of Canada 15

State Street Bank and Trust Company 14
Royal Bank of Canada 8

HSBC Bank Plc London 17,471

HSBC Bank Plc London 13,982

Barclays Bank Plc, London 12,755

Barclays Bank Plc, London 10,095

HSBC Bank Plc London 9,727

Royal Bank of Canada 9,539

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 9,227
HSBC Bank Plc London 8,469

Barclays Bank Plc, London 5,849

HSBC Bank Plc London 4,069

HSBC Bank Plc London 3,422

Standard Chartered Bank London 3,096
Citibank N.A., London 1,995

State Street Bank and Trust Company 1,368
HSBC Bank Plc London 1,093

HSBC Bank Plc London 770

Royal Bank of Canada 447

State Street Bank and Trust Company 410
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 369
Citibank N.A., London 295

Citibank N.A., London 267

HSBC Bank Plc London 153

HSBC Bank Plc London 110

HSBC Bank Plc London 91

State Street Bank and Trust Company 79
Royal Bank of Canada 48

HSBC Bank Plc London 28

HSBC Bank Plc London 27

Citibank N.A., London 24

Royal Bank of Canada 24

Citibank N.A., London 22

State Street Bank and Trust Company 21
State Street Bank and Trust Company 21
Citibank N.A., London 21

State Street Bank and Trust Company 4
Barclays Bank Plc, London 9,219

Standard Chartered Bank London 8,335
Barclays Bank Plc, London 7,520

HSBC Bank Plc London 6,633

HSBC Bank Plc London 6,554

Standard Chartered Bank London 6,169
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 6,141
Toronto Dominion Bank 5,250

Standard Chartered Bank London 4,096
Barclays Bank Plc, London 3,797

Standard Chartered Bank London 3,518
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 2,741
Royal Bank of Canada 931



JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to In exchange
deliver for
NZ$45,675 US$32,261
NZ$53,577 US$37,709
NZ$290,747 US$200,951
NZ$12,390 US$8,843
NZ$5,033 US$3,577
NZ$1,540 US$1,098
NZ$1,555 US$1,107
NZ$1,541 US$1,097
NZ$2,430 US$1,708
NZ$1,542 US$1,095
NZ$1,567 US$1,110
NZ$1,570 US$1,108
NZ$1,570 US$1,108
NZ$1,552 US$1,087
S$$101,170 US$75,281
S$$99,913 US$74,251
S$63,642 US$47,531
S$71,033 US$52,874
S$$65,976 US$49,146
S$%$60,324 US$44,969
S$71,995 US$53,218
S$1,477 US$1,098

US$247,049,954 CNH1,600,587,242
US$18,019,453 CNH116,744,430

US$14,791,836 CNH95,833,345
US$3,889,771 CNH25,201,045
US$2,951,569 CNH19,122,084
US$1,614,177 CNH10,457,790
US$1,468,293 CNH9,508,466
US$782,843 CNH5,075,205
US$2,464,282 CNH15,943,325
US$512,390 CNH3,320,293
US$420,368 CNH2,723,461
US$183,996 CNH1,193,035
US$122,103 CNH792,795
US$169,840 CNH1,101,194
US$41,498 C$53,189
US$169,401 CNH1,098,051
US$228,949 CNH1,482,870
Us$161,327 CNH1,045,737
US$140,216 CNH909,121
US$257,208 CNH1,665,146
US$416,085 CNH2,691,935
US$83,629 GBP62,287
US$150,565 CNH975,465
US$136,171 CNH882,079
US$95,784 CNH621,000
US$174,215 CNH1,127,871
US$96,054 CNH622,632
US$170,089 CNH1,100,809
US$31,621 C$40,312
US$105,507 CNH683,147
US$140,574 CNH909,793
US$113,529 CNH734,866
US$68,558 CNH444,161
US$195,265 CNH1,263,162
US$86,421 CNH559,568
US$68,016 CNH440,578
US$39,007 CNH252,881
US$15,964 CNH103,832
US$31,482 CNH204,050
US$13,123 CNH85,265
US$31,400 CNH203,400
US$12,264 A$17,059
US$25,695 CNH166,469
US$7,967 CNH51,815
US$21,267 C$27,000

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
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Unrealized

gains/(losses)

Counterparty us$

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 755
Citibank N.A., London 753

Toronto Dominion Bank 399

HSBC Bank Plc London 296

HSBC Bank Plc London 105

Standard Chartered Bank London 36
Citibank N.A., London 34

Standard Chartered Bank London 34
HSBC Bank Plc London 32

Standard Chartered Bank London 31
BNP Paribas SA Paris 30

Standard Chartered Bank London 26
Standard Chartered Bank London 26
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 16
HSBC Bank Plc London 762

BNP Paribas SA Paris 659

State Street Bank and Trust Company 654
Royal Bank of Canada 553

State Street Bank and Trust Company 550
HSBC Bank Plc London 536

State Street Bank and Trust Company 189
Standard Chartered Bank London 10
Goldman Sachs International, London 566,374
Goldman Sachs International, London 41,310
Goldman Sachs International, London 33,911
Goldman Sachs International, London 8,917
State Street Bank and Trust Company 6,683
Citibank N.A., London 3,679

State Street Bank and Trust Company 2,699
State Street Bank and Trust Company 2,309
State Street Bank and Trust Company 2,205
State Street Bank and Trust Company 1,271
Citibank N.A., London 961

BNP Paribas SA Paris 570

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London 545
Citibank N.A., London 519

Citibank N.A., London 486

Citibank N.A., London 471

Citibank N.A., London 456

Citibank N.A., London 452

Citibank N.A., London 428

Toronto Dominion Bank 396

Citibank N.A., London 367

HSBC Bank Plc London 358

BNP Paribas SA Paris 342

State Street Bank and Trust Company 290
Royal Bank of Canada 287

Citibank N.A., London 270

Citibank N.A., London 269

State Street Bank and Trust Company 210
BNP Paribas SA Paris 199

Citibank N.A., London 179

State Street Bank and Trust Company 174
State Street Bank and Trust Company 157
State Street Bank and Trust Company 155
Citibank N.A., London 151

Citibank N.A., London 146

BNP Paribas SA Paris 143

State Street Bank and Trust Company 115
HSBC Bank Plc London 99

BNP Paribas SA Paris 85

Citibank N.A., London 68

State Street Bank and Trust Company 67
Standard Chartered Bank London 60
Citibank N.A., London 59

Royal Bank of Canada 49

Royal Bank of Canada 45



JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

US$23,078
US$7,505
US$37,669
US$30,275
US$8,704
US$10,131
US$8,223
US$8,437
US$3,254
US$1,437
US$3,506
US$1,341
US$1,832
US$2,758
Us$2,097
Us$1,211
Us$1,203
Us$1,171
Us$1,108
Us$2,674
Us$1,197
Us$1,726
US$1,560
CNH126,962
CNH108,968
EUR129,204
GBP819
US$400,880
US$57,186
Us$14,026
Us$1,551
US$1,362

C$27,000
Us$16,977
US$114,903
US$290,571
C$1,726
Us$1,188
US$6,841
US$62,355
A$2,146
GBP62,287
US$1,105
A$17,059
C$40,312
EUR49,302
GBP10,403
A$554,963
CNH7,748
CNH734,866
CNH1,665,146
CNH3,320,293
CNH54,610
A$1,520
A$103,408
A$953,099
C$2,064
C$22,106
C$134,540
C$54,395
C$735,270
C$242,472
C$469,012

In exchange
for

CNH149,451
C$9,552
CNH243,707
CNH195,896
CNH56,455
CNH65,616
CNH53,266
CNH54,610
CNH21,098
C$1,832
CNH22,711
CNH8,701
CNH11,867
CNH17,845
CNH13,574
CNH7,851
CNH7,800
CNH7,586
CNH7,185
CNH17,297
CNH7,748
C$2,188
CNH10,093
US$19,623
US$16,833
US$149,984
US$1,105
A$554,963
EURA49,302
GBP10,403
A$2,146
C$1,726

Us$21,267
EUR14,542
GBP84,885
C$367,224
US$1,362
A$1,631
EURS,890
A$86,138
US$1,550
US$83,627
GBP819
US$12,263
US$31,621
US$57,139
US$14,026
US$400,810
US$1,198
US$113,633
US$257,451
US$512,877
US$8,442
US$1,093
US$74,342
US$687,004
US$1,622
US$17,410
US$106,007
US$42,438
US$579,536
US$190,188
US$368,853

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021

4 October 2021
4 October 2021
4 October 2021
4 October 2021
5 October 2021
5 October 2021
5 October 2021
5 October 2021
6 October 2021
6 October 2021
6 October 2021
7 October 2021
7 October 2021
7 October 2021
7 October 2021
8 October 2021
8 October 2021
8 October 2021
8 October 2021
8 October 2021
12 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
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Counterparty

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Standard Chartered Bank London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Royal Bank of Canada

Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

Citibank N.A., London

Royal Bank of Canada

Goldman Sachs International, London
Royal Bank of Canada

Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Royal Bank of Canada

Citibank N.A., London

Toronto Dominion Bank

HSBC Bank Plc London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Toronto Dominion Bank

Toronto Dominion Bank

HSBC Bank Plc London

Standard Chartered Bank London
Royal Bank of Canada

Standard Chartered Bank London
Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Total unrealized gains

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
HSBC Bank Plc London

Standard Chartered Bank London
Standard Chartered Bank London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Standard Chartered Bank London
Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

Toronto Dominion Bank

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Toronto Dominion Bank

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

HSBC Bank Plc London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Toronto Dominion Bank

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

Barclays Bank Plc, London

Royal Bank of Canada

HSBC Bank Plc London

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
us$

42
35
34
31
30
20
17
12
10

9
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JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

C$146,427
C$962,028
CNH7,293
CNH7,172
CNH7,107
CNH7,069
CNH7,557
CNH7,109
CNH7,109
CNH7,109
CNH7,109
CNH7,108
CNH7,108
CNH7,108
CNH7,106
CNH7,106
CNH7,106
CNH7,095
CNH7,095
CNH7,095
CNH7,095
CNH7,095
CNH7,069
CNH7,069
CNH7,109
CNH7,109
CNH7,109
CNH7,106
CNH7,100
CNH7,098
CNH7,098
CNH7,098
CNH7,098
CNH17,029
CNH9,798
CNH7,098
CNH22,046
CNH13,047
CNH11,881
CNH7,114
CNH31,480
CNH15,550
CNH9,169
CNH7,128
CNH27,818
CNH69,262
CNH23,741
CNH24,387
CNH28,892
CNH44,033
CNH49,466
CNH130,569
CNH177,420
CNH120,263
CNH232,299
CNH152,287
CNH76,384
CNH270,141
CNH178,421
CNH146,690
CNH168,293
CNH122,479
CNH869,379
CNH195,575
CNH209,970
CNH146,191
CNH128,906

In exchange
for

US$114,086
US$755,922
Us$1,127
US$1,108
US$1,099
US$1,093
US$1,167
US$1,097
US$1,097
Us$1,097
US$1,097
Us$1,097
US$1,097
US$1,097
US$1,098
US$1,098
US$1,098
US$1,096
US$1,096
US$1,096
US$1,096
US$1,096
US$1,091
US$1,091
US$1,097
US$1,097
US$1,096
US$1,096
US$1,096
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$2,631
US$1,512
US$1,094
US$3,406
US$2,013
US$1,833
US$1,095
US$4,863
US$2,399
Us$1,411
US$1,096
US$4,295
US$10,706
US$3,664
US$3,762
US$4,458
US$6,799
US$7,636
US$20,179
US$27,423
US$18,580
US$35,907
US$23,526
US$11,782
US$41,755
US$27,561
US$22,649
US$25,989
US$18,891
US$134,437
US$30,193
US$32,417
US$22,550
US$19,875

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021

-65-

Counterparty

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

Citibank N.A., London

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
HSBC Bank Plc London

Royal Bank of Canada

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Citibank N.A., London
Citibank N.A., London
State Street Bank and Trust Company

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

HSBC Bank Plc London

Toronto Dominion Bank

Citibank N.A., London

Goldman Sachs International, London
Royal Bank of Canada

Toronto Dominion Bank

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

Royal Bank of Canada
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Toronto Dominion Bank

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
us$
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JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

CNH1,025,004
CNH174,469
CNH352,519
CNH234,709
CNH672,949
CNH279,686
CNH1,013,464
CNH291,983
CNH278,334
CNH651,299
CNH141,862
CNH433,187
CNH402,627
CNH178,867
CNH474,532
CNH582,162
CNH669,452
CNH1,032,375
CNH645,362
CNH622,099
CNH1,257,183
CNH729,317
CNH773,837
CNH2,087,923
CNH1,041,958
CNH959,348
CNH1,225,016
CNH1,195,915
CNH1,244,083
CNH2,291,223
CNH761,808
CNH1,759,077
CNH2,251,872
CNH1,942,501
CNH4,211,998
CNH15,140,957
CNH10,002,101
CNH11,232,648
CNH3,494,140
CNH10,906,269
GBP11,035
GBP283,379
S$66,421
US$1,241
US$309,408
US$1,654
US$1,403
US$1,062
US$1,642
US$3,818
Us$8,717
US$5,920
US$6,291
US$76,519
US$2,347
US$1,719
US$2,234
US$1,998
US$1,246
US$1,496
US$1,626
US$3,397
US$2,808
US$5,369
US$3,304
US$1,593
US$7,068

In exchange
for

US$158,502
US$26,919
US$54,463
US$36,230

US$104,016
US$43,162

US$156,665
US$45,046
US$42,933

US$100,624
US$21,812
US$66,880
US$62,150
US$27,531
US$73,249
US$89,872

US$103,348

US$159,475
US$99,590
US$95,987

US$194,202

US$112,531

US$119,416

US$322,708

US$160,881

US$148,048

US$189,121

US$184,453

US$191,899

US$353,742

US$117,131

US$271,382

US$347,600

US$299,680

US$650,235

US$2,340,393
US$1,545,171
US$1,735,116
US$537,819
US$1,684,248
US$14,815

US$381,397

US$48,905

CNH8,021
CNH2,000,000
CNH10,673
C$1,773
GBP785
CNH10,586
CNH24,643
CNH56,290
C$7,490
CNH40,600
A$105,900
A$3,226
EUR1,465
S$$3,000
C$2,500
EUR1,054
A$2,033
GBP1,182
GBP2,490
A$3,829
S$7,231
A$4,509
NZ$2,233
A$9,706

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
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Unrealized
gains/(losses)
Counterparty us$

State Street Bank and Trust Company (70
State Street Bank and Trust Company (72
Citibank N.A., London (73
State Street Bank and Trust Company (80
State Street Bank and Trust Company (92
State Street Bank and Trust Company (107
Citibank N.A., London (121
Citibank N.A., London (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
Citibank N.A., London (
Toronto Dominion Bank (
Royal Bank of Canada (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (137
Royal Bank of Canada (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
BNP Paribas SA Paris (
BNP Paribas SA Paris (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (253
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
HSBC Bank Plc London (
Goldman Sachs International, London (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (
HSBC Bank Plc London (560
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
Royal Bank of Canada (
Toronto Dominion Bank (
Citibank N.A., London (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
Citibank N.A., London (
Royal Bank of Canada (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
Citibank N.A., London (
State Street Bank and Trust Company (2,613
Royal Bank of Canada (
(

State Street Bank and Trust Company 2,989
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (64
Toronto Dominion Bank (706

BNP Paribas SA Paris (19

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

Toronto Dominion Bank

Standard Chartered Bank London
Toronto Dominion Bank

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

Royal Bank of Canada

Citibank N.A., London

HSBC Bank Plc London

HSBC Bank Plc London

Toronto Dominion Bank

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Citibank N.A., London

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Royal Bank of Canada
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JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

US$18,693
US$5,516
US$3,283
US$4,081
US$79,827
US$13,096
US$8,571
US$50,677
US$4,421
US$94,053
US$47,165
US$9,651
US$598,486
US$7,316
US$7,526
US$11,068
US$247,711
US$13,406
US$134,114
US$245,865
US$38,910
US$109,823
US$52,238
US$46,373
US$34,593
US$33,344
US$36,899
US$78,601
US$64,711
US$37,106
US$79,138
US$52,453
US$115,002
US$83,291
US$762,571
US$401,095
US$70,287
US$317,816
US$115,236
US$876,936
US$140,395
US$127,778
US$159,225
US$146,447
US$364,649
US$463,495
US$129,154
US$157,724
US$229,285
US$213,209
US$1,576,909
US$194,158
US$457,221
US$316,807
US$392,285
US$371,364
US$387,841
US$342,270
US$4,477,918
US$352,683
US$317,639
US$668,754
US$470,907
US$458,987
US$582,596
US$550,043
US$723,690

In exchange
for

A$25,790
S$7,398
A$4,448

NZz$5,808

CNH515,509

A$18,000

A$11,726

A$70,000

GBP3,193
C$119,000
CNH304,021
A$13,156
C$757,988
Nz$10,324
NZ$10,620
GBP8,056
CNH1,599,686
GBP9,698
C$169,472
CNH1,586,784
A$53,235
A$151,384
S$70,223
S$62,258
GBP25,235
EUR28,125
A$50,000
S$105,527
A$88,311
GBP26,830
GBP58,000
GBP38,094
S$154,606
EUR?70,457
CNH4,917,159
C$505,722
NZ$98,912
C$400,000
NZ$163,813
C$1,107,138
A$190,060
GBP92,220
EUR134,315
EUR123,293
C$457,166
C$582,354
A$173,489
A$212,864
EUR194,310
NZ$300,455
GBP1,164,911
NZz$272,027
A$623,505
GBP229,812
A$532,015
EUR313,155
GBP281,276
GBP247,209
CNH28,887,249
GBP254,842
NZ$446,748
EUR568,159
NZ$666,185
GBP331,711
GBP421,393
GBP397,093
A$978,547

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
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Counterparty

BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Barclays Bank Plc, London

Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Barclays Bank Plc, London

Barclays Bank Plc, London

Toronto Dominion Bank

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Citibank N.A., London

Standard Chartered Bank London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

HSBC Bank Plc London

HSBC Bank Plc London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Royal Bank of Canada

Standard Chartered Bank London
Citibank N.A., London

Citibank N.A., London

Royal Bank of Canada

BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Royal Bank of Canada

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Standard Chartered Bank London
Barclays Bank Plc, London

Toronto Dominion Bank

Toronto Dominion Bank

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

HSBC Bank Plc London

Barclays Bank Plc, London

Standard Chartered Bank London
Standard Chartered Bank London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Toronto Dominion Bank

Toronto Dominion Bank

HSBC Bank Plc London

Standard Chartered Bank London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

State Street Bank and Trust Company
HSBC Bank Plc London

HSBC Bank Plc London

Toronto Dominion Bank

Citibank N.A., London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Barclays Bank Plc, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Toronto Dominion Bank

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
us$
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JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

US$865,100
US$612,263
US$669,979
US$1,117,996
US$1,229,161
US$1,648,156
US$1,778,542
US$8,012,962
US$61,293,117
US$24,815,375
US$33,275,320
US$59,852,658
US$114,453,140
A$1,536
A$983,916
C$1,402
C$675,706
C$483,689
CNH157,749
CNH598,877
CNH695,316
CNH10,384,819
GBP295,710
NZ$301,439
$$68,917
US$1,546
US$1,348
US$124,338

In exchange
for

GBP627,537
NZ$860,117
A$900,789
A$1,518,828
A$1,670,168
A$2,236,098
GBP1,294,072
S$1,0765,864
C$77,199,294
EUR20,878,063
NZ$46,765,082
GBP43,326,134
A$153,986,979
US$1,109
US$708,664
US$1,107
US$533,310
US$380,052
US$24,314
US$92,276
US$107,136
US$1,600,607
US$397,621
US$207,039
US$50,640
CNH10,000
CNH8,725
CNH804,600

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021

-68 -

Unrealized

gains/(losses)

Counterparty us$
State Street Bank and Trust Company (
BNP Paribas SA Paris (
Barclays Bank Plc, London (

Toronto Dominion Bank (20,779
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (
Toronto Dominion Bank (
(

)
)
)
)
)
)
Citibank N.A., London 33,636)
Royal Bank of Canada (83,201)
Citibank N.A., London (356,954)
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London (609,725)
Barclays Bank Plc, London (1,017,702)
Standard Chartered Bank London (1,432,392)
Citibank N.A., London (3,211,406)
State Street Bank and Trust Company (0)
Goldman Sachs International, London (2,214)
BNP Paribas SA Paris (0)
Royal Bank of Canada (27)
Royal Bank of Canada (1,725)
Citibank N.A., London (34)
State Street Bank and Trust Company (157)
State Street Bank and Trust Company (183)
Citibank N.A., London (2,231)
State Street Bank and Trust Company (1,113)
Barclays Bank Plc, London (839)
State Street Bank and Trust Company (119)
Toronto Dominion Bank 2)
Toronto Dominion Bank (2)
Toronto Dominion Bank (153)
Total unrealized losses (7,161,756)
Net unrealized losses

(6,053,394)



JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Unitholders of JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund
(the “Fund”)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend
Fund, which are set out on pages 30 to 68, comprise:

« the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 September
2022;

« the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then
ended;

« the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Units for the year then ended;

« the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended; and

« the notes to the financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Fund as at 30 September 2022,
and of its financial transactions and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The Trustee and the Manager (the “Management”) of the Fund
are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial
Statements

The Management of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and
for such internal control as the Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management of the
Fund is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate
the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

In addition, the Management of the Fund is required to ensure
that the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust
Deed dated 6 May 2011, as amended (the “Trust Deed”) and
Appendix E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds
issued by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC Code”).

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are
required to assess whether the financial statements of the
Fund have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust
Deed and Appendix E of the SFC Code.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve  collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund's internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management.
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JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

To the Unitholders of JPMorgan Asia Equity Dividend Fund
(the “Fund”)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements (Continued)

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a
going concermn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Management regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Matters under the Relevant Disclosure
Provisions of the Trust Deed and Appendix E of the
SFC Code

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and Appendix
E of the SFC Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 January 2023
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Manager and
the Trustee

Manager’s Responsibilities

The Manager of the Fund is required by the Code on Unit
Trusts and Mutual Funds established by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Trust Deed to
prepare financial statements for each annual accounting period
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Fund at the end of that period and of the transactions for the
period then ended. In preparing these financial statements, the
Manager is required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

- make judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

- prepare the financial statements on the basis that the
Fund will continue in operation unless it is inappropriate to
presume this.

The Manager is also required to manage the Fund in
accordance with the Trust Deed and take reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Trustee’s Responsibilities

The Trustee of the Fund is required to:

- ensure that the Fund in all material respects is managed in
accordance with the Trust Deed and that the investment

and borrowing powers are complied with;

- satisfy itself that sufficient accounting and other records
have been maintained,

- safeguard the property of the Fund and rights attaching
thereto (as far as reasonably practicable); and

- report to the unitholders for each annual accounting period
should the Manager not manage the Fund in accordance
with the Trust Deed.

Report of the Trustee to the Unitholders

We hereby confirm that, in our opinion, the Manager of the
Fund has, in all material respects, managed the Fund in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed dated 6 May
2011, as amended, for the year ended 30 September 2022.

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, Trustee
20 January 2023
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Net Asset Values

At financial Net asset value Nevta?useset
period ended of the Fund .
per unit
30/9/22
- AUD Hedged Class (mth) A$136,342,047 A$7.25
- CAD Hedged Class (mth) C$61,318,511 C$7.54
- EUR Hedged Class (mth) EUR16,395,953 EUR7.91
- GBP Hedged Class (mth) GBP50,842,961 GBP7.78
- HKD Class (acc) HK$22,555,210 HK$12.35
- HKD Class (mth) HK$2,032,712,595 HK$8.06
- NZD Hedged Class (mth) NZ$44,500,103 NZ$7.41
- PRC RMB Class (acc) CNY 16,266,496 CNY9.91
- PRC RMB Class (mth) CNY13,778,756 CNY8.51
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY46,975,544 CNY9.80
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY74,167,080 CNY7.91
- PRC USD Class (acc) US$15,063,976 US$9.34
- PRC USD Class (mth) US$11,651,113 US$8.01
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY21,813,168 CNY14.77
- RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY1,431,961,989 CNY8.19
- SGD Hedged Class (mth) S$$5,996,821 S$7.68
- USD Class (acc) US$8,520,838 US$12.26
- USD Class (mth) US$335,998,871 US$7.97
- USD Class C (mth) US$19,480,421 US$8.42
- USD Class C (div) US$80,422,237 US$9.25
30/9/21
- AUD Hedged Class (mth) A$149,977,939 A$9.48
- CAD Hedged Class (mth) C$73,226,870 C$9.82
- EUR Hedged Class (mth) EUR19,759,475 EUR10.29
- GBP Hedged Class (mth) GBP44,864,442 GBP10.11
- HKD Class (acc) HK$18,177,591 HK$15.19
- HKD Class (mth) HK$1,669,881,158 HK$10.35
- NZD Hedged Class (mth) NZ$45,460,057 NZ$9.66
- PRC RMB Class (acc) CNY21,317,997 CNY11.15
- PRC RMB Class (mth) CNY18,880,389 CNY9.98
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY91,573,350 CNY11.98
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY107,106,589 CNY10.28
- PRC USD Class (acc) US$24,790,120 US$11.60
- PRC USD Class (mth) US$18,911,109 US$10.37
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY24,230,222 CNY18.05
- RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY1,586,493,943 CNY10.63
- SGD Hedged Class (mth) S$$10,554,577 S$$9.99
- USD Class (acc) US$6,882,906 US$15.21
- USD Class (mth) US$315,082,437 US$10.33
- USD Class C (mth) US$127,689,157 Us$10.80
- USD Class C (div) US$12,216,484 US$11.90
30/9/20
- AUD Hedged Class (mth) A$142,122,799 A$7.77
- CAD Hedged Class (mth) C$66,613,896 C$8.03
- EUR Hedged Class (mth) EUR11,380,303 EURS8.41
- GBP Hedged Class (mth) GBP30,083,335 GBP8.25
- HKD Class (acc) HK$15,620,126 HK$11.87
- HKD Class (mth) HK$1,345,765,273 HK$8.40
- NZD Hedged Class (mth) NZ$37,561,058 NZ$7.92
- PRC RMB Class (acc) CNY29,249,658 CNY9.22
- PRC RMB Class (mth) CNY28,757,606 CNY8.56
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY174,448,284 CNY9.20
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY188,653,747 CNY8.41
- PRC USD Class (acc) US$33,288,437 US$9.11
- PRC USD Class (mth) US$28,328,391 US$8.46
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY13,466,808 CNY13.84
- RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY1,231,267,494 CNY8.69
- SGD Hedged Class (mth) S$$5,439,360 S$8.16
- USD Class (acc) US$3,502,317 US$11.94
- USD Class (mth) US$287,170,267 US$8.41
- USD Class C (mth) US$87,566,453 Us$8.74
- USD Class C (div) US$8,827,529 US$9.65

(Continued)

Highest Offer/Lowest Bid Prices

Financial period ended

30/9/22

- AUD Hedged Class (mth)
- CAD Hedged Class (mth)
- EUR Hedged Class (mth)
- GBP Hedged Class (mth)
- HKD Class (acc)

- HKD Class (mth)

- NZD Hedged Class (mth)
- PRC RMB Class (acc)

- PRC RMB Class (mth)

- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)
- PRC USD Class (acc)

- PRC USD Class (mth)

- RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- RMB Hedged Class (mth)
- SGD Hedged Class (mth)
- USD Class (acc)

- USD Class (mth)

- USD Class C (mth)

- USD Class C (div)

30/9/21

- AUD Hedged Class (mth
- CAD Hedged Class (mth
- EUR Hedged Class (mth
- GBP Hedged Class (mth
- HKD Class (acc)

- HKD Class (mth)

- NZD Hedged Class (mth)

- PRC RMB Class (acc)

- PRC RMB Class (mth)

- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)
- PRC USD Class (acc)

- PRC USD Class (mth)

- RMB Hedged Class (acc)

- RMB Hedged Class (mth)

- SGD Hedged Class (mth)

- USD Class (acc)

- USD Class (mth)

- USD Class C (mth)

- USD Class C (div)

30/9/20

- AUD Hedged Class (mth)
- CAD Hedged Class (mth)
- EUR Hedged Class (mth)
- GBP Hedged Class (mth)
- HKD Class (acc)

- HKD Class (mth)

- NZD Hedged Class (mth)
- PRC RMB Class (acc)

- PRC RMB Class (mth)

- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth)
- PRC USD Class (acc)

- PRC USD Class (mth)

- RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- RMB Hedged Class (mth)
- SGD Hedged Class (mth)
- USD Class (acc)

- USD Class (mth)

- USD Class C (mth)

- USD Class C (div)
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Highest offer

A$10.08
C$10.45
EUR10.95
GBP10.75
HK$16.42
HK$11.04
NZ$10.28
CNY11.86
CNY10.47
CNY13.06
CNY10.95
US$12.52
US$11.05
CNY19.68
CNY11.33
$$10.64
US$16.42
US$11.00
US$11.56
US$12.76

A$10.26
C$10.62
EUR11.12
GBP10.92
HK$16.14
HK$11.14
NZ$10.46
CNY11.81
CNY10.69
CNY12.70
CNY11.13
Us$12.37
Us$11.21
CNY19.10
CNY11.51
$$10.80
Us$16.21
US$11.15
US$11.64
US$12.90

A$9.50
C$9.68
EUR9.96
GBP9.90
HK$13.63
HK$9.99
NZ$9.61
CNY10.69
CNY10.28
CNY10.43
CNY10.00
US$10.45
US$10.05
CNY15.72
CNY10.34
$$9.72
US$13.68
US$9.99
US$10.32
US$10.15

Lowest bid

A$7.25
C$7.53
EUR7.91
GBP7.77
HK$12.35
HK$8.06
NZ$7.41
CNY9.91
CNY8.51
CNY9.80
CNY7.90
US$9.34
US$8.00
CNY14.77
CNY8.18
S$7.68
US$12.26
Us$7.97
US$8.42
US$9.24

A$7.77
C$8.04
EUR8.41
GBP8.26
HK$11.93
HK$8.41
NZ$7.92
CNY9.14
CNY8.45
CNY9.26
CNY8.41
US$9.15
US$8.47
CNY13.93
CNY8.69
S$8.16
US$11.99
US$8.42
US$8.75
US$9.66

A$5.86
C$6.09
EURG6.39
GBP6.22
HK$8.83
HK$6.42
NZ$5.99
CNY7.20
CNY6.87
CNY®6.77
CNY6.42
US$6.78
US$6.47
CNY10.19
CNY6.63
$$6.19
US$8.88
US$6.43
US$6.65
US$9.62
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Highest Offer/Lowest Bid Prices

Financial period ended Highest offer ~ Lowest bid Financial period ended Highest offer Lowest bid

30/9/19 30/9/15

- AUD Hedged Class (mth) A$9.77 A$8.53 - AUD Hedged Class (mth) A$11.36 A$8.56

- CAD Hedged Class (mth) C$9.95 C$8.69 - CAD Hedged Class (mth) C$11.45 C$8.63

- EUR Hedged Class (mth) EUR10.20 EURS.88 - EUR Hedged Class (mth) EUR11.48 EUR8.72

- GBP Hedged Class (mth) GBP10.17 GBP8.88 - GBP Hedged Class (mth) GBP11.48 GBP8.70

- HKD Class (acc) HK$13.61 HK$11.60 - HKD Class (acc) HK$12.54 HK$9.68

- HKD Class (mth) HK$10.33 HK$9.00 - HKD Class (mth) HK$11.45 HK$8.67

- NZD Hedged Class (mth) NZ$9.88 NZ$8.63 - NZD Hedged Class (mth) NZ$11.43 NZ$8.60

- PRC RMB Class (acc) CNY10.55 CNY9.75 - RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY13.35 CNY10.00

- PRC RMB Class (mth) CNY10.39 CNY9.57 - RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY12.29 CNY9.23

- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY10.32 CNY9.21 - SGD Hedged Class (mth) S$11.41 $$8.61

- PRC RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY10.28 CNY9.04 - USD Class (acc) US$12.56 US$9.69

- PRC USD Class (acc) US$10.33 US$9.26 - USD Class (mth) US$11.47 US$8.69

- PRC USD Class (mth) US$10.29 US$9.08

- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY15.53 CNY13.24 30/9/14

- RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY10.62 CNY9.29 - AUD Hedged Class (mth) A$11.02 A$9.02

- SGD Hedged Class (mth) S$9.98 $$8.72 - CAD Hedged Class (mth) C$11.08 C$9.05

- USD Class (acc) US$13.52 US$11.53 - EUR Hedged Class (mth) EUR11.10 EUR9.05

- USD Class (mth) US$10.22 US$8.92 - GBP Hedged Class (mth) GBP11.10 GBP9.06

- USD Class C (mth) US$10.00 US$9.29 - HKD Class (acc) HK$11.79 HK$9.35
- HKD Class (mth) HK$11.08 HK$9.06

30/9/18 - NZD Hedged Class (mth) NZ$11.07 NZ$9.06

- AUD Hedged Class (mth) A$10.73 A$9.08 - RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY12.29 CNY9.92

- CAD Hedged Class (mth) C$10.90 C$9.23 - RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY11.91 CNY9.92

- EUR Hedged Class (mth) EUR11.15 EUR9.46 - SGD Hedged Class (mth) S$11.08 $$9.06

- GBP Hedged Class (mth) GBP11.11 GBP9.44 - USD Class (acc) US$11.81 US$9.35

- HKD Class (acc) HK$13.96 HK$12.27 - USD Class (mth) Us$11.10 US$9.06

- HKD Class (mth) HK$11.22 HK$9.57

- NZD Hedged Class (mth) NZ$10.84 NZ$9.18 30/9/13

- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY15.82 CNY13.95 - AUD Hedged Class (mth) A$10.57 A$9.30

- RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY11.62 CNY9.86 - CAD Hedged Class (mth) C$10.58 C$9.32

- SGD Hedged Class (mth) S$$10.94 S$$9.26 - EUR Hedged Class (mth) EUR10.56 EUR9.31

- USD Class (acc) US$13.87 US$12.19 - GBP Hedged Class (mth) GBP10.57 GBP9.32

- USD Class (mth) US$11.15 US$9.47 - HKD Class (acc) HK$10.65 HK$9.31
- HKD Class (mth) HK$10.56 HK$9.31

30/9/17 - NZD Hedged Class (mth) NZ$10.59 NZ$9.33

- AUD Hedged Class (mth) A$9.86 A$8.64 - SGD Hedged Class (mth) $$10.57 §$9.32

- CAD Hedged Class (mth) C$9.99 C$8.76 - USD Class (acc) US$10.66 US$9.32

- EUR Hedged Class (mth) EUR10.23 EURS.96 - USD Class (mth) US$10.57 US$9.32

- GBP Hedged Class (mth) GBP10.20 GBP8.93

- HKD Class (acc) HK$12.53 HK$10.56

- HKD Class (mth) HK$10.28 HK$8.93

- NZD Hedged Class (mth) NZ$9.97 NZ$8.74

- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY14.09 CNY11.61

- RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY10.68 CNY9.32

- SGD Hedged Class (mth) $$10.04 S$8.78

- USD Class (acc) Us$12.46 US$10.57

- USD Class (mth) US$10.23 US$8.94

30/9/16

- AUD Hedged Class (mth) A$9.79 A$7.71

- CAD Hedged Class (mth) C$9.93 C$7.77

- EUR Hedged Class (mth) EUR10.15 EUR7.91

- GBP Hedged Class (mth) GBP10.14 GBP7.85

- HKD Class (acc) HK$11.81 HK$9.01

- HKD Class (mth) HK$10.10 HK$7.94

- NZD Hedged Class (mth) NZ$9.90 NZz$7.75

- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY12.94 CNY9.65

- RMB Hedged Class (mth) CNY10.62 CNY8.32

- SGD Hedged Class (mth) S$$9.96 S$7.79

- USD Class (acc) US$11.82 US$8.94

- USD Class (mth) US$10.12 US$7.88
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Investment Portfolio

As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Holding
Listed/Quoted Investments (98.9%)
(1) Equities (99.0%)

China (33.6%)

Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 1,912,954
Beijing Kingsoft Office

Software 'A' (C1) 126,862
BOC Hong Kong Holdings

Ltd 2,880,000
China Merchants Bank Co

Ltd 'H' 2,032,000
Contemporary Amperex

Technology Co Ltd 'A" (C2) 114,600
Country Garden Services

Holdings 1,638,278
Foshan Haitian Flavouring

& Food Co Ltd 'A' (C1) 521,500
Fuyao Glass Industry

Group 'H' 858,800
JD.com Inc 580,178
Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd

'‘A'(C1) 43,800
Meituan 879,200
NetEase Inc 828,400
Nio Inc ADR 503,947
Shenzhou International

Group 418,900
Tencent Hidgs Ltd 898,600
Tongwei Co Ltd 'A' (C1) 1,437,770
Wauxi Biologics Cayman Inc 1,359,500
Yum China Holdings Inc 175,050
Zhejiang Dingli Machinery

Co Ltd 'A" (C1) 757,900
Hong Kong (9.3%)
AlA Group Ltd 3,329,000
Budweiser Brewing Co

APAC Ltd 2,105,000
Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Ltd 333,500
Techtronic Industries Co

Ltd 813,000
India (17.0%)
Britannia Industries Ltd 184,525
HDFC Bank Limited 1,029,427
HDFC Life Insurance Co

Ltd 1,204,002
Hindustan Unilever Ltd 422,621
Housing Development

Finance 635,325
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 546,504
Shriram Transport Finance 285,833
Tata Consultancy Svcs Ltd 339,555
Indonesia (10.9%)
Astra International Tbk PT 15,886,500
Bank Central Asia Tbk 43,686,300
Bank Rakyat Indonesia

Persero Tbk 48,187,632
Berlian Laju Tanker 100,000,000

Fair
value
uss

18,995,753
3,578,718
9,594,008
9,448,273
6,444,246
2,412,578
6,058,314

3,468,065
14,678,321

11,504,247
18,547,436
12,505,306

7,947,244

3,273,865
30,495,553
9,470,649
8,209,060
8,375,747

3,857,990

27,756,156
5,510,612
11,453,853
7,855,648
8,716,999
17,985,908

7,850,683
14,008,099

17,866,533
12,221,079

4,207,671
12,540,803

6,911,710
24,529,165

14,208,667
328,353

% of
net
assets

3.4

0.6

1.7

1.7

1.2

0.4

1.1

1.0

2.0

1.4

3.2
2.2
0.7
22

(Continued)

Holding

Telkom Indonesia Persero 40,646,300

Unilever Indonesia 10,336,200
Korea (9.0%)
Kakaobank Corp 176,053
LG Chemical 18,126
Samsung Electronics Co

Ltd 873,347
SK Hynix Inc 150,680
Singapore (2.6%)
DBS Group Holdings Ltd 632,100
Taiwan (13.4%)
Advantech Company

Limited 816,000
Chailease Holdings Co Ltd 1,056,139
Delta Electronics Inc 1,140,000
Eclat Textile Co Ltd 411,481
Largan Precision Company

Limited 65,000
Parade Technologies Ltd 8,000
Taiwan Semiconductor Mfg

Co. Ltd 3,306,000
Thailand (1.8%)
Airports of Thailand PCL 3,914,800
Kasikornbank PCL 755,800
United Kingdom (0.8%)
Prudential PLC 487,050
Vietnam (0.6%)
Masan Group Corp 854,160

(1) Derivatives (-0.1%)

Forward foreign exchange
contracts (-0.1%)

Total Listed/Quoted Investments

Other net assets

Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at 30 September
2022

Total investments, at cost
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Fair

value

uss
11,904,942
3,278,532
2,467,228
6,790,757
32,414,011
8,752,015

14,708,913

7,543,419
6,070,911
9,084,381
5,080,492

3,429,242
149,170
43,942,549

7,524,470
2,885,344

4,777,494

3,543,341

557,164,523

(849,007)

556,315,516

6,357,921

562,673,437

678,494,850

% of
net
assets
2.1

0.6

0.4

1.2

5.8

1.6

2.6

0.8

0.6

99.0

100.0
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Statement of Movements in Portfolio Holdings

For the year ended 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Listed/Quoted Investments
Equities

China

India

Taiwan
Indonesia

Hong Kong
Korea
Singapore
Thailand

United Kingdom
Vietnam

Derivatives

Forward foreign exchange contracts
Total Listed/Quoted Investments
Other net assets

Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at 30
September

% holdings

of net assets
2022 2021
33.6 31.6
17.0 16.1
13.4 18.1
10.9 5.8
9.3 11.5
9.0 10.2
2.6 3.2
1.8 1.1
0.8 0.9
0.6 0.2
(0.1) 0.0
98.9 98.7
1.1 1.3
100.0 100.0
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Details of Financial Derivative Instruments
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

As at 30 September 2022, the Fund held outstanding forward
foreign exchange contracts with details as shown in Note 10.

Information on Exposure Arising from Financial
Derivative Instruments
For the year ended 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

The lowest, highest and average gross exposure arising from
the use of financial derivative instruments in the Fund for any

purpose as a proportion to the Fund’s total net asset value for
the year ended 30 September 2022.

2022
% of NAV

Lowest gross exposure -
Highest gross exposure -
Average gross exposure -
The lowest, highest and average net exposure arising from the
use of financial derivative instruments in the Fund for non-

hedging purpose as a proportion to the Fund’s total net asset
value for the year ended 30 September 2022.

2022
% of NAV

Lowest net exposure -
Highest net exposure -
Average net exposure -

# There are some share classes with currency hedging features. For the
avoidance of doubt, their exposures are not included in the calculation
of the gross exposure of the Fund portfolio.
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 September 2022

Assets

Current assets

Cash at banks

Amounts due from brokers

Amounts receivable on
allotment

Derivatives [Note 4(I)(a), 10]

Investments [Note 4(1)(a)]

Dividend and other accounts
receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Amounts due to brokers

Amounts payable on
redemption

Derivatives [Note 4(I)(a), 10]

Tax payable [Note 6]

Other accounts payable

Liabilities (excluding net
assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units)

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units [Note 3]

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
us$ us$
Income
Net (losses)/gains on
5,663,888 22,140,125 investments and derivatives
2,404,374 5,748,663 [Note 5]
Dividend income
1,243,968 16,401,320 Interest on deposits
105,215 198,779 [Note 7(i), 7(j)]
557,164,523 912,371,117  Net foreign currency exchange
losses
383,031 593,086  Other income [Note 7(i)]
566,964,999 957,453,090
Expenses
Management fee [Note 7(e)]
88,344 20,386,719 Transaction costs
[Note 7(i), 7(j)]
2,139,447 6,941,719  Safe custody and bank charges
954,222 14,694 [Note 7(i), 7(j)]
220,416 4,230,604 Registrar’s fee [Note 7(h)]
889,133 1,375,424  Trustee’s fee [Note 7(g)]
Auditor’s fee
Legal and professional
expenses
Valuation fee [Note 7(e)]
4,291,562 32,949,160 Printing and publication
ffffffffffffffffffff expenses
Other operating expenses
[Note 7(j)]
562,673,437 924,503,930

Net operating (loss)/profit

Approved by the Trustee and the Manager on 20 January 2023

Signed By:

Finance costs
Interest expense [Note 7(j)]

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, Trustee (Loss)/profit before taxation

JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited, Manager

The notes on pages 80 to 98 form part of these financial statements.

Taxation [Note 6]

(Decrease)/increase in net
assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units and total
comprehensive income
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2022 2021
us$ uss$
(310,488,759) 56,671,070
12,500,740 12,809,802
29,613 42,318
(676,483) (604,377)
8,957 36,807
(298,625,932) 68,955,620
11,215,464 13,979,017
926,674 1,628,486
338,411 466,550
309,308 428,435
213,628 252,399
54,105 32,505
38,944 47,276
17,220 17,220

5,128 8,270

25,299 19,898
13,144,181 16,880,056
(311,770,113) 52,075,564
(842) (769)
(311,770,955) 52,074,795
1,792,722 (6,077,986)
(309,978,233) 45,996,809
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Units
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
us$ uss$

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units at the beginning of

the year 924,503,930 569,744,900

Allotment of redeemable units
[Note 3] 158,020,149 950,447,405
Redemption of redeemable

units [Note 3] (209,872,409) (641,685,184)

Net (redemption)/allotment (51,852,260) 308,762,221

872,651,670 878,507,121

(Decrease)/increase in net
assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units and total
comprehensive income

(309,978,233) 45,996,809

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable

units at the end of the year 562,673,437 924,503,930

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
us$ us$
Operating activities
Purchase of investments and
derivatives (259,099,445) (606,733,628)
Proceeds from disposal of
investments and derivatives 287,994,259 321,256,661
Dividend received 12,710,815 12,777,190
Interest received 29,655 42,760
Trustee’s fee paid (220,457) (244,780)
Registrar’s fee paid (341,014) (427,128)
Transaction costs paid (1,025,828) (1,523,121)
Tax paid (2,217,466) (1,847,382)
Management fee paid (11,618,880)  (13,552,103)
Others (1,025,789) (1,386,150)
Net cash inflow/(outflow)
from operating activities 25,185,850 (291,637,681)

Financing activities

Interest paid (842) (769)
Receipts on allotment of
redeemable units 173,177,501 936,997,617

Payments on redemption of

redeemable units (214,674,681) (638,447,358)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow

from financing activities (41,498,022) 298,549,490
(Decrease)/increase in cash

and cash equivalents (16,312,172) 6,911,809
Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of the year 22,140,125 14,977,654
Exchange (losses)/gains on

cash and cash equivalents (164,065) 250,662
Cash and cash equivalents at

the end of the year 5,663,888 22,140,125

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash at banks 5,663,888 22,140,125

The notes on pages 80 to 98 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1

The Fund

JPMorgan Asia Growth Fund (the “Fund”) was established under a Trust Deed dated 11 May 2007, as amended (the “Trust
Deed”) and is governed by the laws of Hong Kong. The Fund is authorized by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong
Kong (“SFC”).

Prior to 30 April 2021, the investment objective of the Fund was “to provide investors with long-term capital appreciation by
investing at least 70% of its total net asset value in equity securities of companies whose predominant business will benefit
from, or is related to, the growth in Asian economies”, and the Fund may invest up to 30% of its total net asset value in equity
securities of companies in non-Asian countries and also invest up to 10% of its total net asset value in non-equity securities in
any countries.

With effect from 30 April 2021, the investment objective of the Fund has been changed to “to provide investors with long-term
capital appreciation by investing at least 70% of its total net asset value in equity securities of companies whose predominant
business will benefit from, or is related to, the growth in Asian economies.”

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Manager may decide to issue separate classes (each a “Class”) whose assets will be
commonly invested but where a specific fee structure, currency or distribution policy may be applied. Each Class may have a
different charging structure with the result that the net asset value attributable to each Class may differ.

All unitholders’ rights with regard to the convening, voting or otherwise acting at any meeting of unitholders are the same.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) held at fair value through
profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires the Manager and the Trustee (the “Management”) to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the
Fund’s accounting policies.

Standards and amendments to existing standards effective from 1 October 2021

There are no standards or amendments to existing standards that are effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 October 2021 that have had a material impact on the Fund.

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 October 2021 and have not been early adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 October 2021, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to

have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.

(b) Investments and derivatives

Classification
The Fund classifies its investments and derivatives based on both the Fund’s business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed

and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that
information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions.

Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Fund makes short sales in which a borrowed security is sold in anticipation of a decline in the market value of that
security, or it may use short sales for various arbitrage transactions. Short sales are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

As such, the Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of investments and derivatives are accounted for on the trade date basis. Investments and
derivatives are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Realized and unrealized
gains and losses on investments and derivatives are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments
and derivatives are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments and derivatives have expired
or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are
based on last traded prices. When trading in the securities of an investee company is suspended, the investment is valued
at the Manager's estimate of its fair value. When trading of financial instruments in markets that are not considered to be
active, the financial instruments are valued based on quoted market prices, dealer/broker quotations or alternative pricing
sources supported by observable inputs.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are valued at the forward rates ruling at the valuation date. The differences between
the forward rates and the contract rates are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting period.
Securities borrowing

The Fund may enter into securities borrowing arrangements for short sale purposes. Short positions represent obligations
to deliver securities sold but not yet purchased, and are accounted for as investments and valued at their fair value.
Securities borrowed during the year are off-balance sheet transactions and are therefore not included in the investment
portfolio of the Fund. Collateral placed for the purpose of securities borrowed generally consist of cash collateral and are
included in the Statement of Financial Position separately.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expense

Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date with the corresponding foreign withholding tax recorded as an
expense and is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income on investments is accounted for as part of net gains/losses on investments and derivatives in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income on cash at banks and short-term deposits is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on
an effective interest basis.

Expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.
Transaction costs

Transaction costs are costs incurred to acquire/dispose financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
They include fees and commissions paid to agents, brokers and dealers. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The Fund has adopted United States dollar as its functional and presentation currency.
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.
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Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and cash equivalents are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within “Net foreign currency exchange gains/losses”. Foreign exchange gains and losses relating
to the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within “Net gains/losses on investments and derivatives”.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and bank deposits
with maturity of three months or less from the date of placing the deposits, net of certain short-term bank loans which the
Fund usually undertakes as overnight bank borrowings.

Amounts due from/to brokers

Amounts due from/to brokers represent receivables for investments and derivatives sold and payables for investments and
derivatives purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled by the end of the year.

These amounts are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date,
the Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization and default in payments are all considered
indicators that a loss allowance may be required.

Proceeds and payments on allotment and redemption of units

The net asset value per unit is computed for each dealing day. The price at which units are allotted or redeemed is
calculated by reference to the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the relevant dealing day in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed which may be different from the accounting policies stated in the
financial statements.

Units of the Fund are redeemable at the option of the holders of redeemable units and are classified as a financial liability
in the Statement of Financial Position which represents the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (or “net
asset value” or “net assets” or “NAV”) and is carried at the redemption amount that would be payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date if the holders of redeemable units exercised the right to redeem units of the Fund.

3 Number of units in issue and net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (per unit)

2022

PRC RMB
PRC RMB Class Hedged Class  PRC USD Class RMB Hedged
HKD Class (acc) (acc) (acc) (acc) Class (acc)
Units Units Units Units Units

Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the year 3,101,376.335 4,169,699.090  23,960,831.640 3,170,911.890 4,397,349.191

Total allotments 1,021,699.052  1,385871.870  2,948,805.200 263,482.310 441,620.014
Total redemptions (570,383.298)  (1,734,255.750)  (6,602,785.120) (734,389.020)  (1,203,529.620)
At the end of the year 3,552,692.089  3,821,315210  20,306,851.720  2,700,005.180  3,635439.585

HK$ CNY CNY uss$ CNY

Net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable
units 34,523,221 37,552,326 205,817,590 26,303,539 62,074,978

Net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 9.72 9.83 10.14 9.74 17.07
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USD Class C
USD Class (acc) (acc)
Units Units

Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the year  31,293,866.847 6,460,235.304

Total allotments 5,016,979.222 4,787,753.755

Total redemptions (6,418,508.957)  (6,175,779.444)

At the end of the year 29,892,337.112 5,072,209.615
uss$ Us$

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 456,766,103 32,361,373

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable

units (per unit) 15.28 6.38
2021
PRC RMB
PRC RMB Class Hedged Class  PRC USD Class RMB Hedged
HKD Class (acc) (acc) (acc) (acc) Class (acc)
Units Units Units Units Units
Number of units in issue:
At the beginning of the year 1,520,187.155 1,345,769.190 4,184,797.330 1,006,626.160 424,739.885
Total allotments 3,219,168.232 7,050,419.060  49,447,216.080 4,681,910.280 6,189,525.136
Total redemptions (1,637,979.052)  (4,226,489.160) (29,671,181.770) (2,517,624.550)  (2,216,915.830)
At the end of the year 3,101,376.335 4,169,699.090  23,960,831.640 3,170,911.890 4,397,349.191
HK$ CNY CNY Us$ CNY
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 45,424,182 56,439,839 364,360,610 46,971,335 112,564,813
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 14.65 13.54 15.21 14.81 25.60

-83-



JPMorgan Asia Growth Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

2021

USD Class (acc)
Units
Number of units in issue:

At the beginning of the year  26,686,205.526

25,246,476.340
(20,638,815.019)

Total allotments
Total redemptions

USD Class C
(acc)
Units

6,460,435.304
(200.000)

At the end of the year 31,293,866.847

6,460,235.304

us$ us$
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 726,876,287 62,180,173
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 23.23 9.63

Financial risk management

(I) Financial risk factors

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including market price risk, interest rate risk and

currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk

(i) Market price risk

The Fund’s investments and derivatives are subject to the market price risk inherent in all investments and derivatives i.e.
the value of holdings may fall as well as rise. The Fund’s market risk is managed through (i) deliberate stocks selection,
and (ii) diversification of the investment portfolio in accordance with specific investment restrictions and guidelines.

The Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s market price sensitivity primarily through the Beta of the Fund on a regular
basis. Beta measures the statistical relationship between the return of the Fund and the relevant benchmark index chosen

by the Investment Manager.
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As at 30 September, the fair value of investments and derivatives and its estimated market sensitivity were as follows:

2022 2021
Fair value of % of Fair value of % of
investments net investments net
Listed/Quoted Investments USs$ assets Us$ assets
Assets
Equities
- China 188,865,373 33.6 291,482,723 31.6
- India 95,397,775 17.0 148,561,972 16.1
- Taiwan 75,300,164 13.4 167,555,181 18.1
- Indonesia 61,161,369 10.9 53,720,382 5.8
- Hong Kong 52,576,269 9.3 106,376,464 11.5
- Korea 50,424,011 9.0 94,049,503 10.2
- Others 33,439,562 5.8 50,624,892 54
557,164,523 99.0 912,371,117 98.7
Derivatives
- Forward foreign exchange contracts 105,215 0.0 198,779 0.0
557,269,738 99.0 912,569,896 98.7
Liabilities
Derivatives
- Forward foreign exchange contracts (954,222) (0.1) (14,694) (0.0)
Total Listed/Quoted Investments 556,315,516 98.9 912,555,202 98.7
Also, refer to Note 10 for the exposures on derivatives.
% of reasonable Estimated
Relevant possible change of impact on net
benchmark index the relevant asset value
Net asset value for the Fund Beta benchmark index (Note****)
us$ (Note*) (Note**) (Note***) Us$
As at 30 September 2022 562,673,437 MSCI AC Asia ex Japan Net 1.04 -28.7 (167,946,767)

As at 30 September 2021 924,503,930 MSCI AC Asia ex Japan Net 1.03 +14.4 137,122,423

If the relevant benchmark index return was to move in the opposite direction, this would result in an opposite movement in
the net asset value of the Fund by the same amount, assuming all other variables that may impact the net asset value of
the Fund are held constant.

Note:

*  Relevant benchmark index for the Fund represents the relevant market index used by the Investment Manager in
monitoring the market price risk of the Fund.

**  Beta measures the statistical relationship between the return of the Fund and the respective benchmark index over

the maximum of past 36 months, or the number of months since portfolio inception. For funds launched within a

period of less than 12 months, weekly returns of the Fund are used for calculating the Beta.
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*** % of reasonable possible change is based on the actual historical change in the benchmark index in the past 12
months and does not include remote or “worst case” scenarios or “stress tests” nor represent the Investment
Manager’s forecast of the Fund’s future returns. For funds launched within a period of less than 12 months, actual
historical change in the benchmark index since the commencement of operations will be used to calculate the % of
reasonable possible change.

**** Estimated impact on net asset value of the Fund is calculated by applying the relevant Beta against the net asset
value of the Fund multiplied by the % of reasonable possible change of the relevant benchmark index, assuming all
other variables that may impact the net asset value of the Fund are held constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument or future cash flow will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates.

The table below summarizes the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities as at 30 September which expose it to the risk
associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates, categorized by remaining
maturity dates.

2022 2021

Less than 1 month Less than 1 month

uss$ Us$

Cash at banks 5,663,888 22,140,125
Total interest sensitivity gap 5,663,888 22,140,125

Any cash and cash equivalents are placed/borrowed at short-term market interest rates and the Investment Manager
considers that the Fund is not subject to significant amount of risk due to the stable and low fluctuation in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates.

(iii) Currency risk

The Fund holds assets and liabilities denominated in a number of currencies. HKFRS 7 considers the foreign exchange
exposure relating to non-monetary assets and liabilities to be a component of market price risk not currency risk. However,
the Investment Manager monitors the exposure to currency risk on all foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities
including both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities.

The Fund enters in some forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge some of its foreign currency exposures to maintain
limited exposure to non-US$ currencies. Refer to Note 10 for the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at
year end.

The table below summarizes the Fund’s exposure to currency risk as at 30 September together with the percentage of
reasonable possible change in foreign currencies and the estimated impact on net asset value of the Fund.

% of

reasonable Estimated

possible impact on

change net asset

uss$ against US$ value

Net currency exposures (Note*) equivalent (Note**) Us$
2022

Chinese Yuan (Offshore) 79,400,632 -9.5 (7,543,060)

Hong Kong Dollar 197,655,268 -0.8 (1,581,242)

Indian Rupee 95,397,775 -8.8 (8,395,004)

Indonesian Rupiah 61,161,369 -6.0 (3,669,682)

Korean Won 50,424,011 -17.2 (8,672,930)

Singapore Dollar 14,708,913 -5.4 (794,281)

Taiwan Dollar 77,717,812 -12.2 (9,481,573)

Thai Baht 10,409,814 -10.3 (1,072,211)

Vietnamese Dong 4,813,581 -4.6 (221,425)

591,689,175 (41,431,408)
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% of

reasonable Estimated

possible impact on

change net asset

us$ against US$ value

Net currency exposures (Note*) equivalent (Note**) Us$
2021

Chinese Yuan (Offshore) 105,679,132 +5.1 5,389,636

Hong Kong Dollar 363,161,854 -0.4 (1,452,647)

Indian Rupee 149,914,031 -0.6 (899,484)

Indonesian Rupiah 53,720,382 +4.0 2,148,815

Korean Won 94,049,503 -1.2 (1,128,594)

Taiwan Dollar 168,017,347 +4.0 6,720,694

Thai Baht 10,299,992 -6.3 (648,899)

Vietnamese Dong 5,544,432 +1.9 105,344

950,386,673 10,234,865

b

If the foreign currency fluctuations were to move in the opposite direction, this would result in an opposite movement in the
net asset value of the Fund by the same amount, assuming all other variables that may impact the net asset value of the
Fund are held constant.

Note:
*  Net currency exposures on assets and liabilities include both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities.

** % of reasonable possible change is based on the actual historical change in the respective currencies against the
functional currency of the Fund in the past 12 months and does not include remote or “worst case” scenarios or
“stress tests” nor represent the Investment Manager’s forecast of the Fund'’s future returns.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not be able to pay amounts in full when due.

The Manager monitors credit risk with reference to a number of factors including history of default and the credit rating of
counterparties. The Manager considers the credit risk of other receivables such as amounts receivable on allotment,
amounts due from brokers or dividend and other accounts receivable, to be insignificant as the Fund has no default history
on such receivables in the past 5 years. Overall, the Manager considers the probability of default to be close to zero as
these instruments have a low risk of default and the Fund’s counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their contractual
obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognized based on 12-month expected credit
losses.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 September 2022 and 2021 is the carrying amount of the financial assets as
shown in the Statement of Financial Position.

All transactions in investments are settled on a delivery versus payment basis using approved brokers. The risk of default
is considered minimal, as delivery of investments sold is only made when the Fund’s custodian bank has received
payment. For a purchase, payment is made once the investments have been received by the Fund’s custodian bank. The
trade will fail if either party fails to meet the obligation.
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The table below summarizes the credit rating of the banks/brokers/custodian which the Fund has placed the financial
assets as at 30 September.

2022 2021
Exposure to Exposure to
counterparties counterparties
us$ us$
Bank balances
S&P(AA)/Moody’s(Aa)/FITCH(AA) 1,069,529 1,802,018
S&P(A)/Moody’s(A)/FITCH(A) 4,594,359 20,338,107
Derivatives issued by brokers
S&P(AA)/Moody’s(Aa)/FITCH(AA) 44,984 15,086
S&P(A)/Moody’s(A)/FITCH(A) 60,231 183,693
Investment balances with custodian
S&P(A)/Moody’s(A)/FITCH(A) 557,164,523 912,371,117

Liquidity risk

The Fund is exposed to daily redemption of units, the majority of its assets in investments are traded in an active market
which can be readily disposed of. The Manager may also limit the total number of units redeemed for the Fund on any
dealing day to 10% or more of the units in issue on any dealing day.

The Fund has the ability to enter into borrowing arrangements subject to the investment restrictions and guidelines.

The table below summarizes the Fund'’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
as at 30 September to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2022 2021

Less than 1 month 1 to 12 months Less than 1 month 1 to 12 months

us$ us$ uss us$

Amounts due to brokers 88,344 - 20,386,719 -

Amounts payable on redemption 2,139,447 - 6,941,719 -

Derivatives 954,218 4 13,548 1,146

Other accounts payable 889,133 - 1,375,424 -
Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units 562,673,437 - 924,503,930 -

Total financial liabilities 566,744,579 4 953,221,340 1,146

The Investment Manager manages the Fund’s liquidity risk by investing in investments that the Investment Manager
expects to liquidate normally within 1 month and making short-term bank borrowing to meet the total financial liabilities.

Offsetting and amounts subject to master netting arrangements and similar agreements

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Fund was subject to master netting arrangements with certain derivative
counterparties.

In the event of default, the Fund and its counterparties have the option to settle transactions on net basis. An event of
default may include failure to pay or deliver, breach of agreement or bankruptcy.
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The following tables summarize the Fund's financial assets and liabilities subject to offsetting, master netting
arrangements and similar agreements as at 30 September by types of financial instruments.

Gross amounts of
recognized
financial assets
presented in the
Statement of

Related amounts subject to master
netting arrangements and similar
agreements net off against

Financial  Collateral and

Financial Position Instruments margin deposits Net amount
uss$ us$ us$ us$
2022
Assets
Derivatives 105,215 (59,587) - 45,628
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 105,215 (59,587) - 45,628
Gross amounts of Related amounts subject to master
recognized  netting arrangements and similar
financial liabilities agreements net off against
presented in the
Statement of Financial  Collateral and
Financial Position Instruments margin deposits Net amount
uss$ uss$ us$ us$
Liabilities
Derivatives 954,222 (59,587) - 894,635
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 954,222 (59,587) - 894,635
Gross amounts of Related amounts subject to master
recognized  netting arrangements and similar
financial assets agreements net off against
presented in the
Statement of Financial ~ Collateral and
Financial Position Instruments margin deposits Net amount
uss$ uss$ us$ us$
2021
Assets
Derivatives 198,744 (12,435) - 186,309
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 198,744 (12,435) - 186,309
Gross amounts of Related amounts subject to master
recognized  netting arrangements and similar
financial liabilities agreements net off against
presented in the
Statement of Financial ~ Collateral and
Financial Position Instruments margin deposits Net amount
uss$ us$ uss$ us$
Liabilities
Derivatives 14,685 (12,435) - 2,250
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 14,685 (12,435) - 2,250
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Capital risk management

The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units which is subject to
allotments and redemptions of redeemable units. The Fund’s objective for capital management is to provide returns and
long-term capital growth for unitholders.

In order to maintain the capital structure, the Management performs the following:

- Monitor allotment and redemption activities relative to the liquid assets.

- To protect the interest of unitholders and in exceptional circumstances, the Manager may also limit the total number of
units redeemed for the Fund on any dealing day to 10% or more of the units in issue on any dealing day.

- Monitor fund investment guidelines and restrictions, in accordance with the constitutional documents, to maintain
sufficient liquidity through diversification.

Fair value estimation

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Management considers that the carrying values of assets and liabilities were
reasonable approximations of their fair value.

HKFRS 13 requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The table below summarizes the Fund’s investments and derivatives (by class) within the fair value hierarchy measured at
fair value as at 30 September:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Listed/Quoted Investments uss$ Uss$ us$ uss$
2022
Assets
Equities 557,164,523 - - 557,164,523
Derivatives - 105,215 - 105,215
Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 557,164,523 105,215 - 557,269,738
Liabilities
Derivatives - 954,222 - 954,222
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit and

loss - 954,222 - 954,222
2021
Assets
Equities 912,371,117 - - 912,371,117
Derivatives - 198,779 - 198,779
Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 912,371,117 198,779 - 912,569,896
Liabilities
Derivatives - 14,694 - 14,694
Total financial liabilities at fair value through profit and

loss - 14,694 - 14,694
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Investments, whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within level 1,
include active listed equities and exchange traded derivatives. The Fund does not adjust the quoted price for these
instruments.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer/broker quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2.

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently.
There were no transfers between levels for the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021.

For assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost, their carrying values are a reasonable approximation of fair value as at
30 September 2022 and 2021.

5 Net (losses)/gains on investments and derivatives

2022 2021

uss$ Us$

Change in unrealized gains/losses in value of investments and derivatives (287,746,214) 6,661,802
Realized (losses)/gains on sale of investments and derivatives (22,742,545) 50,009,268
(310,488,759) 56,671,070

6 Taxation

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Fund was authorized as a collective investment scheme under
Section 104 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and is therefore exempt from profits tax under Section 26A(1A) of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Overseas tax was withheld or paid on certain dividend income received and capital gains derived during the years ended 30
September 2022 and 2021.

7 Transactions with the Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons
The following is a summary of significant related party transactions entered into during the year between the Fund and the
Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons. Connected Persons of the Trustee and the Manager are those as defined

in the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds established by the SFC. All such transactions were entered into in the ordinary
course of business and were on normal commercial terms.

(a) Investment transactions with Connected Persons of the Trustee and the Manager are set out below:

Aggregate
value of % of the % of the
purchases  Fund’s total Fund’s total Average
and sales of aggregate Commission commission commission
investments value of paid paid in the rate
Name of company US$ transactions Us$ year %
2022
HSBC Securities & Capital Markets (India)

Private Limited 2,305,716 0.44 2,572 0.78 0.11
J.P. Morgan India Private Limited 3,060,480 0.58 1,224 0.37 0.04
J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited 4,884,139 0.93 2,736 0.83 0.06
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited 14,867,227 2.83 12,777 3.87 0.09
2021
HSBC Securities & Capital Markets (India)

Private Limited 6,091,435 0.64 7,898 0.96 0.13
HSBC Securities (USA) Inc. 137,756 0.01 51 0.01 0.04
J.P. Morgan India Private Limited 2,912,762 0.31 2,204 0.27 0.08
J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited 18,480,050 1.95 14,184 1.72 0.08
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited 39,133,015 4.13 106,842 12.99 0.27
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(b)

o

Balances with the Manager and its Connected Persons as at year end:

2022 2021

us$ us$
Cash at banks 1,069,529 1,802,018
Amounts receivable 40 82
Amounts payable (800,390) (1,228,698)

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Fund entered into forward foreign exchange contracts with Connected
Persons of the Trustee, with realized losses amounting to US$1,588,568 (2021: realized gains amounting to US$165,045).

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the income accruing to the Manager relating to allotments and redemptions in
the Fund, net of commission paid to agents, amounted to US$8,875 (2021: US$21,756).

Management fee for USD Class C (acc) of 0.75% per annum and all other share classes of 1.5% per annum of the net
asset value of each Class is paid to JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited. Management fee is accrued on each dealing day and
is payable monthly in arrears.

The Manager also receives a valuation fee of US$40 per valuation if the Fund’s net asset value is larger than US$5 million
but smaller than US$20 million, or US$70 per valuation if the Fund’s net asset value is larger than US$20 million.

The Fund allows the Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons to subscribe for, and redeem, units of the Fund.

The Manager and certain of its Directors and members of its group of companies held units of the Fund during the year
and were entitled to profits from transaction in units of the Fund as follows:

Increase Decrease
resulting from resulting
director from director
At the appointments resignations Profits from
beginning of during the Total Total during the At the end of transaction
the year year allotments redemptions year the year Us$
2022
Directors of the Manager
- HKD Class (acc) 51,308.387 - 74,067.385 - - 125,375.772 -
- USD Class (acc) - - 6,252.254 - - 6,252.254 -

JPMorgan Asset

Management (Asia

Pacific) Limited
- USD Class (acc) 10,348.442 N/A 8,369.330 (366.056) N/A 18,351.716 1,629
- USD Class C (acc) - N/A - - N/A - -

JPMorgan Asset
Management (S)
Limited
- USD Class (acc) 7,401.050 N/A  4,916.253 (3,481.824) N.

<

A 8,835.479 13,768

JPMorgan Funds
Asia) Limited
- USD Class (acc) - N/A - - N/A - -
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Increase Decrease
resulting from resulting
director from director
At the appointments resignations Profits from
beginning of during the Total Total during the At the end of transaction
the year year allotments redemptions year the year Us$
021

Directors of the Manager
- HKD Class (acc) - - 102,616.775 (51,308.388) - 51,308.387 -

JPMorgan Asset

Management (Asia

Pacific) Limited
- USD Class (acc) 2,676.747 N/A 9,616.330 (1,944.635) N/A  10,348.442 15,910
- USD Class C (acc) - N/A 200.000 (200.000) N/A - -

JPMorgan Asset
Management (S)
Limited
- USD Class (acc) 6,963.647 N

<

A 437.403 - N/A 7,401.050 -

JPMorgan Funds
(Asia) Limited
- USD Class (acc) 133.273 N/A - (133.273) N/A - 1,089

Trustee’s fee of 0.06% per annum of the net asset value of the Fund for the first US$40 million, 0.04% per annum for the
balance from US$40 million to US$70 million, and 0.025% per annum for the balance in excess of US$70 million is paid to
the Trustee. Trustee’s fee is accrued on each dealing day and is payable monthly in arrears.

JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited, the registrar agent and Manager, receives a registrar’s fee which varies depending on the
number of unitholders in the Fund and the number of transactions which occur. The range agreed with the Trustee is
between 0.015% and 0.5% per annum of the Fund’s net asset value. The registrar’s fee is payable quarterly in arrears.

During the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, in addition to the management fee, valuation fee and registrar’s fee
as disclosed in Note 7(e) and 7(h), respective amounts received from/(paid to) the Manager, JPMorgan Funds (Asia)
Limited, and its Connected Persons were as follows:

2022 2021
Us$ Us$
Interest on deposits 14,799 27,420
Other income 855 17,602
Transaction costs (3,960) (16,388)
Safe custody and bank charges (27,680) (5,846)
(j) During the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, in addition to the trustee’s fee as disclosed in Note 7(g), respective
amounts received from/(paid to) the Trustee, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, and its Connected Persons
were as follows:
2022 2021
uss us$
Interest on deposits 1,866 5,313
Other operating expenses - (148)
Interest expense (842) (769)
Transaction costs (37,543) (153,286)
Safe custody and bank charges (265,912) (328,509)
8 Borrowings

During the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Fund has unsecured short-term bank borrowings with The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, a Connected Person of the Trustee. All bank borrowings have a
duration of less than 7 days. All such transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of business and on normal
commercial terms.
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9 Soft dollar arrangements/Commission sharing arrangements

10

The Investment Manager has entered into soft dollar arrangements/commission sharing arrangements with brokers under
which certain goods and services used to support investment decision making are received by the Investment Manager. A
portion of the transaction commission paid by the Fund is retained by the brokers as compensation for the goods and services.

The goods and services must be of demonstrable benefit to the Fund and would be limited to research and advisory services.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Investment Manager obtained the services through soft dollar
arrangements/commission sharing arrangements on transactions amounting to US$413,085,132 (2021: US$699,221,354).
Commission which amounted to US$50,149 (2021: US$198,083) is paid from the Fund on these transactions.

Derivatives

Outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at 30 September were as follows:

Contract to In exchange
deliver for
2022

Open contracts:

US$1,096 CNH7,903
CNH49,865 US$7,002
US$1,099 CNH7,835
CNH4,671,069 US$675,475
CNH4,844,967 US$689,724
CNH3,084,703 US$442,688
CNH2,917,674 US$419,209
CNH1,625,313 US$234,152
CNH1,418,158 US$205,077
CNH1,639,365 US$234,951
CNH1,300,770 US$186,818
CNH847,489 US$122,252
CNH5,343,487 US$752,960
CNH936,671 US$134,422
CNH1,457,475 US$207,485
CNH870,162 US$125,024
CNH636,554 US$92,241
CNH1,484,716 US$210,290
CNH497,034 US$71,606
CNH497,245 US$71,264
CNH453,076 US$64,954
CNH567,723 Us$80,977
CNH314,345 US$45,093
CNH1,612,410 US$227,207
CNH184,568 US$26,591
CNH463,026 US$65,581
CNH150,595 US$21,619
CNH128,040 US$18,384
CNH83,702 US$12,129
CNH188,393 US$26,812
CNH230,363 US$32,624
CNH128,986 US$18,398
CNH3,328,965 US$467,365
CNH118,954 US$16,974
CNH109,256 US$15,570
CNH41,419 US$5,993
CNH28,371 Us$4,117
CNH1,008,521 US$141,590
CNH92,253 US$13,028
CNH13,027 US$1,868
CNH7,620 US$1,106
CNH7,620 US$1,106
CNH7,706 US$1,117
CNH7,583 US$1,097
CNH7,663 US$1,105
CNH7,663 US$1,105

Settlement
date

11 October 2022
13 October 2022
13 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
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Counterparty

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
HSBC Bank Plc London

Goldman Sachs International, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
HSBC Bank Plc London

Goldman Sachs International, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
uss$

13

20,085
9,934
9,878
9,835
6,107
6,098
4,935
4,309
3,342
3,223
2,999
2,988
2,933
2,927
1,972
1,867
1,497
1,383
1,321

987
973
694
615
490
419
385
379
302
300
283
283
241
182
137
86
84
40
37
37
35
33
30
30
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Contract to
deliver

CNH7,594
CNH7,675
CNH7,672
CNH7,637
CNH7,637
CNH7,664
CNH7,602
CNH7,713
CNH7,665
CNH7,665
CNH7,708
CNH7,708
CNH7,708
CNH104,204
CNH7,732
CNH7,732
CNH10,153
CNH7,771
CNH7,771
CNH7,932
US$8,230
Us$6,707
US$3,751
Us$1,818
Us$1,572
Us$10,129

CNH26,833
CNH13,056
CNH59,327
Us$1,114
CNH72,164
CNH7,791
CNH7,860
CNH7,903
CNH127,760
CNH304,461
CNH208,807
CNH69,061
CNH156,205
CNH185,103
CNH578,712
CNH1,043,655
CNH1,896,739
CNH3,458,216
US$7,003
Us$1,218
Us$1,117
US$1,221
US$1,131
US$4,525
US$5,345
US$12,568
US$5,682
Us$2,973
US$5,020
Us$7,215
US$10,660
US$8,816
Us$7,301
US$10,511
US$8,938
US$9,001
US$13,899

In exchange
for

Us$1,094
Us$1,102
Us$1,102
Us$1,097
Us$1,097
US$1,099
US$1,090
Us$1,101
US$1,093
Us$1,093
Us$1,099
Us$1,099
Us$1,097
US$14,631
Us$1,095
US$1,095
Us$1,434
Us$1,097
Us$1,097
Us$1,114
CNH59,327
CNH47,910
CNH26,833
CNH13,056
CNH11,246

Settlement
date

21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022

CNH72,164 21 November 2022

US$3,750
Us$1,818
US$8,229
CNH7,932
US$10,123
US$1,091
US$1,099
US$1,096
US$17,886
US$42,624
US$29,189
US$9,581
US$21,751
US$25,775
US$80,724
US$145,848
US$264,575
Us$483,277
CNH49,865
CNH8,602
CNH7,827
CNH8,507
CNH7,852
CNH31,948
CNH37,554
CNH88,992
CNH39,835
CNH20,481
CNH35,013
CNH50,561
CNH74,800
CNH61,409
CNH50,609
CNH73,186
CNH61,763
CNH62,112
CNH96,470

11 October 2022
11 October 2022
12 October 2022
12 October 2022
14 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
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Counterparty

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Total unrealized gains

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

HSBC Bank Plc London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris
BNP Paribas SA Paris

Unrealized

gains/(losses)

us$

29
25
25
25
25
24
23
18
18
18
17
17
16
11
10
10

9

7

7

1
94
15
14
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Contract to
deliver

Us$17,127
US$20,020
US$56,429
US$60,405
Us$172,419
US$183,846
US$202,833
US$568,197

US$10,346,542

US$34,049,061
CNH7,835
CNH7,835
CNH18,321
CNH63,282

2021

Open contracts:

US$1,100
US$1,098
CNH272,528
CNH7,977,598
CNH2,413,998
CNH1,389,055
CNH4,992,338
CNH528,030
CNH1,325,053
CNH4,417,038
CNH365,708
CNH1,492,622
CNH1,345,559
CNH144,642
CNH168,826
CNH16,657
CNH7,076
CNH311,222
CNH210,363
CNH7,093
CNH7,087
CNH7,087
CNH8,634
CNH19,520
CNH12,565

US$61,073,935
US$17,325,670

US$1,483,015
US$714,249
US$349,157
US$422,677
US$155,123
US$869,689
Us$210,075
US$105,639
US$123,399
US$101,935
US$264,238
US$78,940
US$42,222
US$42,080
US$30,180

In exchange
for

CNH119,390
CNH139,430
CNH389,911
CNH416,421
CNH1,195,376
CNH1,270,337
CNH1,398,284
CNH3,939,290

CNH72,230,868
CNH237,701,941

Us$1,100
Us$1,100
Us$2,571
Us$8,882

CNH7,113
CNH7,108
US$42,246
US$1,236,915
US$374,287
US$215,228
US$772,646
US$81,916
US$205,200
US$683,498
US$56,689
US$231,008
US$208,213
US$22,421
US$26,159
US$2,582
US$1,098
US$48,149
US$32,545
US$1,100
US$1,098
US$1,098
US$1,337
US$3,020
US$1,944

CNH395,685,808
CNH112,249,553

CNH9,607,888
CNH4,633,422
CNH2,268,616
CNH2,738,360
CNH1,007,931
CNH5,626,680
CNH1,362,784
CNH686,384
CNH800,000
CNH660,736
CNH1,709,555
CNH511,281
CNH273,540
CNH272,612
CNH195,668

Settlement
date

21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 October 2022
21 November 2022
21 November 2022
21 November 2022
21 November 2022

8 October 2021
12 October 2021
15 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
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Counterparty

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Merrill Lynch International Limited, London
HSBC Bank Plc London

HSBC Bank Plc London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Total unrealized losses

Net unrealized losses

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

BNP Paribas SA Paris

Royal Bank of Canada

Standard Chartered Bank London

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
Us$

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
(15,481)
(211,941)
(697,468)

)

)

)

)

(o
(1
3

(954,222)

(849,007)

64
2,754
833
336
314
228
209
167
113
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140,015
39,720
3,358
2,658
1,806
957
808
778
752
546
364
284
236
157
96

94

90
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Contract to
deliver

US$33,594
US$38,154
US$22,937
US$67,768
Us$71,010
US$28,216
US$22,076
US$35,467
US$32,124
US$23,608
US$48,126
US$23,371
US$16,515
US$3,998
Us$1,167
US$1,733
Us$1,297
US$1,965
US$1,556
US$1,280
CNH399,736
CNH7,120
CNH7,120

CNH217,692
CNH207,957
CNH229,576
CNH272,612
US$1,104
CNH7,916
CNH7,108
CNH7,107
CNH7,069
CNH7,069
CNH7,113
CNH7,108
CNH7,095
CNH7,095
CNH7,069
CNH7,069
CNH7,069
CNH7,069
CNH13,932
CNH7,109
CNH7,109
CNH7,106
CNH7,100
CNH7,098
CNH7,098
CNH7,098
CNH7,098
CNH7,098
CNH11,387
CNH8,728
CNH14,889
CNH10,731
CNH13,999
CNH7,114
CNH7,114
CNH7,114
CNH9,903
CNH203,039
CNH168,745
CNH144,438

In exchange
for

CNH217,692
CNH247,153
CNH148,725
CNH438,495
CNH459,440
CNH182,804
CNH143,123
CNH229,576
CNH207,957
CNH152,903
CNH311,361
CNH151,305
CNH106,979
CNH25,910
CNH7,584
CNH11,235
CNH8,402
CNH12,714
CNH10,070
CNH8,276
US$61,796
Us$1,101
US$1,101

US$33,626
US$32,146
US$35,490
US$42,103
CNH7,120
US$1,224
US$1,098
US$1,099
US$1,093
US$1,093
US$1,099
US$1,097
US$1,096
US$1,096
US$1,091
US$1,091
US$1,091
US$1,091
US$2,152
US$1,096
US$1,096
US$1,096
US$1,096
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,757
US$1,346
US$2,298
US$1,655
US$2,159
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,095
US$1,523
Us$31,387
Us$26,071
US$22,299

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021
19 November 2021

8 October 2021
12 October 2021
12 October 2021
13 October 2021
13 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
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Counterparty

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

Citibank N.A., London

Citibank N.A., London

Toronto Dominion Bank

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
HSBC Bank Plc London

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company

Total unrealized gains

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
HSBC Bank Plc London

Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
Royal Bank of Canada

Goldman Sachs International, London
Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Citibank N.A., London

Citibank N.A., London

Citibank N.A., London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

Royal Bank of Canada

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

Royal Bank of Canada

Citibank N.A., London

Toronto Dominion Bank

Citibank N.A., London

Citibank N.A., London

Merrill Lynch International Limited, London

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
S$

U

83

81
71

69
67
65
65
49
47
47
42
36
35
10
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Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Contract to
deliver

CNH137,464
CNH177,946
CNH289,152
CNH461,169
CNH1,166,793
CNH416,894
CNH1,201,337
CNH431,814
CNH429,409
CNH603,032
CNH1,071,975
CNH994,360
CNH1,384,291
CNH1,054,038
CNH2,858,431
CNH3,853,673
CNH1,515,748
CNH2,021,696
CNH3,571,999
CNH3,529,260
CNH5,263,625
CNH6,999,095
Us$779
US$55,142
US$3,490
Us$1,917
US$18,459
Us$27,114
Us$31,677
US$99,071
US$128,531
US$159,259
US$442,175
CNH1,180,633
CNH3,841,274
US$42,130

Distribution

In exchange
for

Us$21,219
US$27,453
US$44,639
US$71,205
US$180,356
US$64,336
US$185,687
US$66,607
US$66,233
US$93,085
US$165,544
US$153,531
US$213,836
US$162,702
US$441,758
US$595,676
US$233,782
US$311,845
US$551,622
US$544,882
US$813,092
US$1,079,788
CNH5,037
CNH356,424
CNH22,539
CNH12,360
CNH119,081
CNH174,997
CNH204,186
CNH639,787
CNH829,531

CNH1,027,388
CNH2,853,772

Settlement
date

21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021
21 October 2021

US$181,970 19 November 2021
US$592,054 19 November 2021
CNH272,528 19 November 2021

No distribution was made during the year (2021: nil).

-08-

Counterparty

State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London
Royal Bank of Canada
Goldman Sachs International, London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Goldman Sachs International, London
Citibank N.A., London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Royal Bank of Canada
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London
Goldman Sachs International, London
Citibank N.A., London
Citibank N.A., London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
State Street Bank and Trust Company
Citibank N.A., London
Citibank N.A., London
State Street Bank and Trust Company

Total unrealized losses

Net unrealized gains

Unrealized
gains/(losses)
Us$

184,085
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Unitholders of JPMorgan Asia Growth Fund (the “Fund”)
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

What we have audited

The financial statements of JPMorgan Asia Growth Fund,
which are set out on pages 78 to 98, comprise:

« the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 September
2022;

« the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then
ended;

« the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Units for the year then ended;

« the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended; and

« the notes to the financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Fund as at 30 September 2022,
and of its financial transactions and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The Trustee and the Manager (the “Management”) of the Fund
are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial
Statements

The Management of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and
for such internal control as the Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management of the
Fund is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate
the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

In addition, the Management of the Fund is required to ensure
that the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust
Deed dated 11 May 2007, as amended (the “Trust Deed”) and
Appendix E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds
issued by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC Code”).

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are
required to assess whether the financial statements of the
Fund have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust
Deed and Appendix E of the SFC Code.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve  collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund’s internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
To the Unitholders of JPMorgan Asia Growth Fund (the “Fund”)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements (Continued)

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’'s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease
to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Management regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Matters under the Relevant Disclosure
Provisions of the Trust Deed and Appendix E of the
SFC Code

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and Appendix
E of the SFC Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 January 2023

-100 -



JPMorgan Asia Growth Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Statement of Responsibilities of the Manager and
the Trustee

Manager’s Responsibilities

The Manager of the Fund is required by the Code on Unit
Trusts and Mutual Funds established by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Trust Deed to
prepare financial statements for each annual accounting period
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Fund at the end of that period and of the transactions for the
period then ended. In preparing these financial statements, the
Manager is required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

- make judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

- prepare the financial statements on the basis that the
Fund will continue in operation unless it is inappropriate to
presume this.

The Manager is also required to manage the Fund in
accordance with the Trust Deed and take reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Trustee’s Responsibilities

The Trustee of the Fund is required to:

- ensure that the Fund in all material respects is managed in
accordance with the Trust Deed and that the investment

and borrowing powers are complied with;

- satisfy itself that sufficient accounting and other records
have been maintained;

- safeguard the property of the Fund and rights attaching
thereto (as far as reasonably practicable); and

- report to the unitholders for each annual accounting period
should the Manager not manage the Fund in accordance
with the Trust Deed.

Report of the Trustee to the Unitholders

We hereby confirm that, in our opinion, the Manager of the
Fund has, in all material respects, managed the Fund in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed dated 11
May 2007, as amended, for the year ended 30 September
2022.

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, Trustee
20 January 2023

Performance Record (Unaudited)

Net Asset Values

At financial Net asset value | Net asset value
period ended of the Fund per unit

30/9/22

- HKD Class (acc) HK$34,523,221 HK$9.72
- PRC RMB Class (acc) CNY37,552,326 CNY9.83
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc)| CNY205,817,590 CNY10.14
- PRC USD Class (acc) US$26,303,539 US$9.74
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY62,074,978 CNY17.07
- USD Class (acc) US$456,766,103 US$15.28
- USD Class C (acc) US$32,361,373 US$6.38
30/9/21

- HKD Class (acc) HK$45,424,182 HK$14.65
- PRC RMB Class (acc) CNY56,439,839 CNY13.54
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc)| CNY364,360,610 CNY15.21
- PRC USD Class (acc) US$46,971,335 US$14.81
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY112,564,813 CNY25.60
- USD Class (acc) US$726,876,287 US$23.23
- USD Class C (acc) US$62,180,173 US$9.63
30/9/20

- HKD Class (acc) HK$19,395,390 HK$12.76
- PRC RMB Class (acc) CNY16,746,756 CNY12.44
- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc)| CNY54,616,020 CNY13.05
- PRC USD Class (acc) US$13,062,969 US$12.98
- RMB Hedged Class (acc) CNY9,359,122 CNY22.03
- USD Class (acc) US$542,284,528 US$20.32
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Performance Record (Unaudited) (Continued)

Highest Offer/Lowest Bid Prices

Financial period ended

30/9/22

- HKD Class (acc)

- PRC RMB Class (acc)

- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- PRC USD Class (acc)

- RMB Hedged Class (acc)

- USD Class (acc)

- USD Class C (acc)

30/9/21

- HKD Class (acc)

- PRC RMB Class (acc)

- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- PRC USD Class (acc)

- RMB Hedged Class (acc)

- USD Class (acc)

- USD Class C (acc)

30/9/20

- HKD Class (acc)

- PRC RMB Class (acc)

- PRC RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- PRC USD Class (acc

- RMB Hedged Class (acc)

- USD Class (acc)

30/9/19

- HKD Class (acc)

- RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- USD Class (acc)

30/9/18

- HKD Class (acc)

- RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- USD Class (acc)

30/9/17
- RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- USD Class (acc)

30/9/16
- RMB Hedged Class (acc)
- USD Class (acc)

30/9/15
- USD Class (acc)

30/9/14
- USD Class (acc)

30/9/13
- USD Class (acc)

Highest offer

HK$15.19
CNY13.91
CNY15.81
US$15.38
CNY26.62
US$24.11
US$9.99

HK$17.85
CNY16.57
CNY18.35
Us$18.14
CNY30.87
US$28.42
Us$10.18

HK$13.31
CNY13.14
CNY13.59
US$13.55
CNY22.92
US$21.20

HK$10.70
CNY18.08
US$16.84

HK$11.20
CNY18.75
US$17.68

CNY16.13
US$15.30

CNY12.67
US$12.37

Us$12.72

US$11.76

US$11.07

Lowest bid

HK$9.72
CNY9.82
CNY10.14
Us$9.74
CNY17.07
US$15.28
US$6.38

HK$12.96
CNY12.73
CNY13.56
US$13.46
CNY22.38
US$20.64
Us$9.35

HK$8.38
CNY10.00
CNY10.00
UsS$10.00
CNY14.31
US$13.33

HK$8.44
CNY14.26
US$13.28

HK$9.34
CNY15.74
US$14.68

CNY10.57
Us$10.27

CNY9.75
US$8.76

US$9.24

US$9.44

US$8.96

Management and Administration

Manager and Service Provider
JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited

19/F, Chater House
8 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Investment Manager

JPMorgan Asset Management
(Asia Pacific) Limited

19/F, Chater House

8 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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Directors of the Manager
as at 20 January 2023
Ayaz Hatim EBRAHIM
Daniel James WATKINS
Ka LiNG

Kit Yee Elka LEUNG
Stiofan Seamus DEBURCA
Tsun Kay Edwin CHAN

Trustee

HSBC Institutional Trust
Services (Asia) Limited

1 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Registrar

HSBC Trustee (Cayman)
Limited

P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22/F, Prince’s Building

1 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong
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Investment Portfolio

As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Holding

Listed/Quoted Investments (97.8%)

Equities (97.8%)

China (9.7%)

Amoy Diagnostics Co Ltd
‘A’ (C2)

Angel Yeast Co Ltd ‘A’
(1)

Chacha Food Co Ltd ‘A’
(C2)

Chongqing Brewery Co Ltd
‘A (C1)

Chonggqing Fuling Zhacai
Group Co Ltd ‘A’ (C2)

Glodon Co Ltd ‘A’ (C2)

Hangzhou Tigermed
Consulting Co Ltd ‘A’
(€2)

Han'S Laser Technology
Industry Group Co Ltd ‘A’
(C2)

Laobaixing Pharmacy
Chain JSC ‘A’ (C1)

Qingdao Haier Biomedical
Co Ltd ‘A’ (C1)

Shanghai Baosight
Software Co Ltd ‘A’ (C1)

Shanghai Liangxin
Electrical Co Ltd ‘A’ (C2)

Starpower Semiconductor
Ltd ‘A’ (C1)

Zhuzhou CRRC Times
Electric ‘H’

Hong Kong (8.0%)

Cafe De Coral Holdings Ltd

Kingboard Laminates
Holdings Ltd

Minth Group Limited

Stella International
Holdings Ltd

Techtronic Industries Co
Ltd

Towngas Smart Energy Co
Ltd

Vtech Hidgs Ltd

Xinyi Glass Holding
Company Limited

India (24.5%)

Aarti Industries Limited

AU Small Finance Bank
Ltd

Crisil Ltd

Crompton Greaves
Consumer

Dr Lal Pathlabs Ltd

Embassy Office Parks
REIT

Endurance Technologies

HDFC Asset Management
Co Ltd

400,300
339,134
81,998
129,300
566,844
78,300

48,650

444,200
518,714
110,620
209,950
801,250

31,100

294,800

1,786,000

1,386,000
1,488,000

1,623,500
363,000

2,688,000
350,800

606,000

196,899

264,459
97,830

710,515
91,379

555,830
191,372

74,515

Fair
value
uUs$

1,295,375
1,977,963
529,888
2,034,949
2,161,102
501,158

622,221

1,623,735
2,334,855

966,372
1,083,448
1,319,467
1,413,408

1,239,302

2,222,859

1,248,299
3,294,493

1,611,112
3,507,503

1,030,698
2,013,215

881,606

1,803,286

2,012,913
3,925,947

3,597,500
2,829,223

2,362,942
3,349,723

1,730,810

% of
net
assets

0.7
1.0
0.3
1.0

0.3

0.8
1.2
0.5
0.5
0.7
0.7

0.6

1.1

1.2
1.7

0.9

(Continued)

Jubilant Foodworks Ltd

Kajaria Ceramics Ltd

L&T Technology Services
Ltd

Lemon Tree Hotels Ltd

Mahindra & Mahindra Fin
Secs

Mahindra Logistics Ltd

Metropolis Healthcare Ltd

Mindspace Business Parks
REIT

Multi Commodity Exchange
of India Ltd

Shriram Transport Finance

TeamLease Services Ltd

Indonesia (2.6%)
Bank Negara Indonesia

Korea (13.1%)

AfreecaTV Co Ltd

BGF Retail Co Ltd

Coway Co Ltd

DL E&C Co Ltd

Hanon Systems

Hugel Inc

Innocean Worldwide Inc

JYP Entertainment Corp

K Car Co Ltd

Koh Young Technology

Korea Investment Holdings
Co Ltd

Leeno Industrial Inc

NICE Information Service
Co Ltd

SK IE Technology Co Ltd

SKC Company Limited

Vitzrocell Co Ltd

Yuhan Corporation

Zinus Inc

Malaysia (3.1%)

Bursa Malaysia Berhad
CTOS Digital Bhd
Heineken Malaysia Bhd
Inari Amertron Bhd

MR DIY Group M Sdn Bhd

Philippines (5.1%)

Bank of The Philippine
Islands

Century Pacific Food Inc

Universal Robina

Wilcon Depot Inc

Singapore (3.2%)

BOC Awviation Ltd

Mapletree Logistics Trust
REIT

Singapore Exchange
Limited

Singapore Technologies
Engineering Limited

TDCX Inc ADR

-103 -
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503,017
255,560

9,588
2,879,905

532,029
185,575
119,076

586,721

111,751
305,412
61,108

8,628,500

20,091
22,951
32,985
42,339
170,478
19,826
39,336
37,142
73,676
163,917

60,874
27,685

313,531
12,710
25,483
90,456
58,640
26,664

1,452,300
3,084,200

236,700
1,752,600
2,806,650

2,339,030
6,082,200
1,056,660
4,006,900
208,500
830,495
318,300

410,300
84,126
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value
uUss

3,850,324
3,770,984

423,303
3,072,796

1,211,516
1,185,860
2,275,144

2,627,114

1,674,179
4,495,888
2,256,004

5,085,588

893,121
2,654,917
1,242,672
1,015,047

991,387
1,416,242
1,141,011
1,526,490

705,502
1,455,054

2,021,049
2,409,158

2,936,545
465,509
1,494,390
692,314
2,225,590
648,569

1,944,961
891,272
1,218,977
952,459
1,192,387

3,570,886
2,334,320
2,054,742
2,183,717
1,480,767

902,901
2,098,486

1,023,677
788,261
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Investment Portfolio (Continued) Statement of Movements in Portfolio Holdings
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited) For the year ended 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)
Fair % of % holdings
value net of net assets
Holding US$ assets
2022 2021

Taiwan (19.0%)
ASPEED Technology Inc 59,800 3,352,672
Chailease Holdings Co Ltd 558,767 3,211,911

1 (73 Listed/Quoted Investments
Chipbond Technology Corp 550,000 874,831 0.4 Equities

1.1

1.7

E Ink Holdings Inc 333,000 2,223,566
Eclat Textile Co Ltd 263,985 3,259,382 . India 245 19.8
Feng Tay Enterprise Co Taiwan 19.0 284
Ltd 156,000 776,339 0.4
’ E Korea 13.1 15.4
Global Unichip Corp 155000 2,875524 15  opina 07 75
Lotes Co Ltd 231,160 5,562,576 2.8 Hong Kong 8.0 118
Micro-Star International Co 296,000 1,002,236 0.5 Thailand 5.9 238
Nien Made Enterprise Co Philippines 5.1 3.1
Ltd 125,000 990,189 0.5 Singapore 32 0.6
Parade Technologies Ltd 85,000 1,584,932 08 Malaysia 3.1 36
Realtek Semiconductor ;
Indonesia 2.6 1.4
Corp 231,000 1964471 1.0 \iggiem 73 oo
Silergy Corp 148,000 1,962,519 1.0 United States 13 R
Unimicron Technology
Corporation 417,000 1543277 08 Total Listed/Quoted Investments 97.8 96.3
Vanguard International
Semiconductor Other net assets 2.2 3.7
Corporation 295,000 603,956 0.3 — -
Voltronic Power
Technology 105,449 4,666,473 24 Net assets attributable to holders
Wiwynn Corp 38,000 967,086 0.5 of redeemable units at 30
September 100.0 100.0

Thailand (5.9%) - -
Bangkok Expressway and

Metro 8,749,800 2,134,097 1.1
Central Retail Corp 1,730,200 1,811,848 0.9
Kasikornbank PCL 367,700 1,403,733 0.7
Mega Lifesciences PCL 1,643,300 2,014,916 1.0
Ngern Tid Lor PCL 1,394,507 998,189 0.5
Srinanaporn Marketing

PCL 2,542,200 1,139,003 0.6

Tisco Financial Group PCL 548,000 1,347,481 0.7
Total Access

Communication PCL 696,500 840,158 0.4
United States (1.3%)
Samsonite International 1,034,400 2,506,311 1.3
Vietnam (2.3%)
Masan Group Corp 728,400 3,021,647 1.5
Vietnam Technological &

Commercial JS Bank 1,113,440 1,516,312 0.8
Total Listed/Quoted Investments 193,182,087 97.8

Other net assets 4,313,922 2.2

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable units at 30 September
2022 197,496,009 100.0

Total investments, at cost 219,305,482
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Information on Exposure Arising from Financial
Derivative Instruments
For the year ended 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

The lowest, highest and average gross exposure arising from
the use of financial derivative instruments in the Fund for any
purpose as a proportion to the Fund’s total net asset value for
the year ended 30 September 2022.

2022

% of NAV

Lowest gross exposure -
Highest gross exposure 0.2
Average gross exposure 0.0

The lowest, highest and average net exposure arising from
the use of financial derivative instruments in the Fund for non-
hedging purpose as a proportion to the Fund’s total net asset
value for the year ended 30 September 2022.

2022

% of NAV

Lowest net exposure -
Highest net exposure 0.2
Average net exposure 0.0
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Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2022

2022 2021
us$ us$

Assets
Current assets
Cash at banks 5,389,907 13,865,071
Amounts due from brokers 142,932 992,827
Amounts receivable on

allotment 47,964 1,518,785
Investments [Note 4(l)(a)] 193,182,087 276,162,221
Dividend and other accounts

receivable 220,208 139,588
Total assets 198,983,098 292,678,492
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Amounts due to brokers 66,026 1,737,223
Amounts payable on

redemption 370,047 842,140
Tax payable [Note 6] 713,668 2,900,327
Other accounts payable 337,348 470,802
Liabilities (excluding net

assets attributable to

holders of redeemable

units) 1,487,089 5,950,492
Net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable

units [Note 3] 197,496,009 286,728,000

Approved by the Trustee and the Manager on 20 January 2023

Signed By:

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, Trustee

JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited, Manager

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
uss uss$

Income
Net (losses)/gains on investments

and derivatives [Note 5] (91,603,053) 67,656,333
Dividend income 5,422,829 4,705,408
Interest on deposits [Note 7(h), 7(i)] 15,362 3,026
Net foreign currency exchange

losses (472,540) (190,855)
Other income [Note 7(h)] - 8,204

(86,637,402) 72,182,116

Expenses
Management fee [Note 7(d)] 3,913,922 3,621,312
Transaction costs [Note 7(h), 7(i)] 395,051 556,348
Registrar’s fee [Note 7(g)] 169,356 190,979
Safe custody and bank charges

[Note 7(h), 7(i)] 146,403 126,805
Trustee’s fee [Note 7(f)] 83,770 78,892
Legal and professional expenses 22,466 25,747
Valuation fee [Note 7(d)] 17,010 16,870
Auditor’s fee 14,405 27,344
Printing and publication expenses 2,659 3,952
Other operating expenses

[Note 7(h), 7(i)] 18,113 4,774

4,783,155 4,653,023

Net operating (loss)/profit (91,420,557) 67,529,093
Finance costs
Interest expense [Note 7(i)] - (2,750)
(Loss)/profit before taxation (91,420,557) 67,526,343
Taxation [Note 6] 733,761  (3,478,730)
(Decrease)/increase in net assets

attributable to holders of

redeemable units and total

comprehensive income (90,686,796) 64,047,613

The notes on pages 108 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to

Holders of Redeemable Units
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
us$ uss$

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units

at the beginning of the year 286,728,000 157,956,767

Allotment of redeemable units
[Note 3] 47,426,920 151,564,369
Redemption of redeemable units

[Note 3] (45,972,115) (86,840,749)

Net allotment 1,454,805 64,723,620

288,182,805 222,680,387

(Decrease)/increase in net
assets attributable to holders
of redeemable units and total

comprehensive income (90,686,796) 64,047,613

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable units

at the end of the year 197,496,009 286,728,000

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022 2021
us$ uss$

Operating activities

Purchase of investments and
derivatives

Proceeds from disposal of

(103,510,336) (172,943,635)

investments and derivatives 94,068,250 120,253,339
Dividend received 5,336,598 4,848,835
Interest received 15,362 3,026
Trustee’s fee paid (85,483) (76,054)
Registrar’s fee paid (184,688) (184,910)
Transaction costs paid (397,936) (557,332)
Tax paid (1,452,898) (678,171)
Management fee paid (4,016,634) (3,451,155)
Others (668,681) (462,437)
Net cash outflow from

operating activities (10,896,446)  (53,248,494)
Financing activities
Interest paid - (2,750)
Receipts on allotment of

redeemable units 48,897,741 150,172,618

Payments on redemption of

redeemable units (46,444,208) (86,537,443)

Net cash inflow from

financing activities 2,453,533 63,632,425
(Decrease)/increase in cash

and cash equivalents (8,442,913) 10,383,931
Cash and cash equivalents at

the beginning of the year 13,865,071 3,403,878
Exchange (losses)/gains on

cash and cash equivalents (32,251) 77,262
Cash and cash equivalents at

the end of the year 5,389,907 13,865,071

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash at banks 5,389,907 13,865,071

The notes on pages 108 to 118 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1

The Fund

JPMorgan Asian Smaller Companies Fund (the “Fund”) was established under a Trust Deed dated 2 December 1991, as
amended (the “Trust Deed”) and is governed by the laws of Hong Kong. The Fund is authorized by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”).

The investment objective of the Fund is to provide investors with long-term capital growth by investing primarily (i.e. at least
70% of its total net asset value) in the equity securities of small to medium sized companies in the Asia-Pacific region,
excluding Japan and Australia except the Manager may, from time to time, invest in Japan and Australia when appropriate
investment opportunities arise.

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Manager may decide to issue separate classes (each a “Class”) whose assets will be
commonly invested but where a specific fee structure, currency or distribution policy may be applied. Each Class may have a
different charging structure with the result that the net asset value attributable to each Class may differ.

All unitholders’ rights with regard to the convening, voting or otherwise acting at any meeting of unitholders are the same.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) held at fair value through
profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires the Manager and the Trustee (the “Management”) to exercise their judgment in the process of applying the
Fund’s accounting policies.

Standards and amendments to existing standards effective from 1 October 2021

There are no standards or amendments to existing standards that are effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 October 2021 that have had a material impact on the Fund.

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 October 2021 and have not been early adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 October 2021, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to

have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.

(b) Investments and derivatives

Classification
The Fund classifies its investments and derivatives based on both the Fund’s business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed

and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that
information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions.

Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The Fund makes short sales in which a borrowed security is sold in anticipation of a decline in the market value of that
security, or it may use short sales for various arbitrage transactions. Short sales are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss.

As such, the Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of investments and derivatives are accounted for on the trade date basis. Investments and
derivatives are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Realized and unrealized
gains and losses on investments and derivatives are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments
and derivatives are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments and derivatives have expired
or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are
based on last traded prices. When trading in the securities of an investee company is suspended, the investment is valued
at the Manager's estimate of its fair value. When trading of financial instruments in markets that are not considered to be
active, the financial instruments are valued based on quoted market prices, dealer/broker quotations or alternative pricing
sources supported by observable inputs.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting period.
Securities borrowing

The Fund may enter into securities borrowing arrangements for short sale purposes. Short positions represent obligations
to deliver securities sold but not yet purchased, and are accounted for as investments and valued at their fair value.
Securities borrowed during the year are off-balance sheet transactions and are therefore not included in the investment
portfolio of the Fund. Collateral placed for the purpose of securities borrowed generally consist of cash collateral and are
included in the Statement of Financial Position separately.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expense

Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date with the corresponding foreign withholding tax recorded as an
expense and is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income on investments is accounted for as part of net gains/losses on investments and derivatives in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income on cash at banks and short-term deposits is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on
an effective interest basis.

Expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are costs incurred to acquire/dispose financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
They include fees and commissions paid to agents, brokers and dealers. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The Fund has adopted United States dollar as its functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.
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Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of assets
and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and cash equivalents are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within “Net foreign currency exchange gains/losses”. Foreign exchange gains and losses relating
to the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within “Net gains/losses on investments and derivatives”.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and bank deposits
with maturity of three months or less from the date of placing the deposits, net of certain short-term bank loans which the
Fund usually undertakes as overnight bank borrowings.

Amounts due from/to brokers

Amounts due from/to brokers represent receivables for investments and derivatives sold and payables for investments and
derivatives purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled by the end of the year.

These amounts are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date,
the Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization and default in payments are all considered
indicators that a loss allowance may be required.

Proceeds and payments on allotment and redemption of units

The net asset value per unit is computed for each dealing day. The price at which units are allotted or redeemed is
calculated by reference to the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the relevant dealing day in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed which may be different from the accounting policies stated in the
financial statements.

Units of the Fund are redeemable at the option of the holders of redeemable units and are classified as a financial liability
in the Statement of Financial Position which represents the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (or “net
asset value” or “net assets” or “NAV”) and is carried at the redemption amount that would be payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date if the holders of redeemable units exercised the right to redeem units of the Fund.

3 Number of units in issue and net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (per unit)

2022

HKD Class (acc) USD Class (acc)

Units Units
Number of units in issue:
At the beginning of the year 3,936,576.647 772,375.981
Total allotments 411,988.481 136,527.899
Total redemptions (670,187.768) (135,733.011)
At the end of the year 3,678,377.360 773,170.869
HK$ uss
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 45,581,333 191,689,396
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 12.39 247.93
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2021

HKD Class (acc) USD Class (acc)

Units Units
Number of units in issue:
At the beginning of the year 3,855,757.670 580,294.412
Total allotments 838,457.308 450,906.619
Total redemptions (757,638.331) (258,825.050)
At the end of the year 3,936,576.647 772,375.981
HK$ us$
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 70,157,278 277,715,741
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 17.82 359.56

4 Fi

U]

(a

nancial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including market price risk, interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market price risk

The Fund’s investments and derivatives are subject to the market price risk inherent in all investments and derivatives i.e.
the value of holdings may fall as well as rise. The Fund’s market risk is managed through (i) deliberate stocks selection,
and (ii) diversification of the investment portfolio in accordance with specific investment restrictions and guidelines.

The Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s market price sensitivity primarily through the Beta of the Fund on a regular
basis. Beta measures the statistical relationship between the return of the Fund and the relevant benchmark index chosen

by the Investment Manager.

As at 30 September, the fair value of investments and derivatives and its estimated market sensitivity were as follows:

2022 2021

Fair value of % of Fair value of % of

investments net investments net
Listed/Quoted Investments uss$ assets uss$ assets
Assets
Equities
- India 48,455,456 245 56,680,327 19.8
- Taiwan 37,421,940 19.0 81,606,109 28.4
- Korea 25,934,567 13.1 44,072,226 15.4
- China 19,103,243 9.7 20,657,310 7.2
- Hong Kong 15,809,785 8.0 33,908,667 11.8
- Thailand 11,689,425 59 8,165,758 2.8
- Philippines 10,143,665 5.1 8,816,778 3.1
- Others 24,624,006 12.5 22,255,046 7.8

Total Listed/Quoted Investments 193,182,087 97.8 276,162,221 96.3
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% of reasonable Estimated

Relevant possible change  impact on net

benchmark index of the relevant asset value

Net asset value for the Fund Beta benchmark index (Note****)

us$ (Note*)  (Note**) (Note***) us$

(ii)

(iii)

MSCI AC Asia ex Japan
As at 30 September 2022 197,496,009 Small Cap Net 0.88 -24.8 (43,101,529)

MSCI AC Asia ex Japan
As at 30 September 2021 286,728,000 Small Cap Net 0.84 +40.9 98,508,272

If the relevant benchmark index return was to move in the opposite direction, this would result in an opposite movement in
the net asset value of the Fund by the same amount, assuming all other variables that may impact the net asset value of
the Fund are held constant.

Note:
*  Relevant benchmark index for the Fund represents the relevant market index used by the Investment Manager in
monitoring the market price risk of the Fund.

**  Beta measures the statistical relationship between the return of the Fund and the respective benchmark index over
the maximum of past 36 months, or the number of months since portfolio inception. For funds launched within a
period of less than 12 months, weekly returns of the Fund are used for calculating the Beta.

% of reasonable possible change is based on the actual historical change in the benchmark index in the past 12
months and does not include remote or “worst case” scenarios or “stress tests” nor represent the Investment
Manager’s forecast of the Fund’s future returns. For funds launched within a period of less than 12 months, actual
historical change in the benchmark index since the commencement of operations will be used to calculate the % of
reasonable possible change.

**** Estimated impact on net asset value of the Fund is calculated by applying the relevant Beta against the net asset
value of the Fund multiplied by the % of reasonable possible change of the relevant benchmark index, assuming all
other variables that may impact the net asset value of the Fund are held constant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument or future cash flow will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates.

The table below summarizes the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities as at 30 September which expose it to the risk
associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates, categorized by remaining
maturity dates.

2022 2021

Less than 1 month Less than 1 month

uss$ us$

Cash at banks 5,389,907 13,865,071
Total interest sensitivity gap 5,389,907 13,865,071

Any cash and cash equivalents are placed/borrowed at short-term market interest rates and the Investment Manager
considers that the Fund is not subject to significant amount of risk due to the stable and low fluctuation in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates.

Currency risk
The Fund holds assets and liabilities denominated in a number of currencies. HKFRS 7 considers the foreign exchange
exposure relating to non-monetary assets and liabilities to be a component of market price risk not currency risk. However,

the Investment Manager monitors the exposure to currency risk on all foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities
including both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities.
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The table below summarizes the Fund’s exposure to currency risk as at 30 September together with the percentage of
reasonable possible change in foreign currencies and the estimated impact on net asset value of the Fund.

% of
reasonable Estimated
possible impact on
change net asset
us$ against US$ value
Net currency exposures (Note*) equivalent (Note*) Us$
2022
Chinese Yuan (Offshore) 17,884,875 -9.5 (1,699,063)
Hong Kong Dollar 21,069,073 -0.8 (168,553)
Indian Rupee 48,484,725 -8.8 (4,266,656)
Indonesian Rupiah 5,085,588 -6.0 (305,135)
Korean Won 25,934,567 -17.2 (4,460,746)
Malaysian Ringgit 6,337,218 -9.7 (614,710)
Philippine Peso 10,143,665 -13.0 (1,318,676)
Singapore Dollar 4,025,761 -5.4 (217,391)
Taiwan Dollar 37,602,796 -12.2 (4,587,541)
Thai Baht 11,689,425 -10.3 (1,204,011)
Vietnamese Dong 5,126,778 -4.6 (235,832)
193,384,471 (19,078,314)
2021
Chinese Yuan (Offshore) 15,624,117 +5.1 796,830
Hong Kong Dollar 37,232,517 -0.4 (148,930)
Indian Rupee 57,105,179 -0.6 (342,631)
Indonesian Rupiah 4,028,621 +4.0 161,145
Korean Won 43,981,795 -1.2 (527,782)
Malaysian Ringgit 10,191,852 -0.7 (71,343)
Philippine Peso 8,816,778 -5.0 (440,839)
Singapore Dollar 1,837,332 +0.6 11,024
Taiwan Dollar 83,751,279 +4.0 3,350,051
Thai Baht 7,521,389 -6.3 (473,848)
Vietnamese Dong 6,814,697 +1.9 129,479
276,905,556 2,443,156

If the foreign currency fluctuations were to move in the opposite direction, this would result in an opposite movement in the
net asset value of the Fund by the same amount, assuming all other variables that may impact the net asset value of the
Fund are held constant.

Note:
*  Net currency exposures on assets and liabilities include both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities.
% of reasonable possible change is based on the actual historical change in the respective currencies against the

functional currency of the Fund in the past 12 months and does not include remote or “worst case” scenarios or
“stress tests” nor represent the Investment Manager’s forecast of the Fund’s future returns.
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Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not be able to pay amounts in full when due.

The Manager monitors credit risk with reference to a number of factors including history of default and the credit rating of
counterparties. The Manager considers the credit risk of other receivables such as amounts receivable on allotment,
amounts due from brokers or dividend and other accounts receivable, to be insignificant as the Fund has no default history
on such receivables in the past 5 years. Overall, the Manager considers the probability of default to be close to zero as
these instruments have a low risk of default and the Fund’s counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their contractual
obligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognized based on 12-month expected credit
losses.

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 September 2022 and 2021 is the carrying amount of the financial assets as
shown in the Statement of Financial Position.

All transactions in investments and derivatives are settled on a delivery versus payment basis using approved brokers.
The risk of default is considered minimal, as delivery of investments and derivatives sold is only made when the Fund’s
custodian bank has received payment. For a purchase, payment is made once the investments and derivatives have been
received by the Fund'’s custodian bank. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet the obligation.

The table below summarizes the credit rating of the banks/custodian which the Fund has placed the financial assets as at
30 September.

2022 2021
Exposure to Exposure to
counterparties counterparties
us$ Uss$
Bank balances

S&P(AA)/Moody’s(Aa)/FITCH(AA) 217,849 1,201,371
S&P(A)/Moody’s(A)/FITCH(A) 5,172,058 12,663,700

Investment balances with custodian
S&P(A)/Moody’s(A)/FITCH(A) 193,182,087 276,162,221

Liquidity risk

The Fund is exposed to daily redemption of units, the majority of its assets in investments are traded in an active market
which can be readily disposed of. The Manager may also limit the total number of units redeemed for the Fund on any
dealing day to 10% or more of the units in issue on any dealing day.

The Fund has the ability to enter into borrowing arrangements subject to the investment restrictions and guidelines.

The table below summarizes the Fund'’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
as at 30 September to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2022 2021

Less than 1 month Less than 1 month

us$ us$

Amounts due to brokers 66,026 1,737,223
Amounts payable on redemption 370,047 842,140
Other accounts payable 337,348 470,802
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units 197,496,009 286,728,000
Total financial liabilities 198,269,430 289,778,165

The Investment Manager manages the Fund’s liquidity risk by investing in investments that the Investment Manager
expects to liquidate normally within 1 month and making short-term bank borrowing to meet the total financial liabilities.

Capital risk management
The capital of the Fund is represented by the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units which is subject to

allotments and redemptions of redeemable units. The Fund’s objective for capital management is to provide returns and
long-term capital growth for unitholders.
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(1

In order to maintain the capital structure, the Management performs the following:
- Monitor allotment and redemption activities relative to the liquid assets.

- To protect the interest of unitholders and in exceptional circumstances, the Manager may also limit the total number of
units redeemed for the Fund on any dealing day to 10% or more of the units in issue on any dealing day.

- Monitor fund investment guidelines and restrictions, in accordance with the constitutional documents, to maintain
sufficient liquidity through diversification.

Fair value estimation

As at 30 September 2022 and 2021, the Management considers that the carrying values of assets and liabilities were
reasonable approximations of their fair value.

HKFRS 13 requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The table below summarizes the Fund’s investments and derivatives (by class) within the fair value hierarchy measured at
fair value as at 30 September:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Listed/Quoted Investments USs$ Us$ Us$ Us$
2022
Assets
Equities 193,182,087 - - 193,182,087
Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 193,182,087 - - 193,182,087
2021
Assets
Equities 276,162,221 - - 276,162,221
Total financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 276,162,221 - - 276,162,221

Investments, whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore classified within level 1,
include active listed equities and exchange traded derivatives. The Fund does not adjust the quoted price for these
instruments.

Financial instruments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active but are valued based on quoted market
prices, dealer/broker quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within level 2.

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently.
There were no transfers between levels for the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021.

For assets and liabilities carried at amortized cost, their carrying values are a reasonable approximation of fair value as at
30 September 2022 and 2021.
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5 Net (losses)/gains on investments and derivatives

2022 2021

us$ Us$

Change in unrealized gains/losses in value of investments and derivatives (99,804,573) 31,596,189
Realized gains on sale of investments and derivatives 8,201,520 36,060,144
(91,603,053) 67,656,333

6 Taxation

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Fund was authorized as a collective investment scheme under
Section 104 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance and is therefore exempt from profits tax under Section 26A(1A) of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Overseas tax was withheld or paid on certain dividend income received and capital gains derived during the years ended 30
September 2022 and 2021.

7 Transactions with the Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions entered into during the year between the Fund and the
Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons. Connected Persons of the Trustee and the Manager are those as defined
in the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds established by the SFC. All such transactions were entered into in the ordinary
course of business and were on normal commercial terms.

(a) Investment transactions with Connected Persons of the Trustee and the Manager are set out below:

Aggregate
value of % of the % of the
purchases Fund’s total Fund’s total Average
and sales of aggregate Commission commission commission
investments value of paid paid in the rate
Name of company US$  transactions Us$ year %
2022
J.P. Morgan India Private Limited 5,076,878 2.63 3,211 2.35 0.06
J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited 13,037,695 6.75 10,101 7.39 0.08
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited 5,502,271 2.85 4,808 3.52 0.09
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited, Seoul 578,876 0.30 776 0.57 0.13
2021
HSBC Securities & Capital Markets (India)

Private Limited 23,816 0.01 48 0.02 0.20
J.P. Morgan India Private Limited 1,753,591 0.59 1,419 0.51 0.08
J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) Limited 18,247,088 6.19 14,278 5.14 0.08
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited 8,345,777 2.83 7,030 2.53 0.08
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking

Corporation Limited, Seoul 225,598 0.08 112 0.04 0.05

(b) Balances with the Manager and its Connected Persons as at year end:

2022 2021

Uss$ uss$
Cash at banks 217,849 1,201,371
Amounts payable (300,411) (1,059,993)

(c) During the year ended 30 September 2022, the income accruing to the Manager relating to allotments and redemptions in
the Fund, net of commission paid to agents, amounted to US$3,239 (2021: US$4,750).
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(d) Management fee of 1.5% per annum of the net asset value of the Fund is paid to JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited.

Management fee is accrued on each dealing day and is payable monthly in arrears.

The Manager also receives a valuation fee of US$40 per valuation if the Fund's net asset value is larger than US$5 million
but smaller than US$20 million, or US$70 per valuation if the Fund’s net asset value is larger than US$20 million.

The Fund allows the Trustee, the Manager and their Connected Persons to subscribe for, and redeem, units of the Fund.

Certain members of the Manager’s group of companies held units of the Fund during the year and were entitled to profits
from transaction in units of the Fund as follows:

At the Profits from
beginning of Total Total At the end transaction
the year  allotments  redemptions of the year Us$
2022
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia Pacific)
Limited
- USD Class (acc) 2,555.620 696.545 (1,077.436) 2,174.729 150,074
JPMorgan Asset Management (S) Limited
- USD Class (acc) 26.357 - (13.178) 13.179 1,766
2021
JPMorgan Asset Management (Asia Pacific)
Limited
- USD Class (acc) 2,240.138 671.285 (355.803) 2,555.620 40,075
JPMorgan Asset Management (S) Limited
- USD Class (acc) 26.357 - - 26.357 -

Trustee’s fee of 0.06% per annum of the net asset value of the Fund for the first US$40 million, 0.04% per annum for the
balance from US$40 million to US$70 million, and 0.025% per annum for the balance in excess of US$70 million is paid to
the Trustee. Trustee’s fee is accrued on each dealing day and is payable monthly in arrears.

JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited, the registrar agent and Manager, receives a registrar’s fee which varies depending on the
number of unitholders in the Fund and the number of transactions which occur. The range agreed with the Trustee is
between 0.015% and 0.5% per annum of the Fund’s net asset value. The registrar’s fee is payable quarterly in arrears.

During the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, in addition to the management fee, valuation fee and registrar’s fee
as disclosed in Note 7(d) and 7(g), respective amounts received from/(paid to) the Manager, JPMorgan Funds (Asia)
Limited, and its Connected Persons were as follows:

2022 2021

us$ us$
Interest on deposits 616 110
Other income - 8,192
Other operating expenses (6,055) -
Safe custody and bank charges (9,273) (3,027)
Transaction costs (13,313) (15,697)

During the years ended 30 September 2022 and 2021, in addition to the trustee’s fee as disclosed in Note 7(f), respective
amounts received from/(paid to) the Trustee, HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, and its Connected Persons
were as follows:

2022 2021

us$ uUss$
Interest on deposits 864 405
Other operating expenses - (148)
Interest expense - (2,750)
Transaction costs (25,331) (37,811)
Safe custody and bank charges (133,230) (120,669)

=117 -



Annual report for the

JPMorgan Asian Smaller Companies Fund year ended 30 September 2022

10

Borrowings
The Fund has no bank borrowing during the year ended 30 September 2022. During the year ended 30 September 2021, the
Fund has unsecured short-term bank borrowings with The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, a Connected

Person of the Trustee. All bank borrowings have a duration of less than 7 days. All such transactions are entered into in the
ordinary course of business and on normal commercial terms.

Soft dollar arrangements/Commission sharing arrangements

The Investment Manager has entered into soft dollar arrangements/commission sharing arrangements with brokers under
which certain goods and services used to support investment decision making are received by the Investment Manager. A
portion of the transaction commission paid by the Fund is retained by the brokers as compensation for the goods and services.

The goods and services must be of demonstrable benefit to the Fund and would be limited to research and advisory services.

During the year ended 30 September 2022, the Investment Manager obtained the services through soft dollar
arrangements/commission sharing arrangements on transactions amounting to US$154,377,119 (2021:US$214,070,082).
Commission which amounted to US$18,110 (2021:US$58,940) is paid from the Fund on these transactions.

Distribution

No distribution was made during the year (2021: nil).
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Unitholders of JPMorgan Asian Smaller Companies
Fund (the “Fund”)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
What we have audited

The financial statements of JPMorgan Asian Smaller
Companies Fund, which are set out on pages 106 to 118,
comprise:

« the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 September
2022;

« the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then
ended;

« the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Units for the year then ended;

« the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended; and

« the notes to the financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Fund as at 30 September 2022,
and of its financial transactions and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The Trustee and the Manager (the “Management”) of the Fund
are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management for the Financial
Statements

The Management of the Fund is responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and
for such internal control as the Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management of the
Fund is responsible for assessing the Fund’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate
the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

In addition, the Management of the Fund is required to ensure
that the financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust
Deed dated 2 December 1991, as amended (the “Trust Deed”)
and Appendix E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds
issued by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC Code”).

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements. In addition, we are
required to assess whether the financial statements of the
Fund have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust
Deed and Appendix E of the SFC Code.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve  collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund’s internal control.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the Management.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

To the Unitholders of JPMorgan Asian Smaller Companies
Fund (the “Fund”)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements (Continued)

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease
to continue as a going concern.

«  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the Management regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Matters under the Relevant Disclosure
Provisions of the Trust Deed and Appendix E of the
SFC Code

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly
prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and Appendix
E of the SFC Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 January 2023
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Statement of Responsibilities of the Manager and
the Trustee

Manager’s Responsibilities

The Manager of the Fund is required by the Code on Unit
Trusts and Mutual Funds established by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong and the Trust Deed to
prepare financial statements for each annual accounting period
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Fund at the end of that period and of the transactions for the
period then ended. In preparing these financial statements, the
Manager is required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

- make judgments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and

- prepare the financial statements on the basis that the
Fund will continue in operation unless it is inappropriate to
presume this.

The Manager is also required to manage the Fund in
accordance with the Trust Deed and take reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Trustee’s Responsibilities

The Trustee of the Fund is required to:

- ensure that the Fund in all material respects is managed in
accordance with the Trust Deed and that the investment

and borrowing powers are complied with;

- satisfy itself that sufficient accounting and other records
have been maintained;

- safeguard the property of the Fund and rights attaching
thereto (as far as reasonably practicable); and

- report to the unitholders for each annual accounting period
should the Manager not manage the Fund in accordance
with the Trust Deed.

Report of the Trustee to the Unitholders

We hereby confirm that, in our opinion, the Manager of the
Fund has, in all material respects, managed the Fund in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed dated 2
December 1991, as amended, for the year ended 30
September 2022.

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, Trustee
20 January 2023

Performance Record (Unaudited)

Net Asset Values

At financial Net asset value Net asset value
period ended of the Fund per unit

30/9/22
- HKD Class (acc) HK$45,581,333 HK$12.39
- USD Class (acc) US$191,689,396 US$247.93
30/9/21
- HKD Class (acc) HK$70,157,278 HK$17.82
- USD Class (acc) US$277,715,741 US$359.56
30/9/20
- HKD Class (acc) HK$49,688,154 HK$12.89
- USD Class (acc) US$151,545,392 US$261.15
Highest Offer/Lowest Bid Prices
Financial period ended Highest offer Lowest bid
30/9/22
- HKD Class (acc) HK$19.32 HK$12.29
- USD Class (acc) US$389.66 US$245.93
30/9/21
- HKD Class (acc) HK$18.67 HK$13.01
- USD Class (acc) US$377.11 US$263.52
30/9/20
- HKD Class (acc) HK$13.13 HK$7.59
- USD Class (acc) US$266.06 US$153.66
30/9/19
- HKD Class (acc) HK$10.68 HK$9.87
- USD Class (acc) US$215.08 US$174.76
30/9/18
- USD Class (acc) US$233.94 US$196.08
30/9/17
- USD Class (acc) US$209.66 US$165.12
30/9/16
- USD Class (acc) US$197.48 Us$144.27
30/9/15
- USD Class (acc) US$188.74 US$144.58
30/9/14
- USD Class (acc) US$174.99 US$140.10
30/9/13
- USD Class (acc) US$158.07 US$120.44
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Management and Administration

Manager and Service Provider
JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited
19/F, Chater House

8 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Investment Manager

JPMorgan Asset Management
(Asia Pacific) Limited

19/F, Chater House

8 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

Directors of the Manager
as at 20 January 2023
Ayaz Hatim EBRAHIM
Daniel James WATKINS
Ka Li NG

Kit Yee Elka LEUNG
Stiofan Seamus DEBURCA
Tsun Kay Edwin CHAN

Trustee

HSBC Institutional Trust
Services (Asia) Limited

1 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Registrar

HSBC Trustee (Cayman)
Limited

P.O. Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22/F, Prince’s Building

1 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

UK Tax Information

The Fund is transparent for UK income tax purposes
and information has been provided to UK investors of
the amount of their share of the underlying income,
expenses and overseas tax suffered for all financial
years from 1 October 2010. Although the Fund is an
“offshore fund” for UK tax purposes, there is no need
to formally apply for “reporting fund status” as the
Fund is considered transparent by HMRC and does
not invest more than 5% of its assets in other offshore
funds which are not themselves reporting funds.
Therefore it is known as a “special category
transparent offshore fund” and considered out of
scope of the requirements of the offshore fund
regime. The principal effect of this is that for
unitholders resident in the UK for taxation purposes,
any gains accruing on the sale, redemption or other
disposal of units during the period will be taxed in the
UK as a capital gain and not as income. The Fund
has previously been certified by HMRC in the UK as a
“distributing fund” in respect of the period from 2
December 1991 to 30 September 2010.
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Investment Portfolio

As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Holding
Listed/Quoted Investments (91.8%)
(I) Debt Securities (93.3%)

Bermuda (0.5%)

China Oil and Gas Group
(Reg) (Reg S) 4.7%
30Jun2026

China Oil and Gas
Group 5.5%
25Jan2023

USD4,400,000

USD10,000,000

Cayman Islands (7.7%)
Azure Orbit IV Intl Fin
Ser EMTN (Reg)

(Reg S) 4%
25Jan2028

Baidu Inc (Reg)
3.425% 07Apr2030

CDBL Funding Two
Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) 2%
04Mar2026

Champion MTN Ltd
Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) 2.95%
15Jun2030

China Resources Land
Ltd Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) Var Perp

CK Hutchison Intl 19 1
Ser Regs (Reg)
(Reg S) 2.75%
06Sep2029

CK Hutchison Intl 20
Ltd Ser Regs (Reg)
(Reg S) 2.5%
08May2030

CN Overseas Fin KY
VIIl Ser EMTN
(Reg) (Reg S)
2.375% 02Mar2025

Country Garden Hldgs
(Reg) (Reg S) 2.7%
12Jul2026

Country Garden Hldgs
(Reg) (Reg S)
6.15% 17Sep2025

Country Garden Hldgs
(Reg) (Reg S)
7.25% 08Apr2026

Country Garden Hldgs
5.625% 15Dec2026

Foxconn Far East Ltd
(Reg) (Reg S) 2.5%
280ct2030

FWD Group Ltd Ser
EMTN (Reg S) Var
Perp

Goodman HK Finance
Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) 3%
22Jul2030

USD700,000

USD1,000,000

USD5,800,000

USD11,600,000

USD8,400,000

USD300,000

USD3,500,000

UsD8,100,000

USD5,300,000

UsD7,800,000

USD600,000

USD1,500,000

USD12,200,000

USD13,600,000

USD2,300,000

Fair
value
uss

3,396,274

2,839,524

653,751

880,056

5,239,163

9,850,315

8,021,888

259,816

2,958,391

7,429,152

1,704,878

2,787,655

244,404

468,518

9,960,214

12,824,950

1,902,284

% of
net
assets

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.7

0.6

0.0

0.2

0.6

0.1

0.2

0.0

0.0

0.7

0.1

(Continued)

Longfor Holdings Ltd
(Reg) (Reg S)
3.85% 13Jan2032

Longfor Properties
(Reg) (Reg S) 4.5%
16Jan2028

Melco Resorts Finance
Ser Regs (Reg)
(Reg S) 5.375%
04Dec2029

Melco Resorts Finance
Ser Regs (Reg)
(Reg S) 5.625%
17Jul2027

Shui On Development
Hidg (Reg) (Reg S)
5.5% 03Mar2025

Shui On Development
Hidg (Reg) (Reg S)
5.75% 12Nov2023

Sun Hung Kai Prop
(Cap) Ser EMTN
(Reg) (Reg S)
3.75% 25Feb2029

Tencent Holdings Ltd
Ser Regs (Reg S)
3.84% 22Apr2051

Zhongsheng Group
(Reg) (Reg S) 3%
13Jan2026

China (5.7%)

CDB Financial Leasing
(Reg) (Reg S) Var
28Sep2030

China Citic Bank Intl
Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) Var
28Feb2029

China Construction
Bank (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 21Jan2032

China Construction
Bank (Reg) (Reg S)
Var 24Jun2030

ENN Energy Holdings
Ltd Ser Regs (Reg
S) 2.625%
17Sep2030

ENN Energy Holdings
Ltd Ser Regs (Reg)
(Reg S) 4.625%
17May2027

ICBCIL Finance Co
Ltd Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) 1.75%
25Aug2025

Ind & Comm Bk of
China (Reg) (Reg S)
VAR Perp 3.2%

Ind & Comm Bk of
China (Reg) (Reg S)
VAR Perp 3.58%
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Holding

USD2,000,000

USD6,600,000

USD500,000

USD4,700,000

USD6,000,000

USD4,700,000

USD6,000,000

USD15,000,000

USD6,400,000

USD12,600,000

USD10,050,000

USD11,000,000

usSD2,100,000

USD6,800,000

USD2,400,000

USD7,800,000

USD2,500,000

USD2,200,000

Fair % of

value net

US$ assets
1,306,763 0.1
5,011,994 0.4
313,036 0.0
3,249,982 0.2
4,045,208 0.3
4,087,597 0.3
5,590,992 0.4
10,353,081 0.8
5,712,173 0.4
11,720,641 0.9
9,930,180 0.7
10,175,722 0.7
1,976,920 0.1
5,510,797 0.4
2,381,173 0.2
7,110,113 0.5
2,291,414 0.2
2,096,497 0.2
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Investment Portfolio (Continued)
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

China (Continued)

Kunming Rail Transit
Grp (Reg) (Reg S)
3.5% 12Dec2022

Shougang Group Co
Ltd (Reg) (Reg S)
4% 23May2024

Colombia (0.0%)

Republic of Colombia
(Reg) 4.375%
21Mar2023

Hong Kong (12.9%)

AIA Group Ltd Ser
Gmtn (Reg) (Reg S)
Var Perp

AlA Group Ltd Ser
Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
3.2% 16Sep2040

Airport Authority HK
(Reg) (Reg S) VAR
Perp 2.1%

Airport Authority HK
(Reg) (Reg S) VAR
Perp 2.4%

Bank of
Communication HK
(Reg) (Reg S) Var
08Jul2031

Bank of East Asia Ltd
(Reg) (Reg S) Var
Perp

Bank of East Asia Ltd
Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) Var Perp

Chong Hing Bank Ltd
Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) Var Perp

Citic Ltd Ser EMTN
(Reg) (Reg S)
3.875% 28Feb2027

CMB International
Leasin Ser EMTN
(Reg S) 2.75%
12Aug2030

CMB International
Leasin Ser EMTN
(Reg) (Reg S) 2%
04Feb2026

CNAC HK Finbridge
Co Ltd (Reg) (Reg
S) 3.875%
19Jun2029

CNAC HK Finbridge
Co Ltd (Reg) (Reg
S) Var Perp

GLP China Holdings

Ltd Ser EMTN (Reg)

(Reg S) 2.95%
29Mar2026

HBIS Group HK Co Ltd
(Reg) (Reg S) 3.75%

18Dec2022

Fair
value

Holding us$

UsSD8,600,000 8,638,359

USD16,000,000 15,929,171

COP500,000,000 107,057

USD9,500,000 8,072,910

USD6,000,000 4,502,375
USD4,200,000 3,710,463

USD5,200,000 4,318,727

USD14,250,000 12,833,778

USD3,000,000 2,732,125

USD6,200,000 5,616,511

USD4,800,000 4,689,760

USD11,600,000 11,073,141

USD7,600,000 5,874,474

USD2,200,000 1,965,057

USD10,500,000 9,302,907

USD17,800,000 17,484,201

USD8,900,000 6,960,235

USD7,000,000 7,057,709

% of

net

assets

0.6

1.2

0.0

0.6

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.9

0.2

0.4

0.4

0.8

0.4

0.2

0.7

1.3

0.5

0.5

(Continued)

Hongkong Intl Qingdao
(Reg S) 3.9%
11Nov2022

Hongkong Intl Qingdao
(Reg) (Reg S) 4.25%
04Dec2022

ICBCIL Finance Co Ltd
Ser Regs (Reg)
(Regs) 3.625%
19May2026

Jinan URB Const Intl
Inv (Reg) (Reg S)
2.4% 23Sep2026

Lenovo Group Ltd Ser
Regs (Reg S)
3.421% 02Nov2030

Lenovo Group Ltd Ser
Regs (Reg S)
5.831% 27Jan2028

MCC Holding HK Corp
Ltd (Reg) (Reg S)
Var Perp

MTR Corp Ltd Ser
EMTN (Reg) (Reg S)
1.625% 19Aug2030

Xiaomi Best Time Intl
Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 3.375%
29Apr2030

Xiaomi Best Time Intl
Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 4.1% 14Jul2051

India (5.9%)

Adani Ports and
Special Ser Regs
(Reg S) 3.375%
24Jul2024

Adani Ports and
Special Ser Regs
(Reg) (Reg S) 4.2%
04Aug2027

Adani Transmission Ltd
Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 4.25%
21May2036 (Sink)

Adani Transmission Ltd
Ser Regs (Reg)
(Regs) 4%
03/08/2026

Bharat Petroleum Corp
Ser Mtn (Regs) 4%
08May2025

HDFC Bank Ltd Ser
Regs (Reg S) Var
Perp

Indian Railway Finance
Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) 3.73%
29Mar2024

Indian Railway Finance
Ser Regs (Reg S)
3.249% 13Feb2030

-124 -

Fair % of

value net

Holding US$ assets
USD5,600,000 5,678,493 0.4
USD5,900,000 5,981,989 04
USD12,000,000 11,559,512 0.8
USD2,800,000 2,536,169 0.2
USD7,700,000 5,936,124 04
USD6,700,000 6,433,911 0.5
UsSD10,600,000 10,315,846 0.8
USD7,600,000 6,058,126 0.5
USD15,900,000 12,174,805 0.9
USD4,700,000 2,762,589 0.2
USD7,900,000 7,566,954 0.6
USD10,000,000 8,834,040 0.6
USD1,700,000 1,225,300 0.1
USD9,400,000 8,565,298 0.6
USD9,840,000 9,638,663 0.7
USD14,400,000 11,772,259 0.9
USD1,000,000 978,051 0.1
USD5,000,000 4,129,855 0.3



JPMorgan Asian Total Return Bond Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Investment Portfolio (Continued)
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

India (Continued)

JSW Infrastructure Ser
Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.95% 21Jan2029

JSW Steel Ltd (Reg S)
5.95% 18Apr2024

JSW Steel Ltd Ser
Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
3.95% 05Apr2027

NTPC Ltd Ser EMTN
(Reg S) 3.75%
03Apr2024

NTPC Ltd Ser EMTN
(Reg) (Reg S) 4.5%
19Mar2028

Oil India Ltd (Reg)
(Reg S) 5.125%
04Feb2029

Indonesia (11.9%)
Bank Negara
Indonesia (Reg S)
Var Perp
Hutama Karya Persero
PT Ser Regs (Reg
S) 3.75%
11May2030
Hyundai Motor Manu
Indo Ser EMTN
(Reg) (Reg S) 1.75%
06May2026
Indonesia (Rep of)
(Reg) 3.05%
12Mar2051
Indonesia (Rep of)
(Reg) 3.7%
300ct2049
Indonesia (Rep of)
(Reg) 4.3%
31Mar2052
Indonesia (Rep of)
3.5% 14Feb2050
Indonesia (Rep of)
5.25% Ser Regs
17Jan2042
Indonesia (Rep of)
5.45% 20Sep2052
Indonesia (Rep of)
Ser Fr64 6.125Pct
15/05/2028
Indonesia (Rep of)
Ser Fr90 5.125%
15Apr2027
Indonesia (Rep of) Ser
Fro1 6.375%
15Apr2032
Indonesia (Rep of) Ser
Regs (Reg S) 3.55%
09Jun2051
Indonesia Asahan
Alumini Ser Regs
(Reg S) 4.75%
15May2025

Fair
value

Holding us$

USD5,700,000 4,489,833

USD4,000,000 3,972,761

USD11,700,000 9,572,087

USD2,700,000 2,688,763

USD4,000,000 3,756,406

USD3,250,000 3,077,330

USD15,500,000 12,470,077

USD12,500,000 11,265,017

USD6,900,000 6,029,045

USD4,600,000 3,031,978

USD5,000,000 3,684,142

USD8,000,000 6,243,948

USD10,000,000 7,005,915

USD3,800,000 3,465,139

USD1,000,000 929,635

IDR503,000,000,000 32,156,143

IDR120,000,000,000 7,577,818

IDR85,000,000,000 5,376,574

USDG6,000,000 4,273,767

USD8,400,000 8,360,851

% of
net
assets

0.3

0.3

0.7

0.2

0.3

0.2

0.9

0.8

0.4

0.2

0.3

0.5

05

0.3

0.1

24

0.6

04

0.3

0.6

(Continued)

Pertamina Persero Ser
Regs (Reg) 6Pct
03/05/2042

Pertamina Persero Ser
Regs 5.625%
20May2043

PT Adaro Indonesia
Ser Regs (Reg)
(Reg S) 4.25%
310ct2024

PT Bank Tabungan
Negara (Reg) (Reg
S) 4.2% 23Jan2025

PT Pertamina
(Persero) Ser Regs
(Reg S) 4.15%
25Feb2060

PT Pertamina
(Persero) Ser Regs
(Reg S) 4.175%
21Jan2050

PT Pertamina
(Persero) Ser Regs
(Reg S)4.7%
30Jul2049

Jersey C.l. (0.3%)

West China Cement
Ltd (Reg) (Reg S)
4.95% 08Jul2026

Korea (8.4%)

Busan Bank Ser
GMTN (Reg) (Regs)
3.625% 25Jul2026

GS Caltex Corp Ser
Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.5% 05Jan2026

Hana Bank Ser Regs
(Reg) (Reg S) Var
Perp

Hanwha Energy USA
4.125% 05Jul2025

KB Kookmin Card Co
Ltd (Reg) (Reg S)
4% 09Jun2025

Kookmin Bank Ser
GMTN (Reg) (Reg
S) 4.5% 01Feb2029

Korea Expressway
Corp Ser Regs
(Reg) (Reg S)
3.625% 18May2025

Korea Hydro &
Nuclear Po Ser
Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.25% 27Jul2027

Korea Inv & Secs Co
Ltd (Reg) (Reg S)
2.125% 19Jul2026

Korea Midland Power
Co (Reg) (Reg S)
3.625% 21Apr2027

-125-

Fair % of
value net
Holding US$ assets

USD6,400,000 5,764,693 0.4

USD7,000,000 6,035,573 0.5

USD10,000,000 9,713,064 0.7

USD6,300,000 5,908,980 0.4

USD5,000,000 3,225,590 0.2

USD25,000,00017,707,751 1.3

USD2,000,000 1,493,402 0.1

USD6,000,000 4,339,732 0.3

USD16,200,00014,989,566 1.1

USD3,800,000 3,727,207 0.3

USD4,700,000 4,248,321 0.3

USD4,000,000 3,945,331 0.3

USD5,500,000 5,403,257 0.4

USD9,900,000 9,357,203 0.7

USD1,400,000 1,374,021 0.1

USD5,000,000 4,835,688 0.3

USD14,000,00012,315,212 0.9

USD4,200,000 3,998,119 0.3



JPMorgan Asian Total Return Bond Fund

Annual report for the

year ended 30 September 2022

Investment Portfolio (Continued)
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Fair
value
Holding us$
Korea (Continued)
Korea Water
Resources (Reg)
(Reg S) 3.5%
27Apr2025
Kyobo Life Insurance
Co Ser Regs (Reg
S) Var Perp
Lotte Property &
Develop (Reg S)
4.5% 01Aug2025
Posco Ser Regs (Reg)
(Reg S) 4.375%
04Aug2025
Posco Ser Regs (Reg)
(Reg S) 4.5%
04Aug2027
Shinhan Bank Ser
Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.375% 13Apr2032
Shinhan Financial
Group Ser Regs
(Reg) (Reg S) Var
05Feb2030
Shinhan Financial
Group Ser Regs
(Reg)(Reg S) Var
Perp
Woori Bank Ser Regs
(Reg) (Reg S) Var
Perp

USD1,500,000 1,467,197

USD5,300,000 5,259,573

USD2,500,000 2,470,080

USD5,200,000 5,064,322

USD3,200,000 3,060,237

USD3,200,000 2,911,868

USD11,200,000 10,572,246

USD8,000,000 6,907,605

USD12,900,000 12,443,931

Malaysia (1.7%)

Axiata Spv5 Labuan
Ltd Ser EMTN (Reg
S) 3.064%
19Aug2050

GOHL Capital Ltd
4.25% 24Jan2027

TNB Global Ventures
Cap (Reg S) 4.851%
01Nov2028

USD5,000,000 3,271,853

USD15,900,000 13,418,021

USD7,100,000 6,984,653

Mauritius (1.8%)

Greenko Mauritius Ltd
Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 6.25%
21Feb2023

Greenko Power li Lt
4.3%
13Dec2028(Sink)

Greenko Solar
Mauritius Ser Regs
(Reg) (Reg S) 5.55%
29Jan2025

Greenko Wind
Projects Mu Ser
Regs (Reg S) 5.5%
06Apr2025

India Green Energy
Hidng Ser Regs
(Reg S) 5.375%
29Apr2024

USD3,500,000 3,480,556

USD2,000,000 1,567,226

USD3,300,000 2,980,918
USD3,100,000

2,847,694

USD5,000,000 4,807,560

% of
net
assets

0.1

0.4

0.2

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.8

0.5

0.9

0.2

1.0

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.2

0.2

04

(Continued)

Fair
value
Holding us$
India Green Power Hol
4% 22Feb2027(Sink) uUSD10,150,000 8,183,015
Mexico (1.2%)
Mexico (Utd States of)
7.75% 29May2031
Mexico (Utd States of)
8.5% 31May2029

MXN700,000 3,177,743
MXN2,800,000 13,504,984

Netherlands (1.4%)

Greenko Dutch BV 3.85%
29Mar2026(Sink)

Minejesa Capi BV Ser
Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
4.625% 10Aug2030

USD6,100,000 4,737,960

(Sink) USD16,000,000 13,384,833
Minejesa Capital 5.625%
10Aug2037(Sink) USD2,000,000 1,448,688

Philippines (4.0%)

Globe Telecom Inc (Reg)
(Reg S) Var Perp

Megaworld Corp (Reg)
(Reg S) 4.125%
30Jul2027

Metropolitan Bank & Trus
Ser EMTN (Reg S)
2.125% 15Jan2026

PLDT Inc (Reg) (Reg S)
2.5% 23Jan2031

Rizal Commercial Banking
(Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp  USD15,500,000 14,329,221

SMC Global Power Hidgs
(Reg S) Var Perp

SMC Global Power Hidgs
(Reg S) Var Perp

SMC Global Power HIdgs
(Reg) (Reg S) Var Perp

USD6,800,000 6,127,863

USD14,400,000 13,664,010

USD1,300,000 1,184,910

USD3,600,000 2,969,000

USD7,300,000 6,861,392

USD1,100,000 986,954

USD8,500,000 7,871,944

Singapore (7.0%)

Abja Investment Co (Reg)
(Reg S) 5.45%
24Jan2028

BOC Aviation Ltd Ser
Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
3.25% 29Apr2025

Continuum Energy 4.5%
09Feb2027(Sinking)

DBS Group Holdings Ltd
Ser Gmtn (Reg) (Reg
S) Var Perp

GLP Pte Ltd Ser EMTN
(Reg) (Reg S) 3.875%
04Jun2025

Indika Energy Capital IV
Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
8.25% 220ct2025

LLPPL Capital Ser Regs
(Reg) (Reg S) 6.875%
04Feb2039 (Sink)

Medco Bell Pte Ltd Ser
Regs (Reg) (Reg S)
6.375% 30Jan2027

USD8,700,000 8,165,551

USD3,800,000 3,641,495

USD9,400,000 7,416,929

USD9,000,000

8,275,020

USD17,100,000 14,566,990

USD5,200,000 5,066,347

USD13,800,000 9,621,436

USD3,500,000 2,850,974
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% of
net
assets

0.6

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.4

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.1

0.6

0.6

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.4

0.7

0.2



JPMorgan Asian Total Return Bond Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

Investment Portfolio (Continued)
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Singapore (Continued)

Medco Oak Tree Pte
Ltd Ser Regs (Reg)
(Reg S) 7.375%
14May2026

Medco Platinum Road
Pte Ser Regs (Reg)
(Regs) 6.75%
30/01/2025

Oversea-Chinese
Banking Ser Regs
(Reg S) Var
10Sep2030

Oversea-Chinese
Banking (Reg S) Var
15Jun2032

United Overseas Bank
Ltd Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) Var Perp

Supranational (1.0%)

Corp Andina De
Fomento Ser
EMTN (Reg S) (Br)

Fair
value

Holding us$

USD1,700,000 1,530,418

USD11,800,000 10,828,370

USD9,300,000 8,342,599

USD6,200,000 5,960,670

USD9,000,000 8,915,333

6.77% 24May2028 COP23,000,000,000 3,953,501

Intl Bk Recon &
Develop Ser Gdif
(Reg) 6.75%
04Feb2024

Thailand (4.1%)
Bangkok Bank PCL/HK
Ser Regs (Reg S)

Var Perp
Kasikornbank PCL HK
Ser EMTN (Reg)

(Reg S) Var
020ct2031

Krung Thai
Bank/Cayman (Reg
S) Var Perp

Muang Thai Life
Assuranc (Reg) (Reg
S) Var 27Jan2037

Thailand (Govt of) 1%
17Jun2027

Thailand Government
Bond 2.125%
17Dec2026

Thaioil Trsry Center
Ser Regs (Reg S)
3.5% 170ct2049

Thaioil Trsry Center
Ser Regs (Reg S)
3.75% 18Jun2050

United States (1.1%)

Freeport Indonesia PT
Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 5.315%
14Apr2032

US Treasury 0.125%
15Apr2027

BRL49,755,000 9,108,468

USD9,000,000 7,992,820

USD13,100,000 11,581,188

USD13,200,000 10,748,540

USD2,500,000 2,166,455

THB335,000,000 8,281,624

THB300,000,000 7,880,653

USD6,000,000 3,569,954

USD5,700,000 3,472,141

USD5,200,000 4,457,210

USD7,000,000 6,773,067

% of
net
assets

0.1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.7

0.3

0.7

0.6

0.8

0.8

0.2

0.6

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.3

0.5

(Continued)

US Treasury 0.125%
15Feb2052

US Treasury 0.125%
15Jan2032

Virgin Islands (16.7%)

Amipeace Ltd Ser
EMTN (Reg) (Reg S)
2.25% 220ct2030

Beijing Capital Polaris
Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) 2.8%
18Mar2023

Bluestar Fin Holdings
(Reg) (Reg S) Var
Perp

CAS Capital No1 Ltd
(Reg) (Reg S) Var
Perp

Castle Peak Pwr Fin Co
Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) 2.125%
03Mar2031

Castle Peak Pwr Fin Co
Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) 2.2%
22Jun2030

CCCl Treasure Ltd
FRN Perp 3.425%

CCCl Treasure Ltd
FRN Perp 3.65%

Central Plaza Dev Ltd
Ser EMTN (Reg S)
Var Perp

Champion Path
Holdings (Reg) (Reg
S) 4.5% 27Jan2026

Champion Path
Holdings (Reg) (Reg
S) 4.85% 27Jan2028

Chinalco Capital
Holding (Reg S)
2.125% 03Jun2026

Chinalco Capital
Holding (Reg) (Reg
S) 2.95% 24Feb2027

Chouzhou Intl Inv Ltd
(Reg) (Reg S) 3.15%
11Aug2023

CLP Power HK
Financing Ser EMTN
(Reg) (Reg S)
2.125% 30Jun2030

CN Huaneng Gp HK
Treasur (Reg) (Reg
S) Var Perp 2.85%

CN Huaneng Gp HK
Treasur (Reg) (Reg
S) Var Perp 3.08%

CNPC Global Capital
(Reg) (Reg S) 2%
23Jun2030
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Holding

USD1,350,000

USD3,500,000

USD5,600,000

USD8,900,000

USD8,300,000

USD17,200,000

USD5,900,000

USD6,200,000
USD6,000,000

USD4,200,000

USD5,000,000

USD200,000

USD300,000

USD5,700,000

USD2,300,000

USD5,100,000

USD10,100,000

USD5,100,000

USD4,900,000

USD19,600,000

Fair
value
uss

909,994

3,235,737

4,610,589

8,798,550

8,308,150

13,996,978

4,681,407

5,077,019
5,737,833

3,935,633

3,858,039

139,809

196,895

5,165,832

2,115,006

5,033,389

8,184,611

4,979,470

4,637,763

16,239,324

% of
net
assets

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.6

0.3

0.4
0.4

0.3

0.3

0.0

0.0

0.4

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.4

0.3



Annual report for the

JPMorgan Asian Total Return Bond Fund year ended 30 September 2022

Investment Portfolio (Continued)
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

(Continued)

Holding

Virgin Islands (Continued)

Dianjian Haiyu Ltd (Reg)

(Reg S) Var Perp

ENN Clean Energy Ser
Regs (Reg S) 3.375%
12May2026

Franshion Brilliant Ltd
(Reg) (Regs) Var
Perp

Haitian BVI Int Invst
(Reg) (Reg S) 2.8%
04Nov2023

Huarong Finance 2017
Co Ser EMTN (Reg)
(Reg S) Var Perp

Huarong Finance 2019
Ser EMTN (Reg S)
3.375% 24Feb2030

Huarong Finance 2019
Ser EMTN (Reg S)
3.875% 13Nov2029

Huarong Finance 2019
Ser EMTN (Regs)
4.5% 29May2029

Hysan MTN Ltd Ser
EMTN (Reg) (Reg S)
2.875% 02Jun2027

JIC Zhixin Ltd (Reg)
(Regs) 3.5%
24Nov2027

Minmetals Bounteous
Fin (Reg) (Reg S)
4.2% 27Jul2026

Minmetals Bounteous
Fin (Reg) (Reg S) Var
Perp

New Metro Global Ltd
(Reg) (Reg S) 4.5%
02May2026

New Metro Global Ltd
(Reg) (Reg S) 4.8%
15Dec2024

NWD MTN Ltd (Reg)
(Reg S) 4.125%
18Jul2029

RKPF Overseas 2019 A
Ltd (Reg) (Reg S)
5.9% 05Mar2025

RKPF Overseas 2019 A
Ltd (Reg) (Reg S)
6.7% 30Sep2024

RKPF Overseas 2020 A
Ltd (Reg) (Reg S)
5.2% 12Jan2026

SD Iron & Steel Xinheng
(Reg) (Reg S) 4.8%
28Jul2024

Sinopec Grp Dev 2018
Ser Regs (Reg S)
2.7% 13May2030

Studio City Finance Ltd
Ser Regs (Reg) (Reg
S) 6% 15Jul2025

USD6,400,000

USD7,300,000

USD6,700,000

USD6,400,000

Fair
value
uss

6,052,952

6,358,656

6,517,598

6,305,589

USD10,400,000 10,514,400

USD1,800,000

USD3,169,000

USD7,000,000

USD9,400,000

USD2,000,000

USD9,000,000

USD5,200,000

USD11,500,000

USD7,200,000

1,182,994

2,213,877

5,059,250

8,604,576

1,901,282

8,775,276

5,006,274

3,879,250

3,330,960

USD16,400,000 13,451,109

USD2,000,000

USD6,000,000

USD9,100,000

USD8,800,000

USD7,700,000

USD5,500,000

860,022

3,411,757

3,338,640

8,310,720

6,783,251

3,145,080

% of
net
assets

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.8

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.1

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.3

0.2

0.6

0.5

0.2

Holding

Sunny Express (Reg)
(Reg S) 2.95%
01Mar2027

Talent Yield Intntnl
(Reg) (Reg S)
3.125% 06May2031 USD5,400,000

USD2,900,000

(I1) Derivatives (-1.5%)

Forward foreign exchange
contracts (-1.4%)

Futures (-0.1%)

Aust 10yr Bond Fut 12/22
US 10yr Note (CBT) 12/22
US 5yr Note (CBT) 12/22
US Ultra Bond (CBT) 12/22

363

261

Total Listed/Quoted Investments

Other net assets

Net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable units at 30 September

2022

Total investments, at cost
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(255)
(498)

Fair
value
uUss$

2,693,840

4,608,699

1,270,376,289

(19,281,021)

37,444
606,750
1,937,531

(3,339,984)
(20,039,280)

1,250,337,009

111,197,420

1,361,534,429

1,462,710,816

% of
net
assets

0.2
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Statement of Movements in Portfolio Holdings
For the year ended 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

% holdings
of net assets
2022 2021

Listed/Quoted Investments
Debt Securities
Virgin Islands 16.7 22.3
Hong Kong 12.9 11.9
Indonesia 11.9 9.7
Korea 8.4 3.9
Cayman Islands 7.7 14.1
Singapore 7.0 6.2
India 5.9 4.1
China 5.7 7.2
Thailand 41 2.6
Philippines 4.0 27
Mauritius 1.8 1.8
Malaysia 1.7 24
Netherlands 1.4 1.7
Mexico 1.2 1.8
United States 1.1 1.6
Supranational 1.0 1.3
Bermuda 0.5 0.6
Jersey C.I. 0.3 0.2
Colombia 0.0 0.0
Pakistan - 0.6
Sri Lanka - 0.5
Mongolia - 0.3
Derivatives
Futures (0.1) 0.1
Forward foreign exchange contracts (1.4) (0.2)
Total Listed/Quoted Investments 91.8 97.4
Other net assets 8.2 2.6
Net assets attributable to holders of

redeemable units at 30 September 100.0 100.0
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Details of Financial Derivative Instruments
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

(a) Forward foreign exchange contracts

As at 30 September 2022, the Fund held outstanding
forward foreign exchange contracts with details as shown in
Note 11.

(b) Futures

As at 30 September 2022, the Fund held futures contracts
with details as shown in Note 11.

Information on Exposure Arising from Financial
Derivative Instruments
For the year ended 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

The lowest, highest and average gross exposure arising from
the use of financial derivative instruments in the Fund for any
purpose as a proportion to the Fund’s total net asset value for
the year ended 30 September 2022.

2022

% of NAV

Lowest gross exposure 231
Highest gross exposure 188.3
Average gross exposure 66.6

The lowest, highest and average net exposure arising from the
use of financial derivative instruments in the Fund for non-
hedging purpose as a proportion to the Fund’s total net asset
value for the year ended 30 September 2022.

2022

% of NAV

Lowest net exposure 5.0
Highest net exposure 17.0
Average net exposure 10.4

# There are some share classes with currency hedging features. For the
avoidance of doubt, their exposures are not included in the calculation
of the gross exposure of the Fund portfolio.
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Holdings of Collateral
As at 30 September 2022 (Unaudited)

Nature of the Currency
Collateral provider collateral Maturity tenor ~ denomination
Citibank N.A., London Cash N/A USs$

Details on re-investment of cash collateral

% of net asset value Value of the
covered by collateral collateral
Uss$

0.3 4,447,035

During the year ended 30 September 2022, there were no re-investment of cash collateral.

Custody/Safe-keeping arrangement

Custodians of cash collateral

Segregated accounts
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 30 September 2022

Assets

Current assets

Cash at banks

Cash collateral

Amounts due from brokers

Amounts receivable on
allotment

Margin deposits

Derivatives [Note 4(I)(a), 11]

Investments [Note 4(1)(a)]

Interest and other accounts
receivable

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Amounts due to brokers

Amounts payable on
redemption

Distribution payable [Note 6]

Derivatives [Note 4(I)(a), 11]

Other accounts payable

Liabilities (excluding net
assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units)

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units [Note 3]

Approved by the Trustee and the Manager on 20 January 2023

Signed By:

2022 2021
us$ uss$
110,369,125 101,180,556
4,447,035 -
15,458,563 180,000
963,053 10,504,265
6,532,965 1,329,609
7,031,407 10,612,400
1,270,376,289 2,668,285,291
57 3,516

1,415,178,494 2,792,095,637

4,447,035 -
14,152,564 27,404,073
6,315,937 11,544,210
27,070,687 14,745,926
1,657,842 2,897,805
53,644,065 56,592,014

1,361,534,429 2,735,503,623

HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited, Trustee

JPMorgan Funds (Asia) Limited, Manager

The notes on pages 134 to 167 form part of these financial statements.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 September 2022

Income

Net (losses)/gains on
investments and derivatives
[Note 5]

Interest on deposits
[Note 8(i), 8(j)]

Net foreign currency exchange

losses
Other income [Note 8(i)]

Expenses

Management fee [Note 8(e)]

Trustee’s fee [Note 8(g)]

Safe custody and bank
charges [Note 8(i), 8(j)]

Registrar’s fee [Note 8(h)]

Transaction costs [Note 8(j)]

Auditor’s fee

Legal and professional
expenses

Valuation fee [Note 8(e)]

Printing and publication
expenses

Other operating expenses

Net operating (loss)/profit

Finance costs
Distribution [Note 6]
Interest expense [Note 8(j)]

Loss before taxation
Taxation [Note 7]

Decrease in net assets
attributable to holders of

redeemable units and total

comprehensive income
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2022 2021
us$ us$
(435,632,110) 167,913,769
195,619 240,230
(2,634,293)  (2,412,689)
42,676 1,177,135
(438,028,108) 166,918,445
19,650,579 32,755,978
510,976 835,686
475,309 745,812
270,491 478,388
122,875 76,398
48,005 26,005
24,137 58,390
17,220 17,150

7,656 31,748

23,715 28,660
21,150,963 35,054,215
(459,179,071) 131,864,230

(105,332,073)
(119)

(142,721,548)
(324)

(105,332,192)

(142,721,872)

(564,511,263)

(297,847)

(10,857,642)

(1,362,190)

(564,809,110)

(12,219,832)
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to
Holders of Redeemable Units
For the year ended 30 September 2022

2022
uss

2021
uss

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units at the beginning of
the year 2,735,503,623 3,098,404,429

Allotment of redeemable
units [Note 3] 224,574,022 2,042,778,892
Redemption of redeemable

units [Note 3] (1,033,734,106) (2,393,459,866)

Net redemption (809,160,084)

(350,680,974)

1,926,343,539 2,747,723,455

Decrease in net assets
attributable to holders of
redeemable units and
total comprehensive
income

(564,809,110)  (12,219,832)

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units at the end of the

year 1,361,534,429 2,735,503,623

Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 30 September 2022

Operating activities

Purchase of investments and
derivatives

Proceeds from disposal of

investments and derivatives

Interest received

Decrease in overdraft with
brokers

Transaction costs paid

Registrar’s fee paid

Tax paid

Trustee’s fee paid

Increase in cash collateral

(Increase)/decrease in margin

deposits
Management fee paid
Others

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

Financing activities

Interest paid

Receipts on allotment of
redeemable units

Payments on redemption of
redeemable units

Distribution paid

Net cash outflow from
financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

Exchange (losses)/gains on
cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

2022
uss$

2021
us$

(818,730,870) (2,398,852,507)

1,786,081,988 2,866,864,121

199,135 241,852

- (391,036)

(121,706) (76,942)
(323,262) (489,084)
(297,847)  (1,801,555)
(540,321) (840,324)
(4,447,035) -
(5,203,356) 188,073
(20,847,282)  (32,960,859)
(1,784,024)  (2,617,309)
933,985,420 429,264,430
(119) (324)

234,115,234 2,049,716,814

(1,046,985,615) (2,404,405,527)

(110,560,346)  (141,698,068)

(923,430,846)  (496,387,105)

10,554,574 (67,122,675)
101,180,556 167,618,765

(1,366,005) 684,466
110,369,125 101,180,556

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents:

Cash at banks 110,369,125 101,180,556

The notes on pages 134 to 167 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1

The Fund

JPMorgan Asian Total Return Bond Fund (the “Fund”) was established under a Trust Deed dated 30 November 2004, as
amended (the “Trust Deed”) and is governed by the laws of Hong Kong. The Fund is authorized by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC”).

The investment objective of the Fund is to achieve a competitive total return, consisting of capital growth and regular interest
income, through an actively managed portfolio investing primarily (i.e. at least 70% of its total net asset value) in Asian bonds
and other debt securities.

Pursuant to the Trust Deed, the Manager may decide to issue separate classes (each a “Class”) whose assets will be
commonly invested but where a specific fee structure, currency or distribution policy may be applied. Each Class may have a
different charging structure with the result that the net asset value attributable to each Class may differ.

All unitholders’ rights with regard to the convening, voting or otherwise acting at any meeting of unitholders are the same.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments) held at fair value through
profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the Manager and the Trustee (the “Management”) to exercise their judgment in the process of
applying the Fund’s accounting policies.

Standards and amendments to existing standards effective from 1 October 2021

There are no standards or amendments to existing standards that are effective for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1 October 2021 that have had a material impact on the Fund.

New standards, amendments and interpretations effective after 1 October 2021 and have not been early adopted
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 October 2021, and have not been early adopted in preparing these financial statements. None of these are expected to

have a material effect on the financial statements of the Fund.

(b) Investments and derivatives

Classification

The Fund classifies its investments and derivatives based on both the Fund’s business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed
and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that
information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions.

Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

As such, the Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of investments and derivatives are accounted for on the trade date basis. Investments and
derivatives are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Realized and unrealized
gains and losses on investments and derivatives are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investments

and derivatives are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments and derivatives have expired
or the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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(c

It

(e

®

Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets are
based on last traded prices. When trading in the securities of an investee company is suspended, the investment is valued
at the Manager's estimate of its fair value.

Debt securities are fair valued based on quoted prices inclusive of accrued interest.

Open futures and swap contracts are valued at last traded prices for both long and short positions at the valuation date.
The differences between the last traded prices and the contract prices are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are valued at the forward rates ruling at the valuation date. The differences between
the forward rates and the contract rates are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting period.
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Statement of Financial Position when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Income and expense

Dividend income is recognized on the ex-dividend date with the corresponding foreign withholding tax recorded as an
expense and is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income on investments is accounted for as part of net gains/losses on investments and derivatives in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Interest income on cash at banks and short-term deposits is accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on
an effective interest basis.

Expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs are costs incurred to acquire/dispose financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
They include fees and commissions paid to agents, brokers and dealers. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

The Fund has adopted United States dollar as its functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of assets
and liabilites denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are recognized in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses relating to cash and cash equivalents are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within “Net foreign currency exchange gains/losses”. Foreign exchange gains and losses relating
to the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are presented in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income within “Net gains/losses on investments and derivatives”.
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(g) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and bank deposits
with maturity of three months or less from the date of placing the deposits, net of certain short-term bank loans which the
Fund usually undertakes as overnight bank borrowings.

(h

Cash collateral and margin deposits

Cash collateral provided by the Fund is identified in the Statement of Financial Position as cash collateral or margin
deposits and are not included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

(i) Amounts due from/to brokers

Amounts due from/to brokers represent receivables for investments and derivatives sold and payables for investments and
derivatives purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled by the end of the year.

These amounts are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost. At each reporting date,
the Fund shall measure the loss allowance on amounts due from broker at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses if the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. Significant financial difficulties of the broker,
probability that the broker will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization and default in payments are all considered
indicators that a loss allowance may be required.

(i) Proceeds and payments on allotment and redemption of units

The net asset value per unit is computed for each dealing day. The price at which units are allotted or redeemed is
calculated by reference to the net asset value per unit as at the close of business on the relevant dealing day in
accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed which may be different from the accounting policies stated in the
financial statements.

Units of the Fund are redeemable at the option of the holders of redeemable units and are classified as a financial liability
in the Statement of Financial Position which represents the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (or “net
asset value” or “net assets” or “NAV”) and is carried at the redemption amount that would be payable at the Statement of
Financial Position date if the holders of redeemable units exercised the right to redeem units of the Fund.

(k

Distribution payable to holders of redeemable units

Proposed distributions to holders of redeemable units are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when
they are appropriately authorized. The distribution on the redeemable units is recognized as a finance cost in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3 Number of units in issue and net assets attributable to holders of redeemable units (per unit)

2022

AUD Hedged CAD Hedged GBP Hedged NZD Hedged
Class (mth) Class (mth) Class (mth) HKD Class (mth) Class (mth)
Units Units Units Units Units

Number of units in issue:
At the beginning of the year  22,995,059.343 14,901,951.254 602,138.264 454,579,708.028 9,207,083.277
Total allotments 2,396,565.142 1,445,107.597 469,208.699 41,225,517.981 862,966.483
Total redemptions (8,774,970.786)  (4,131,867.781) (241,138.280) (202,600,614.798)  (2,740,597.950)
At the end of the year 16,616,653.699 12,215,191.070 830,208.683 293,204,611.211 7,329,451.810
A$ C$ GBP HK$ NZ$

Net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable
units 106,130,688 78,934,141 5,603,013 2,038,454,890 46,587,636

Net assets attributable to

holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 6.39 6.46 6.75 6.95 6.36
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2022

Number of units in issue:
At the beginning of the year

Total allotments
Total redemptions

At the end of the year

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit)

Number of units in issue:

PRC RMB
Hedged Class
(acc)

Units

58,099,327.490

8,478,940.780
(27,802,104.730)

PRC RMB
Hedged Class
(mth)

Units

61,388,435.190

2,157,303.280
(14,350,365.970)

PRC USD Class
(acc)
Units

30,905,933.500

426,859.490
(18,333,156.640)

PRC USD Class
(mth)
Units

3,245,234.020

91,361.750
(966,349.740)

RMB Hedged
Class (acc)
Units

1,082,326.570

18,294.357
(151,591.873)

At the beginning of the year 471,890,960.288

Total allotments
Total redemptions

At the end of the year

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units

Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit)

38,776,163.540  49,195,372.500 12,999,636.350 2,370,246.030 949,029.054
CNY CNY Us$ Us$ CNY
437,407,794 351,740,162 128,311,762 17,065,170 11,271,909
11.28 7.15 9.87 7.20 11.88
RMB Hedged USD Class USD Class
Class (mth) (acc) (mth)
Units Units Units
954,442.901 63,438,929.394
42,611,029.087 209,060.232 7,143,439.371

(169,890,623.373) (212,804.674) (25,588,742.299)
344,611,366.002 950,698.459  44,993,626.466
CNY Us$ us$
2,280,668,217 10,505,581 355,501,134
6.62 11.05 7.90

-137 -



JPMorgan Asian Total Return Bond Fund

Annual report for the
year ended 30 September 2022

2021

AUD Hedged
Class (mth)
Units
Number of units in issue:
At the beginning of the year  23,139,739.418
Total allotments
Total redemptions

16,206,340.663
(16,351,020.738)

CAD Hedged
Class (mth)
Units

15,637,072.647

7,595,503.923
(8,330,625.316)

GBP Hedged
Class (mth)
Units
510,399.441

518,643.141

HKD Class (mth)
Units

422,240,159.913

354,182,209.391

(426,904.318) (321,842,661.276)

NZD Hedged
Class (mth)
Units

10,763,076.055

4,088,819.913
(5,644,812.691)

At the end of the year 22,995,059.343 14,901,951.254 602,138.264 454,579,708.028 9,207,083.277
A$ C$ GBP HK$ NZ$
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 191,366,724 125,506,796 5,300,020 4,079,907,047 76,304,693
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 8.32 8.42 8.80 8.98 8.29
PRC RMB PRC RMB
Hedged Class Hedged Class PRC USD Class PRC USD Class RMB Hedged
(acc) (mth) (acc) (mth) Class (acc)
Units Units Units Units Units
Number of units in issue:
At the beginning of the year 187,806,607.220 77,860,626.410 41,449,894.640 3,677,328.270 1,116,424.680
Total allotments 27,597,545.200 13,626,532.440 28,114,061.900 788,677.190 1,368,619.657

Total redemptions (157,304,824.930)

(30,098,723.660)

(38,658,023.040)

(1,220,771.440)

(1,402,717.767)

At the end of the year 58,099,327.490 61,388,435.190 30,905,933.500 3,245,234.020 1,082,326.570
CNY CNY uss uUss$ CNY
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 791,153,106 571,858,247 374,577,855 30,423,683 15,519,544
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 13.62 9.32 12.12 9.37 14.34
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2021
RMB Hedged USD Class USD Class
Class (mth) (acc) (mth)
Units Units Units
Number of units in issue:
At the beginning of the year 403,471,907.385 195,694.858 68,929,752.615
Total allotments 263,021,737.884 5,359,382.530 51,811,902.550
Total redemptions (194,602,684.981)  (4,600,634.487) (57,302,725.771)
At the end of the year 471,890,960.288 954,442.901 63,438,929.394
CNY Us$ Us$
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units 4,067,566,571 12,949,102 652,534,891
Net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable
units (per unit) 8.62 13.57 10.29

4 Financial risk management

(U]

(a

(i)

Financial risk factors

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including market price risk, interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk
Market price risk

The Fund primarily invests in debt securities which are subject to interest rate risk. Refer to Note 4(I)(a)(ii) for interest rate
risk.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument or future cash flow will fluctuate due to changes in
market interest rates. The Fund is exposed to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of
market interest rates on its investments, derivatives and cash deposits.

The table below summarizes the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities as at 30 September which expose it to the risk
associated with the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates, categorized by remaining
maturity dates.

Less than

1 year 1-5years  Over 5 years Total
uss$ uss$ us$ us$

2022
Cash at banks 110,369,125 - - 110,369,125
Margin deposits 6,532,965 - - 6,532,965
Derivatives 2,581,725 - - 2,581,725
Investments (Note*) 47,615,626 450,480,355 772,280,308 1,270,376,289
Total interest sensitivity gap 167,099,441 450,480,355 772,280,308 1,389,860,104
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Less than
1 year 1-5years  Over 5 years Total
us$ Us$ uss us$
2021
Cash at banks 101,180,556 - - 101,180,556
Margin deposits 1,329,609 - - 1,329,609
Derivatives 1,253,358 - - 1,253,358
Investments (Note*) 97,453,623 918,702,484 1,652,129,184 2,668,285,291
Total interest sensitivity gap 201,217,146 918,702,484 1,652,129,184 2,772,048,814
Note:

*

The coupon rate of the investments ranged between 0.00% p.a. — 8.50% p.a. (2021: 0.00% p.a. — 12.00% p.a.).

As at 30 September, the Fund'’s fair value of investments and derivatives were as follows:

2022 2021

Fair value of % of Fair value of % of

investments net investments net
Listed/Quoted Investments us$ assets uss$ assets
Assets
Debt Securities
- Virgin Islands 228,002,349 16.7 609,886,103 223
- Hong Kong 175,631,937 12.9 324,983,828 11.9
- Indonesia 161,719,102 11.9 265,588,569 9.7
- Korea 114,350,984 8.4 105,896,472 3.9
- Cayman Islands 104,856,261 7.7 385,558,758 141
- Singapore 95,182,132 7.0 168,640,082 6.2
- India 80,267,600 5.9 113,291,939 4.1
- China 77,760,987 5.7 197,269,887 7.2
- Others 232,604,937 171 497,169,653 18.1

1,270,376,289 93.3 2,668,285,291 97.5
Derivatives
- Forward foreign exchange contracts 4,449,682 0.3 9,266,792 0.3
- Futures 2,581,725 0.1 1,345,608 0.1
1,277,407,696 93.7 2,678,897,691 97.9

Liabilities
Derivatives
- Forward foreign exchange contracts (23,730,703) (1.7) (14,653,676) (0.5)
- Futures (3,339,984) (0.2) (92,250) (0.0)

(27,070,687) (1.9) (14,745,926) (0.5)
Total Listed/Quoted Investments 1,250,337,009 91.8 2,664,151,765 97.4

Also, refer to Note 11 for the exposures on derivatives.
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(iii)

The Investment Manager monitors the Fund’s interest rate risk sensitivity primarily through the modified duration of the
Fund on a regular basis. The modified duration measures the sensitivity of the price of a bond relative to the change in
interest rate. As at 30 September 2022, the Investment Manager estimates that the Fund has a modified duration of 4.41
(2021: 4.21). For the purpose of disclosing relevant sensitivities, the percentage of reasonable possible change in interest
rate adopted is 25 basis points, and does not include remote or “worst case” scenarios or “stress tests” nor represent the
Investment Manager’s forecast of the Fund’s future returns. If the interest rates were to rise by 25 basis points with all
other variables that may impact the net asset value of the Fund held constant, this would result in a decrease in net asset
value of the Fund by approximately US$15,010,917 (2021: US$28,791,176). If the interest rates were to fall by 25 basis
points, this would result in an increase in the net asset value of the Fund by the same amount.

Any cash and cash equivalents and margin deposits are placed/borrowed at short-term market interest rates and the
Investment Manager considers that the Fund is not subject to significant amount of risk due to the stable and low
fluctuation in the prevailing levels of market interest rates.

Currency risk

The Fund holds assets and liabilities denominated in a number of currencies. HKFRS 7 considers the foreign exchange
exposure relating to non-monetary assets and liabilities to be a component of market price risk not currency risk. However,
the Investment Manager monitors the exposure to currency risk on all foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities
including both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities.

The Fund enters in some forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge some of its foreign currency exposures to maintain
limited exposure to non-US$ currencies. Refer to Note 11(a) for the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts as at
year end.

The table below summarizes the Fund’s exposure to currency risk as at 30 September together with the percentage of
reasonable possible change in foreign currencies and the estimated impact on net asset value of the Fund.

% of
reasonable Estimated
possible impact on
change net asset
us$ against US$ value
Net currency exposures (Note*) equivalent (Note*) us$
2022
Australian Dollar 111,930,488 -11.0 (12,312,354)
Brazilian Real 1,208,844 +0.7 8,462
Canadian Dollar 58,060,229 -7.8 (4,528,698)
Chinese Yuan (Offshore) 392,460,747 -9.5 (37,283,771)
Chinese Yuan (Onshore) (297,827) -8.9 26,507
Colombian Peso 4,060,558 -17.0 (690,295)
Euro 3,490 -15.5 (541)
Hong Kong Dollar (2,682,092) -0.8 21,457
Indian Rupee 14,649,299 -8.8 (1,289,138)
Indonesian Rupiah 12,041,362 -6.0 (722,482)
Japanese Yen 608,813 -22.9 (139,418)
Mexican Nuevo Peso 16,683,250 +2.2 367,032
New Zealand Dollar 33,331,764 -18.0 (5,999,718)
Singapore Dollar 56,354,160 -5.4 (3,043,125)
Sterling 6,384,180 -17.2 (1,098,079)
Taiwan Dollar (43,252,134) -12.2 5,276,760
Thai Baht 4,930,879 -10.3 (507,881)
666,476,010 (61,915,282)

141 -



Annual report for the

JPMorgan Asian Total Return Bond Fund year ended 30 September 2022
% of

reasonable Estimated

possible impact on

change net asset

Us$ against US$ value

Net currency exposures (Note*) equivalent (Note**) Us$

2021

Australian Dollar 145,620,669 +0.8 1,164,965
Brazilian Real 15,445,128 +3.4 525,134
Canadian Dollar 99,264,030 +5.4 5,360,258
Chinese Yuan (Offshore) 759,550,871 +5.1 38,737,094
Chinese Yuan (Onshore) 33,242,998 +5.4 1,795,122
Colombian Peso 12,134,613 +1.1 133,481
Euro 6,782,906 -1.2 (81,395)
Hong Kong Dollar (1,361,823) -0.4 5,447
Indian Rupee 48,030,722 -0.6 (288,184)
Indonesian Rupiah 74,763,068 +4.0 2,990,523
Japanese Yen 339,136 5.4 (18,313)
Korean Won 54,786,403 -1.2 (657,437)
Malaysian Ringgit 20,056,013 -0.7 (140,392)
Mexican Nuevo Peso 30,410,449 +7.5 2,280,784
New Zealand Dollar 59,742,479 +4.4 2,628,669
Singapore Dollar (45,461,288) +0.6 (272,768)
Sterling 7,234,138 +4.3 311,068
Taiwan Dollar (27,098,326) +4.0 (1,083,933)
Thai Baht 28,423,114 -6.3 (1,790,656)
1,321,905,300 51,599,467

(b

If the foreign currency fluctuations were to move in the opposite direction, this would result in an opposite movement in the
net asset value of the Fund by the same amount, assuming all other variables that may impact the net asset value of the
Fund are held constant.

Note:

*

Net currency exposures on assets and liabilities include both monetary and non-monetary assets and liabilities.
** % of reasonable possible change is based on the actual historical change in the respective currencies against the
functional currency of the Fund in the past 12 months and does not include remote or “worst case” scenarios or
“stress tests” nor represent the Investment Manager’s forecast of the Fund’s future